AGENDA
DIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
SHI

e ES

T NSHIPAAT/ TOWNSHIP BOARD - REGULAR MEETING
S July 8, 2025 6:00 PM

W=

W o NG

10.

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS

ROLL CALL

PRESENTATION

A. Introduction of New Police Officers-Brandon Nevills & Tom Coddington
B. 2024 Township Audit-Ali Barnes, Yeo & Yeo

CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS
TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

CONSENT AGENDA

Communications

Minutes-June 17, 2025 Regular Township Board Meeting

Bills

Sanctuary Il Pathway License Agreement with Consumers Energy
MUPUD 22-14-Haslett Village Square-Extension

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 Contract

Permit to Cross Drain - Schultz Pathway Project

2025 JustFOIA Contract Addendum

Ingham County Mutual Police Assistance Agreement
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Appointment

TrIommuowe

HEARINGS
A. Amendment to the Haslett Village Square Brownfield Plan

ACTION ITEMS
A. Ordinance 2025-04-Parking Ordinance Updates - Final Adoption

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Amendment to the Haslett Village Square Brownfield Plan

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. Appointment of Supervisor Pro
Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board
by contacting: Township Manager Tim Dempsey, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M148864 Township Hall ~ f,\
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. \ A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us



Charter
Township of
Meridian
Audit Results

PRESENTED BY

Ali N. Barnes
CPA, CGFM

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2024

P2
YEO & YEO

CPAS & ADVISORS




Audit Opinion

 The purpose of an audit

* Unmodified opinion
 Highest level of assurance

* Management’s responsibility
 Preparation and fair presentation in accordance with GAAP
 Design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls

e Auditors’ responsibility

* Express opinions on the financial statements based on our
audit

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




General Fund Revenues

'III 1 -‘

Licenses and

$16,000,000
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000

S-

H 2020
W 2021

2022
W 2023
W 2024

Property Taxes

$13,666,496
$14,049,533
$14,346,847
$14,944,251
$15,917,493

Intergovernmental

$3,852,840
$5,128,461
$5,522,877
$5,232,949
$5,436,726

Charges for
Services

$3,157,065
$3,387,104
$3,785,897
$4,102,507
$3,999,953

* Includes bond issuance sources of $5,295,434 related to drain assessments.

YEO & YEO

Permits
$1,480,221
$2,209,855
$1,885,717
$1,741,709
$1,983,060

All Other

$1,083,664
$985,951
$5,904,550
$2,031,285
$3,992,283

LET’S THRIVE



General Fund Expenditures

General Government

$16,000,000

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

S-

H 2020
W 2021

2022
W 2023
W 2024

* Includes capital outlay expenditures of $5,295,434 related to drain assessments.

$8,226,364
$6,483,253
$11,932,822
$6,740,293
$7,595,628

Public Safety
$12,722,146
$12,620,686
$13,706,480
$14,641,439
$17,999,757

** Includes transfer out of $3,500,000 to establish a capital projects fund.

YEO & YEO

IIil_l

All Other
$1,980,434
$3,185,910
$3,172,195
$3,459,313
$3,925,678

Operating Transfers
$600,000
$511,300
$530,000

$4,030,000
$1,237,594

LET’S THRIVE




General Fund — Fund Balance

$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

2020 2021 2022* 2023 2024

mmm Annual Revenue Annual Expenditures =—e=Fund Balance =—e=Fund Balance - Unassigned

* Revenue and expenditures exclude $5,295,434 related to drain assessments.

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE



General Fund — Components of Fund Balance

$16,000,000

]
$14,000,000
I

$12,000,000

$10,000,000 E—
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
S-

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

B Unassigned Assigned B Committed B Nonspendable

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




Water Fund Activity

$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

S-
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

I Operating revenue Operating expenses —e— Unrestricted net position*

* Net of investment in East Lansing-Meridian Water and Sewer Authority.

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE



Sewer Fund Activity

$10,000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

S-
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

I Operating revenue Operating expenses —e—Unrestricted net position

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




Employee’s Retirement Pension Plan

$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000

$1,000,000

$(1,000,000)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

B Fiduciary net position Total pension liability —e—Net pension liability (asset)

Note: This plan is closed.

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan

$100,000,000
$90,000,000
$80,000,000
$70,000,000
$60,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000
$20,000,000

$10,000,000

S-
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

 Fiduciary net position Total pension liability =~ =—e=Net pension liability
Note: Measurement date has a one-year lag.

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




Postemployment Health Benefits Plan

$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000

$1,000,000

S-
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

i Fiduciary net position Total OPEB liability =~ ==e==Net OPEB liability

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




Internal Controls and Compliance

e Material Weaknesses
 Budget non-compliance
* Related to new lease agreement
 Audit and Prior Period Adjustments
 C(Capital assets —road
* (Capital assets — water/sewer capital contributions
e Utility billing

* No Significant Deficiencies

* No ARPA Examination Findings

No Management Comments

YEO & YEO 12 LET’S THRIVE



Let’s thrive.

Through our family of companies, we work
with you to achieve your unique goals.

VISIT
yeoandyeo.com

CALL
800.968.0010

EMAIL
ali.barnes@yeoandyeo.com

YEO & YEO LET’S THRIVE




9.A

CONSENT AGENDA
BOARD
COMMUNICATIONS




/Em FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
MERIDIAN ? June 17, 2025

TOWNSHIP‘?

CONTACT: Amber Clark, Neighborhoods &
Economic Development Director
517.853.4568 | clark@meridian.mi.us

Meridian Township to Host 5th Annual Juneteenth Event
Seben Dance, Global Village, and Tony Thompson & Friends Lead Celebration

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, Mich. - Meridian Township continues its tradition of honoring Juneteenth. On
Friday, June 20, the Township will host its 5% annual Juneteenth Celebration from 3:00 pm to 7:00 pm at
the Marketplace on the Green Pavilion (1995 Central Park Drive, Okemos).

This event is free and open to the public. Community members can enjoy a day of live music, dancing,
yard games, small business vendors, and more. Free parking will be available in the Meridian Mall
parking lot.

Musical Lineup:
e 4:00 pm to 5:00 pm | Seben Dance
e 5:00 pm to 6:00 pm | Global Village
e 6:00 pmto 7:00 pm | Tony Thompson & Friends

For questions, please contact Neighborhoods and Economic Development Director Amber Clark at
clark@meridian.mi.us or 517.853.4568.

Township offices will also be closed on Thursday, June 19 in recognition of the Juneteenth Federal and State
holiday. For additional information, visit the Township website at www.meridian.mi.us/Juneteenth.

The Juneteenth Celebration is made possible through the support of Meridian Township’s 2025 event
sponsors. Sponsors include: Capital Area Transportation Authority (CATA), American House Meridian,
AC&E Rentals, Doc’s Automotive, Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PLC, The Meridian Company, Playmakers,
CBL Properties, Club Pilates, Culver’s of Okemos and DeWitt, Fast Eddie’s Car Wash & Oil Change, Graff
Chevrolet Okemos, Hammond Farms, Meijer, Eyde Development, The Harkness Law Firm, PLLC,
Independent Bank, Midwest Power Equipment, MSUFCU, Retractable Solutions, and School of Rock East
Lansing.

Juneteenth is also made possible through a media partnership with WLNS, WLAJ, and CW-5.

Hit#

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township serves
the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community that

celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles.
—~—— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us


mailto:clark@meridian.mi.us
mailto:clark@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/Juneteenth

m FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
MERID'AN ? June 23, 2025

JOWNSHI P &%
CONTACT: Courtney Wisinski, Parks and Recreation Director
517.853.4604 | wisinski@meridian.mi.us

Meridian Township to Host Celebrate Meridian Festival
Annual Event Offers LIVE Music, Children’s Activities, Drone Show & More!

Meridian Township, MI - Make the most of summer with the Celebrate Meridian Festival, taking
place Thursday, June 26 through Saturday, June 28.

Central Park Drive will be closed between Okemos Road and Marsh Road on Saturday, June
28, beginning at 11:00 am and lasting until approximately 11:00 pm. Trails in Central Park,
Central Park South, and Nancy Moore Park will be closed for the drone show staging area. Free
parking, including handicap parking, will be available at the Meridian Mall.

Festival events will be free and open to the public, but some activities have a fee. Events and activities
include:

e Thursday, June 26 - Children’s Concert
o 5:00 pm - 7:00 pm | Marketplace on the Green (1995 Central Park Drive, Okemos)
= Enjoy live entertainment from BubblesRFun (5:00 pm - 6:00 pm) and
Zippity2Dads (6:00 pm - 7:00pm)
e Friday, June 27 - Teen Night
o 6:00 pm -9:00 pm | Marketplace on the Green
* Live music from School of Rock East Lansing, laser tag, crafts with Capital Area
District Libraries, video game trailer, gaga ball, and food trucks
e Saturday, June 28 - Block Party
o Farmers’ Market
= 8:00 am - 2:00 pm | Meridian Mall parking lot next to the Marketplace on the
Green
o Live Entertainment at Marketplace on the Green
= 4:00 pm-6:30 pm | GEECH
= 7:00 pm - 10:15 pm | Starfarm
o Beer Garden
= 4:00 pm - 11:00 pm | Marketplace on the Green and Central Park Pavilion
(5151 Marsh Road, Okemos). Cash or card accepted
= *Central Park beer garden closes at 9:30 pm
o Food Trucks/Vendors
= 4:00 pm - 11:00 pm | Central Park Drive between Marketplace on the Green
and Central Park
o Children’s Activities
=  4:00 pm - 9:30 pm | Central Park (5151 Marsh Road, Okemos)
= Inflatables, rides, games, and an appearance by the League of Enchantment
» *Unlimited play with $5 wristband. Cash or card accepted

-more-

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities, and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community

that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles.
—~—— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us


mailto:wisinski@meridian.mi.us

m FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
MERIDIAN ? June 23, 2025

JOWNSHI P &%
CONTACT: Courtney Wisinski, Parks and Recreation Director
517.853.4604 | wisinski@meridian.mi.us

e Saturday, June 28 - Block Party (Continued)
o Nokomis Cultural Heritage Center
= 10:00 am - 6:00 pm | Nokomis Cultural Heritage Center (5153 Marsh Road,
Okemos)
* Building tours, jewelry vendors, demonstrations, and more
o Meridian Historical Village
= 4:00 pm - 7:00 pm | Meridian Historical Village (5151 Marsh Road, Okemos)
= Building tours and ice cream social
*  Whoa, Nelly! performing from 5:00 pm to 6:30 pm
o Cultural Stage
= 5:00 pm - 8:00 pm | Meridian Township Municipal Complex Parking Lot
(5151 Marsh Road, Okemos)
» Featuring a variety of performances from cultural groups
o Artand Business Vendors
= 4:00 pm - 9:00 pm | Meridian Township Municipal Complex Parking Lot
o Information Booth
= 2:30 pm - 9:30 pm | Central Park Drive between the Municipal Complex and
the Marketplace on the Green Pavilion
o Drone Show Finale
= 10:15 pm | Marketplace on the Green

For more information, visit www.meridian.mi.us/CelebrateMeridian.

The Celebrate Meridian Festival is made possible through the support of Meridian Township’s 2025
event sponsors. Sponsors include: Capital Area Transportation Authority (CATA), American House
Meridian, AC&E Rentals, Doc’s Automotive, Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PLC, The Meridian Company,
Playmakers, CBL Properties, Club Pilates, Culver’s of Okemos and DeWitt, Fast Eddie’s Car Wash & Oil
Change, Graff Chevrolet Okemos, Hammond Farms, Meijer, Eyde Development, The Harkness Law Firm,
PLLC, Independent Bank, Midwest Power Equipment, MSUFCU, Retractable Solutions, and School of
Rock East Lansing.

Celebrate Meridian is also made possible through a media partnership with WLNS, WLAJ, and CW-5.

H#it#

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities, and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community

that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles.
—~—— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us


mailto:wisinski@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/CelebrateMeridian

From: Angela Demas

To: Michelle Prinz
Cc: Tim Dempsey
Subject: Fw: senior center

Date: Thursday, July 3, 2025 11:59:07 AM

From: Dan Opsommer <opsommer@meridian.mi.us>

Sent: Monday, June 23, 2025 1:03 PM

To:

Cc: Tim Dempsey <dempsey@ meridian.mi.us>; Courtney Wisinski <wisinski@meridian.mi.us>;
Board <Board@meridian.mi.us>

Subject: RE: senior center

Hi Susan,

Thank you for your email. As it relates to your suggestion to construct pathways along Van Atta Rd
and Meridian Rd, the Township has never had future pathway shown on the Pathway Master Plan in
these areas due to public input re: the importance of protecting the trees along these roadways.
Constructing pathway along these roads would also require easements from most of the property
owners due to the road right-of-way (ROW) being exhausted from the road and the ditches that
serve the road in terms of drainage.

As a result, the Township has developed a plan for off-road trails in the eastern third utilizing
Township land preserves, Consumers Energy ROW, and other easements to create contiguous trail
routes. These off-road, paved pathways are shown on the current Pathway Master Plan. There is a
Consumers Energy ROW that runs north/south in-between Van Atta Rd and Cornell Rd. The
Township is planning to use portions of this ROW to construct an off-road, paved trail from Haslett
Road to Legg Park, with trail connections to Van Atta Rd, Cornell Rd, Powell Rd, Tihart Rd, etc. The
Township has secured a grant from Ingham County to construct the first phase of this trail from
Haslett Rd to Tihart Rd. This grant funding is contingent upon the County Trails & Parks Millage being
renewed by voters in 2026.

As it relates to the pathway gap on the north side of Grand River Ave, the Township anticipates that
development will be proposed in the near future that would fill in most of this gap. The Township
will then fill in any remaining gap just east of the developments.

Meridian Township’s Parks and Recreation Department continues to work with our schools districts
to share facility space when it can be accommodated, including the senior center and recreation and
club sponsored youth sports. However, the existing indoor and outdoor recreation facilities cannot
accommodate all of the competing community needs and scheduling conflicts.

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Thanks,



Dan Opsommer
M E R lDl AN Deputy Township Manager
Rl M\_/I—p—‘—?g '/ Director of Public Works & Engineering
opsommer@meridian.mi.us
A Prime Community Work: 517.853.4440 | Fax: 517.853.4099
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

From: Susan McGillicuddy <susanmcgillicuddy@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 20, 2025 8:19 PM

To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.

Subject: senior center

Some people who received this message don't often get email from
. Learn why this is important
Dear Township Board Members:

I cannot make it to your listening sessions, please accept this communication.

As a senior I oppose the senior center project. This year I paid nearly $8,000 in winter taxes
alone, which is ridiculous. The taxes are getting very burdensome when we who are retired
have no weekly income from working. Would rather you spend our tax dollars wisely by
creating a separated pedestrian/bicycle pathway along Van Atta and Meridian Roads and fill in
the gap on Grand River north side, so that we, your residents, can bicycle safely to the off road
trail system without fear of being hit by the speeding cars. It is nearly impossible in the eastern
third part of the township to safely bicycle to our wonderful off road trail system. The traffic
caused from the bridge being replaced on Grand River has made it nearly impossible to ride or
walk along Meridian Road or Van Atta Roads to even get near a trail system. Speeds are
routinely topping 60 mph. The 2 foot paved shoulder is not enough distance from the vehicles
traveling such high speeds especially vehicles with extended mirrors. So many trucks are now
using Meridian Road that the safety which should be your first concern is compromised.

What happened to reciprocity with the school systems regarding community education and
facility use? Seniors previously had access to the gyms, weight rooms, pool, facilities of the
schools when the students were not using them. That made a lot of sense rather than building
or renovation yet another building. Everyone not just seniors need exercise. It doesn't need to
cost more funds,however; giving residents the ability to be outside and enjoy bicycling,
walking in our parks etc..is priceless.

Sincerely,

Susan McGillicuddy



—



From: Angela Demas

To: Michelle Prin
Cc: Tim Dempsey
Subject: Fw: Meridian/Van Atta Roads

Date: Thursday, July 3, 2025 11:58:01 AM

From: Susan McGiIIicuddy—>

Sent: Saturday, June 21, 2025 10:02 AM

To: roads@ingham.org <roads@ingham.org>; Board <Board@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Meridian/Van Atta Roads

Some people who received this message don't often get email from
_Leam why this is important

Ingham County Road Department

Dear ICRD:

I am writing to you to express concerns that I have mostly regarding motorists speeds as that is
what you control along with the state police.

What criteria do you use to decide on the speed of various roads? Having lived in my home
now 34 years and seen the parameters of Meridian Road change regarding whether or not it is
an urban road etc...I have never seen the speed changed. I have seen shoulders paved with the
promise that it would be safer for bicyclists and walkers etc...but never have seen the speed
reduced.

What is the difference between Meridian Road, Van Atta road and Dobie Road? All have
neighborhoods emptying into them..all have park land on them all have multiple driveways on
them the difference is Dobie Road has sidewalks and a lower speed limit of 35. Both Meridian
and Van Atta have varying speeds which make it more difficult for the police to monitor.
Meridian and Van Atta have motorists speeding on them well above the posted 55 which is a
ridiculous speed as it is no longer an agricultural road with little traffic. Meridian and Van
Atta have bicyclists some are children and walkers on them..People cannot access the
township parkland easily for their children to get to soccer practice and ball practice safely.
Yes the township has the responsibility to provide safe walking, bicycling etc..but you to have
a responsibility and that is safety of the roadways and keeping the shoulders mowed and free
of obstruction.



Haslett Road between Meridian and Green also should be reduced. Cars/trucks do not slow
down for the bend yet there are now more neighborhoods emptying into Haslett Road and
more bicyclists and walkers. Yet the speed varies from 55, 45, 35 within a short mile of
roadway. Please reduce it to 40 from Meridian Road to Green so that it is more natural and
easy for people to reduce speeds down to 35. Back in 1996 we had a forum discussing Haslett
road going from 4 lanes down to 3. That has been a blessing. Please continue being thoughtful
and reduce the speeds. Times have changed and so should your criteria if you have any. The
more traffic a road has should reduce the speeds not expand the roads and increase the speeds.
If we ever want to encourage alternative means of travel the speeds have to go down and
pathways added.

I hope you consider this thoughtfully and not just dismiss my comments.

Sincerely,

Susan McGillicuddy



From: Angela Demas

To: Michelle Prinz

Cc: Tim Dempsey

Subject: Fw: Photos & videos relt"d to my pathway maintenance recommendation
Date: Thursday, July 3, 2025 12:01:11 PM

Sent: Thursday, June 26, 2025 12:16 PM

To: Dan Opsommer <opsommer@meridian.mi.us>

Cc: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us>; Parks <Parks@meridian.mi.us>; PW
<dpw@meridian.mi.us>

Subject: Re: Photos & videos relt'd to my pathway maintenance recommendation

Some people who received this message don't often get email from

Dan,
OK, thank you for letting me know that's happening.

Have a great rest of your week.
Tim

1 ) member
TCBA Advocacy Comm. member
Rude of Silence webmaster
LCI #5207

Ride of Silence: www.rideofsilence org
2026 Ride of Silence: Wed. May 20th, 7:00 PM

One day. One time. One world, world wide.
Let the silence roar!

On Thu, Jun 26, 2025 at 8:07 AM Dan Opsommer <opsommer(@meridian.mi.us> wrote:

Hi Tim,

Township staff are reviewing your photos and videos to determine which ones should be referred
to code enforcement versus which ones are the Township’s responsibility. The Township’s crew
will work trimming as time permits.



Please let us know if you have any questions.

We hope you have a wonderful day,

4 Dan Opsommer

| N
TOWNSHI P&%4/ Deputy Township Manager
=— -

A Prime Community Director of Public Works & Engineering

opsommer@meridian.mi.us

Work: 517.853.4440 | Fax: 517.853.4099

5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

From: Tim Potter

Sent: Wednesday, June 25, 2025 11:18 PM

To:_Dan Opsommer <opsommer@meridian.mi.us>

Cc: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us>; Parks <Parks@meridian.mi.us>; PW <dpw@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Re: Photos & videos relt'd to my pathway maintenance recommendation

I would appreciate the courtesy of a reply to my email on Monday.

Thank you in advance.

Sent from Tim Potter's mobile

On Jun 23, 2025, at 12:11 PM, Tim Potter |||

wrote:

Dear Dan & members of the Township Board,



I appreciated the opportunity during the Listening Session on June 10th to ask
questions and make a recommendation to move up the annual pathway
maintenance earlier in the season when most residents are out using the paths
OR to consider adding a 2nd system-wide pruning to the schedule.

The attendees were encouraged to submit complaints re: pathway problems like
overgrown brush to dpw(@meridian.mi.us, so while biking around the township
since that meeting I've managed to collect a bunch of photos and videos of Mer.
Twp. Pathways that already need maintenance and this is mid-June.

The photos and vidos: |

_ areas will be after a couple more months.

Better maintenance of our township pathways, which we've invested so much in
to construct, is something residents expect & it's safer for users which can help
the Township avoid potential legal expenses from injury lawsuits.

I've added captions to the photos and videos to describe the locations.

Thank you for your consideration.
Tim Potter

st sfesk ok sk sk skok ok skeskokoskoskoskoskok sk skokokokskkok

MSU Bike Advisory Comm. member

TCBA Advocacy Comm. member
Ride of Silence webmaster

LCI #5207
Ride of Silence: www.rideofsilence.org
2026 Ride of Silence: Wed. May 20th, 7:00 PM

One day. One time. One world, world wide.
Let the silence roar!



m
LR,

="

9B

CONSENT AGENDA
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES

PROPOSED MOTION:

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of June 17, 2025 as submitted. (1)

ALTERNATE MOTION:

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of June 17, 2025 with the following
amendment(s):[insert amendments]




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT-
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room

TUESDAY, JUNE 17, 2025, 6:00PM

PRESENT: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee
Sundland, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Deputy Manager Opsommer, Fire Chief Hamel, Communications Manager Diehl],
Deputy Clerk Gordon, Human Services Specialist Love, Human Resources Director
Tithof

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Supervisor Hendrickson called the June 17, 2025, Regular Township Board meeting to order at
6:00 pm.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS
Supervisor Hendrickson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL
Deputy Clerk Gordon called the roll of the Board. Supervisor Hendrickson, Treasurer
Deschaine, Clerk Demas, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson
present at 6:01 pm.

All board members present

4. Presentation
A. Introduction of new firefighters - Owen VanDerBos and Zoe Hedrick

Chief Hamel introduced the new firefighter paramedics.

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 6:05 pm.
Beth Hubbell spoke about the listening session and senior center.
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 6:13 pm.

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

Human Services Specialist Love gave an update for Meridian Cares regarding the Dobie Road
apartment fire.

Fire Chief Hamel gave updates to the Board about the Dobie Road apartment fire.

Page 1



7.

8.

Deputy Manager Opsommer gave updates on:
o Acknowledged and thanked neighboring jurisdictions for their mutual aid for the Dobie
Road fire.
Noted how residents can donate to help families impacted by the fire.
Township offices will be closed on Thursday, June 19.
Juneteenth Celebration is Friday, June 20.
Celebrate Meridian is June 26-28.
14 miles of roads will receive asphalt rejuvenator treatment and more information
available on website.
e Senior and Community Center FAQ document updated and available on website.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Clerk Demas noted that absent voter ballots will be available beginning June 26 and absent
voter ballots will be sent to Uniformed Military and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act
(UOCAVA) voters June 21 for the August 5, 2025 Special Election. She attended the MAMC
summer conference and Land Preservation Advisory Board (LPAB) meeting and will be holding
a democracy class on July 3 for the community.

Treasurer Deschaine noted that tax bills go out July 1, thanked residents for attending the
listening session.

Trustee Lentz attended the Environmental Commission meeting, noted that the Commission
awarded Green Grants.

Supervisor Hendrickson attended the Push-In ceremony with several Board members for the
new fire engines.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the Agenda. Supported by Trustee Wilson.
VOICE VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer Deschaine,
Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee
Wilson
NAYS: NONE

Motion carried: 7-0

CONSENT AGENDA

Trustee Trezise moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Supported by Clerk Demas.
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer
Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise,
and Trustee Wilson
NAYS: NONE

Motion carried: 7-0

Page 2



10. HEARINGS
A. 2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #21
Deputy Manager Opsommer gave background information about the Order to Maintain.
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 6:29 pm.

Rx Harrington spoke about sidewalk maintenance and possible ways to reduce to reduce
cost.

Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 6:31 pm.
11. ACTION ITEMS
A. 2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #21 - Resolution #3

Board members asked about the average cost estimates and circumstances under which
property owners can refuse sidewalk work.

Deputy Manager Opsommer provided clarity to Board questions.
Clerk Demas moved to suspend the rules. Supported by Treasurer Deschaine.

VOICE VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer
Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise,
and Trustee Wilson

NAYS: NONE
Motion carried: 7-0

Trustee Trezise moved TO APPROVE THE 2025 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #21, RESOLUTION #3, WHICH APPROVES REPAIR
AND MAINTENANCE OF SIDEWALK IN PORTIONS OF THE FOLLOWING AREAS: BIRD
STRAWBERRY FARM ESTATES, BIRD STRAWBERRY FARM ESTATES #2, BIRD
STRAWBERRY FARM ESTATES #3, CHIPPEWA WOODS, COUNTRY GREEN, COUNTRY
PLACE, COUNTRY PLACE #2, COUNTRY PLACE #3, GEORGETOWN, GEORGETOWN #2,
TRAILS AT LAKE LANSING #3, WOOD VALLEY #3, WILKSHIRE, WILKSHIRE #1,
WILKSHIRE #2, WOOD VALLEY, WOOD VALLEY #2, WOOD VALLEY #3, WOOD VALLEY
#4, WOODSIDE ESTATES, WOODSIDE ESTATES #2, WOODSIDE ESTATES #4,
WOODSIDE ESTATES #5, AND WOODSIDE ESTATES #6, WHICH ARE LOCATED IN
SECTIONS 2, 11, 12, AND 14, AND TO DEFRAY THE COST BY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT;
APPROVES THE COST ESTIMATE OF $31,911.24; DETERMINES THE SPECIAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT; DIRECTS THE MAKING OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; AND
DIRECTS NOTICES BE SENT TO THE PROPERTY OWNERS INDICATING THEY HAVE 20
DAYS TO REPLACE OR MAKE SAFE THE DEFECTIVE SIDEWALK. Supported by Trustee
Wilson.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer

Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise,
and Trustee Wilson

Page 3



NAYS: NONE
Motion carried: 7-0

12. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. DDA Task Force Appointment

Supervisor Hendrickson provided information about the Downtown Development
Authority (DDA) task force created regarding the development of the Village of Okemos.

Treasurer Deschaine offered to serve on the task force with consensus from the Board.

Trustee Sundland offered to serve as an alternate on the task force with consensus from the
Board.

B. Board Retreat Follow Up Discussion

Treasurer Deschaine provided information about the April 12 Board Retreat and the report
from Larry Merrill.

Board members discussed the retreat and the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The
Board discussed strategic planning and the timeline for developing a Board annual plan.

C. Board Goals

Board members discussed Board goals and values from the June 3 Township Board Special
Meeting.

The Board discussed rearranging the order Board goals will be displayed.

The Board discussed limitations of housing as a Board goal and instead having this be
included in the welcoming community value. The Board discussed defining the value of a
welcoming community.

The Board discussed the timeline for establishing annual Board goals along with the annual

budget.

13. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comments at 7:31 pm.

Ben Miller spoke on behalf of Comcast regarding the Comcast Local Franchise Agreement
Renewal.

Rx Harrington spoke in support of culture and arts as a Board goal.
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comments at 7:35 pm.

14. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Page 4



15.

Treasurer Deschaine welcomed Trustee Lentz to the East Lansing-Meridian Water & Sewer
Authority (ELMWSA) Board of Trustees.

Trustee Lentz brought peaches from the Georgia Peach Truck for the public.
Clerk Demas spoke about culture and arts as a Board value.

Deputy Manager Opsommer informed the Board the June 10 Township Board Listening Session
summary is being drafted.

ADJOURNMENT

Treasurer Deschaine moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Lentz

VOICE VOTE YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas,
Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Lentz,
Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson
NAYS: NONE

Motion carried: 5-0

The meeting adjourned at 7:39 pm

Scott Hendrickson Angela Demas
Township Supervisor Township Clerk

Page 5



TOWNSHIPAYAL/ 9.C
\\__/ﬁ
To: Board Members
From: Bernadette Blonde, Finance Director
Date: July 8, 2025
Charter Township of Meridian
Board Meeting
7/8/2025
MOVED THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE TOWNSHIP
INVOICES/EXPENSES AS FOLLOWS:
COMMON CASH S 783,207.10
PUBLIC WORKS S 464,995.97
TRUST & AGENCY S 33,868.49
TOTAL CHECKS: S 1,282,071.56
CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS
06/11/2025 to 07/02/2025 S 16,115.88
TOTAL PURCHASES: § 1,298,187.44
ACH PAYMENTS S 1,514,694.98

) ) ) S—— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us




07/03/2025 11:00 AM
User: GRAHAM
DB: Meridian

Vendor Name

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

BANK CODE: GF53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

Description Amount Check #
1. 65-A DISTRICT COURT
CLINTON CO - COURT DOCKET #24-BT1189 300.00 114920
2.AT & T
JUN 7 - JUL 6 2025 - INTERNET F2 149.00 114921
JUN 7 - JUL 6 2025 - INTERNET Pl 195.25 114921
JUN 9 - JUL 8 2025 - INTERNET F1 195.25 114921
JUN 15 - JUL 14 2025 - INTERNET S1 195.25 114921
TOTAL 734.75
3. AIS CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT
FIRE - 150 - REPAIRS ON 4/10/25 & 4/29/25 10,715.65 114922
4, ALLGRAPHICS CORP
SUMMER DAY CAMP SHIRTS FOR CAMPERS AND STAFF - HAR 1,680.35
ADDITIONAL CAMP SHIRTS FOR HARRIS NATURE CENTER 32.00
STAFF SHIRTS FOR HARRIS NATURE CENTER 419.69
CELEBRATE MERIDIAN VOLUNTEER SHIRTS 2025 738.75
CAN WRAPS FOR CELEBRATE MERIDIAN 2025 795.00
TOTAL 3,665.79
5. AMERICAN RENTALS
6/21/25 TO 7/21/25 - TRANSFER STATION PORTABLE TOI 85.00
6. ANDREW CALLIS
ATOMIC BOOGALOO PERF 7/16/2025 - 6:30PM - 8:30PM - 700.00 114923
7. ANN GAULTNEY
CANCELED PAVILION RESERVATION 08/03/2024 REFUND 200.00
8. ANTHONY D THOMPSON
6/20/2025 6PM TO 7PM JUNETEENTH PERFORMANCE 1,000.00 114918
9. ASAP PRINTING
YARD SIGNS FOR 2025 SPRING RECYCLING EVENT 242,25
10. AT & T
JUN 7 - JUL 6 2025 - TELEPHONE + INTERNET M1 83100 1,253.32 114914
MAY 11 - JUN 10 2025 - INTERNET ASE 8310008214218 3,763.02 114924
TOTAL 5,016.34
11. AUTO VALUE OF EAST LANSING
WATER UNIT #6 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 119.95
UNIT #151 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 32.86
SHOP SUPPLY - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 59.09
CREDIT RETURN - FLEET REPAIR PARTS (800.65)
SHOP SUPPLY - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 19.29
UNIT #711 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 61.84
PARKS UNIT #689 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 9.36
FIRE UNIT #134- FLEET REPAIR PARTS 125.88
STOCK - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 22.99
STOCK - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 309.99
FIRE UNIT #663 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 132.99
FIRE UNIT #134 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 16.10
STOCK & FIRE UNIT #91 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 232.44
CREDIT V-BELTS - FLEET REPAIR PARTS (58.39)
POLICE UNIT #746 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 156.94
STOCK & UNIT #721 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 337.83
POLICE UNIT #721 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 89.39
STOCK - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 155.88
SHOP SUPPLY - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 146.70
SHOP SUPPLIES - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 20.59
UNIT #134 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 17.38
FIRE UNIT #135 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 157.59
FIRE UNIT #663 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 12.39
FIRE UNIT #663 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 7.48
UNIT #151 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 128.55
UNIT #151 - FLEET REPAIR PARTS 35.14
TOTAL 1,549.60
12. AXON ENTERPRISE, INC
2025 PRO LICENSE BUNDLE (3 ADDITIONAL) 1,726.88
13. BARKHAM & CO
JUNE 2025 - MOWINGS BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN PATHWAYS 5,680.00




07/03/2025 11:00 AM

User: Gl.?AI'{AM EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

Vendor Name

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Description Amount Check #
14. BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT
06/01/2025 TO 06/30/2025 STREETLIGHT SERVICE 824.39
15. BOUNDTREE MEDICAL
ORDER #106227542 - MEDICAL/AMBULANCE SUPPLIES 319.46
ORDER 106264932 - MISC. AMBULANCE SUPPLIES 4,444 .35
TOTAL 4,763.81
16, BOYNTON FIRE SAFETY SERVICE
TOWNER - RE-CERTIFICATION BACK FLOW TESTING 30.00
17. BRIGHTLINE TECHNOLOGIES
2025 BUILDING WIRING - PART 1 OUT OF 2 1,800.00
JULY 2025 QUICKHELP SUBSCRIPTION 1,477.00
JULY 2025 ACRONIS BACKUP SERVER 2,518.00
JULY 2025~ AUVIK NETWORK & SAAS MONITORING & MANAG 1,055.00
JULY 2025 BRIGHTLINE HPE 36M II SUBSCRIPTION 4,276.00
TOTAL 11,126.00
18. BUBBLES R FUN LLC
2025 CELEBRATE KIDS AREA ENTERTAINMENT 600.00
19. BULL ENTERPRISES
FEB 2025 -~ JANITORIAL SERVICES TWP BLDGS 8,867.00
MAY 2025 - JANITORIAL SERVICES TWP BLDGS 8,867.00
TOTAL 17,734.00
20, CAPITAL AREA TRANSPORTATION
REDI-RIDE BUS PASSES - CARES PROGRAM 600.00 114943
21. CARLISLE WORTMAN ASSOC
APRIL 2025 CHIPPEWA MIDDLE SCHOOL - PLAN REVIEW SE 1,080.00
22. CATHERINE EISERT
6:30 TO 8:30 PM - 2025 SUMMER CONCERT SERIES PERFO 1,400.00 114944
23. CDW
CRADLEPOINT NETCLOUD RENEWAL UNTIL 12/31/26 4,699.36 114925
24. CHICKADEE GOATMILK SOAP
, FARMERS MARKET 35.00 114959
25. CITY OF EAST LANSING
JOINT PURCHASE METRO FIRE DEPT COMMUNICATION LINE 2,000.00
04.01.25 TO 06.30.25 - MEP PERMIT REVENUE TO CITY 125,334.70
TOTAL 127,334.70
26. CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC.
SRT VEST 285.00 114926
27. COLOR OF SOUND AUDIO
6/20/2025 - 4PM - 7PM JUNETEENTH PERF COLOR OF SOU 1,900.00 114927
28. COMCAST
JUL 1 2025 TO JULY 31 2025 - INTERNET + TV Ml 637.90 114928
JUN 29 - JUL 28 2025 - TELEPHONE + INTERNET S2 135.59 114928
JUN 29 - JUL 28 2025 - TV Pl 38.43 114928
JUN 19 - JUL 18 2025 - INTERNET SCADA 309.90 114928
TOTAL 1,121.82
29, CONSUMERS ENERGY
ACCT 1030-4632-3111 - EMERGENCY UTILITY ASSISTANCE 300.00 114945
ACCT 3000 0011 8327 - LICENSE OK/HULETT PTHWY AGRM 526.71 114929
ACCT 3000 1350 2202 - LICENSE FEE OK HULETT PATHWA 686.39 114929
TOTAL 1,513.10
30. CREATIVE FINANCIAL STAFFING LLC
WEEK ENDING 6/15/2025 TEMP STAFFING SERV - UTILITY 1,496.00
CONVERSION FEE - UB TEMPORARY STAFFING SERVICES 3,771.79
TOTAL 5,267.79
31. CRYSTAL FLASH
ACCT 97833 - FLEET FUEL 16,474.70 114960
32. CRYSTAL HOFFMAN
PERFORMANCE 7/16/2025 - 4PM - 6PM - SUMMER CONCERT 150.00 114930
33. DAN HENRY DISTRIBUTING CO.
2025 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN BEER GARDEN 6,841.95 114946




07/03/2025 11:01 AM INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
User: GRAHAM EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025
DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
34. DAVID BRITTON
LAST ONE OUT PERF 7/30/25 6:30 PM - 8:30 PM -~ SUMM 500.00 114931
35. DAVID CHAPMAN AGENCY
ADD 2025 FORD F450 TO INSURANCE 592.00
36. DELUX TENTS AND EVENTS, LLC
2025 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN FESTIVAL TENT, TABLE AND C 1,599.00 114947
37. DOMINIQUE HOUSE
FACE PAINT/HENNA VENDOR 2025 JUNETEENTH FESTIVAL 800.00 114948
FACE PAINT/HENNA VENDOR 2025 CELEBRATE TEEN NIGHT 330.00
TOTAL 1,130.00
38. DON MIDDLEBROOK
PERFORMANCE 7/23/2025 - 4PM - 6PM - SUMMER CONCERT 150.00 114932
39. ELECTRICAL TERMINAL SERVICE
TINNED COPPER LUG KIT - MOTOR POOL 264.80 114949
MP - SUPPLIES - LIGHTS 207.02 114949
MP- SUPPLIES - WIRE 80.57 114949
O-RING KIT - MOTOR POOL 155.77 114949
TOTAL 708.16
40. FD HAYES ELECTRIC
OKEMOS LIBRARY -~ LOT LIGHT REPAIRS 4,186.00
41. FIREFLY DRONE SHOWS LLC
2025 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN DRONE SHOW 13,300.00
42. FIRST RESPONSE LLC
LEADERSHIP CLASS (SESSION 1) - 6/5 & 6/6/2025 2,000.00
43. FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER
SERVICES THRU MAY 30 2025 - MSU TO LL PH. 1 - RIVE 5,214.50
44, FORESIGHT GROUP
WATER BILLS 4/15/2025 AND POSTAGE 484.82 114950
WATER BILLS 6/17/2025 AND POSTAGE 508.93
WATER BILLS 7/1/2025 AND POSTAGE 1,504.24
TOTAL 2,497.99
45, FRIEDLAND INDUSTRIES INC
2 CURBIES CARDBOARD PICK UP 35.00
46. GRANGE ACRES
EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE 120.00 114915
47, GRANGER
HNC ACCT 10159300 - JUNE 2025 - RUBBISH DISPOSAL S 74.76 114933
ACCT 15896205 & 15896200 - MAY/JUNE 2025 - RUBBISH 33.63 114933
MUN BLDG ACCT 17334070 - JUNE 2025 - RECYCLING SER 89.91 114933
GAYLORD C SMITH - MAY/JUNE 2025 ~ RUBBISH DISPOSAL 33.97 114933
TOWN HALL/PUB SAFETY - JUNE 2025 - RUBBISH DISPOSA 143.38 114933
GAYLORD C SMITH - JUNE 2025 - RUBBISH/RECYCLE DISP 358.83 114933
S FIRE ACCT 1106300 - JUNE 2025 - RUBBISH DISPOSAL 104.15 114933
C FIRE ACCT 2509750 - JUNE 2025 - RUBBISH DISPOSAL 136.33 114933
ACCT 25211200 - PARKS - EXTRA DUMPSTER @ SERVICE C 123.67 114933
TOTAL 1,098.63
48, GRANGER WASTE SERVICES
2025 ~ SEASONAL TRASH SERVICE IN PARKS 404,92
TEMP DUMPSTER 2025 CELEBRATE 528.12
TOTAL 933.04

49, GREAT LAKES INTERIOR & DESIGN

PSB INTERIOR BLINDS 1ST FLOOR 651.00
50. GREATER LANSING FOOD BANK
2025 FOOD BANK GARDEN PROJECT 5,000.00
51. HAMMOND FARMS
BRUSH DUMP FEE - PARKS 121.00
52. HIGH CALIBER KARTING INC
RENTAL ON 12/13/2024 - TWP HOLIDAY EVENT 250.00 114958

53. HOBBS & BLACK ASSOCIATES INC
SERV THRU MAY 31 2025 - FIRE DORM ADDITION ARCHITE 5,572.50



07/03/2025 11:01 AM
User: GRAHAM

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
Vendor Name
Description Amount Check #
54, HUTSON INC OF MICHIGAN
MP - PARKS - 91 1,220.52
MP - PARKS -91 541.33
TOTAL 1,761.85
55. INGHAM COUNTY FIRE CHIEFS ASSOC
MUSAR AWARENESS & OPS LEVEL ROPE RESCUE COURSE (FF 200.00
56. JEFFORY BROUGHTON
RADIO WORK IN NEW ENGINE 740.00
57. KATIE LOVE
EMERGENCY CARES PROGRAM REIMBURSEMENT 98.11 114951
58. KCI
BLUE BALLOT ENVELOPES - JOB 181516 1,909.00
59. KEITH MINAYA
PERFORMANCE 7/30/2025 - 4PM - 6PM - SUMMER CONCERT 150.00 114934
60. KIMBALL MIDWEST
MP - MISC LOCKNUTS/BOLTS/ STOCK 853.00
MP - MISC WASHERS/SCREWS/PARTS STOCK 568.42
TOTAL 1,421.42
61. LAFONTAINE FORD OF LANSING
MP - FIRE UNIT #134 151.83
MP - POLICE -694 766.18
MP - POLICE -721 389.20
MP - WHEEL ASSEMBLY - UNIT 668 349.20
MP - FRONT ARM ASSEMBLY - UNIT #680 518.40
MP- SENSOR KIT- UNIT #668 55.19
SHIELD - POLICE - UNIT #694 94.57
BRAKE PADS AND ROTORS FOR STOCK 404.40
SHIELD - POLICE - UNIT 716 88.06
MP - CORE RETURN CREDIT (100.00)
TOTAL 2,717.03
62. LANSING SANITARY SUPPLY INC
PARKS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,924.89
MISC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 912.51
PARKS PAPER TOWEL ROLLS SUPPLIES 531.22
TOTAL 3,368.62
63. LANSING UNIFORM COMPANY
OFFICER BOOTS - HEINEMANN 219.95
FIRE UNIFORMS (IRELAND) 435.70
FIRE UNIFORMS (GONZALES) 115.90
FIRE UNIFORMS (VANDERBOS) 570.50
CRABRB/SCHAEDING/VANDERMOLEN/GORDON/STOCK - MISC UN 1,350.70
FIRE UNIFORMS (LAFAYETTE) 176.85
OFFICER BOOTS - CODDINGTON 219.95
TOTAL 3,089.55
64 . LATCHAW PRODUCTIONS
JULY 2, 2025 4:00 PM-6:00 PM SUMMER CONCERT SERIE 150.00 114968
PERFORMANCE 6/28/25 - 4:00 PM TO 6:30 PM 500.00 114935
TOTAL 650.00
65. LAWN STARS GROUP LLC
MAY 2025 - GLENDALE - MOWING 5,173.80
JUNE 2025 - GLENDALE MOWING 5,173.80
TOTAL 10,347.60
66. LEAK PETROLEUM EQUIPMENT INC
6/4/2025 SERVICE A/C SYSTEM REPAIRS 430.07
ANNUAL HOIST/AC INSPECTIONS AND REPAIRS 741.98
TOTAL 1,172.05
67. LEROY HARVEY
WOAH, NELLY PERF 5:00 PM TO 6:30 PM - CELEBRATE ME 250.00 114936




07/03/2025 11:01 AM
User: GRAHAM

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
Vendor Name
Description Amount Check #
68. LEXISNEXIS CLAIMS SOLUTIONS INC
2025 IEYTEK MAINTENANCE POLICE ECITATION 2,003.40 114952
69. LISKEY'S AUTO & TRUCK SERVICE INC
FRONT END ALIGNMENT - FIRE - UNIT #701 118.25
70. MACKENZIE DERHAMMER
PERFORMANCE 5/31/25 - PRIDE FESTIVAL 100.00 114937
71. MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO
JULY 2025 LIFE/DISABILITY INSURANCE 3,965.61 114961
72. MAGDA INTERNATIONAL LLC
OPTICOM SAFER STREETS GRANT WRITING SERVICES 2,250.00
73: MAGDALENE BREWER
PERFORMANCE 5/31/25 - PRIDE FESTIVAL 100.00 114938
74. MANNIK AND SMITH GROUP INC
SERV THRU MAY 9 2025 - GREEN BURIAL CEMETERY RESEA 453.00
75. MARTIN BRAMAN
FARMERS MARKET 22.00
76. MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS OF
JUNE 2025 COLLECTION FEE FROM AMBULANCE BILLINGS 8,916.51
77. MEI TOTAL ELEVATOR SERVICES
CUST #MI1767 - POLICE - ELEVATOR REPAIRS 3,656.42
78. MICHAEL PRELESNIK, LLC
2025 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN FESTIVAL RIDES AND GAME TR 3,100.00 114953
79. MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE
7/1/2025-7/1/2026 POLICY PREMIUM #5000880-25 55,482.70 114916
80. MICHIGAN PAVING
2024 MILL & FILL LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM CONTRACT 161,791.80
81. MICHIGAN SEPTIC LLC
JUNE 2025 - HNC PUMP OUT PIT TOILETS 383.00
82. MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT
MP - POLICE - CENTER CONSOLES 682.00
2025 POLICE UNIT #746 INTERCEPTOR UPFITTING 5,951.00
MP - POLICE UNIT #746 - WINDOW TINT 475.00
TOTAL 7,108.00
83. MIDWEST POWER EQUIPMENT
STARTER CORD- PARKS - UNIT #87 7.99
84. MILLENNIA TECHNOLOGIES
MITEL DESKPHONE DISPLAY ADJUSTMENTS 32.50
TROUBLE FREE VOIP - BRONZE - 2020 5 YRBA EXCLUDED 65.00
TOTAL 97.50
85. MSU VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER
05/15/2025 - K9 VET CARE-ARES 128.70
86. MY GREEN MICHIGAN LLC
JUNE 2025 COMPOST SERVICE AT MARKETPLACE 177.00
87. NATHAN LAFAYETTE
REIMB PARAMEDIC LICENSE RENEWAL FEE 25.00
88. ON DEMAND MOSQUITO MAN INC
MOSQUITO TREATMENT - PARKS/BUILDINGS/GROUNDS 1,720.00
89. OVERHEAD DOOR OF LANSING
BUILDINGS - CENTRAL FIRE - REAR BAY DOOR "B" 325.00
ALL BUILDINGS -PM INSPECTIONS 1,200.00
ALL BUILDINGS - OVERHEAD DOOR PM INSPECTIONS 150.00
MUNICIPAL - GATE REPAIR 6/17/2025 @ CLERKS OFFICE 225.00
ALL BUILDINGS - OVERHEAD DOOR PM INSPECTIONS 450.00
ALL BUILDINGS - OVERHEAD DOOR PM INSPECTIONS 300.00
6/17/2025 - CLERK/TREASURER AREA GATE REPAIRS 367.72
NORTH FIRE - OVERHEAD DOOR REPAIR 921.60
TOTAL 3,939.32
90. PAWSOME PETS OKEMOS LLC
K9 DOG FOOD 66.98
91. PEOPLEFACTS LLC .
APRIL 2025 CREDIT CHECKS 16.67
MAY 2025 CREDIT CHECKS 64.34
TOTAL 81.01
92, PER MAR SECURITY SERVICES
SERVICE CENTER - SECURITY SERVICE CALL 209.50 114962



07/03/2025 11:01 AM
User: GRAHAM

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
Vendor Name
Description Amount Check #
93. PLANET X INC
DEPOSIT FOR CELEBRATE MERIDIAN TEEN NIGHT ACTIVITI 695.00 114939
94, PLANTE & MORAN, PLLC
PROF SERV THRU JUNE 11 2025 - FINANCE -TEMPORARY S 1,890.00
95, PLM LAKE & LAND MANAGEMENT
2025 HERBICIDE TREATMENT LAKE LANSING SAD 18,150.00
96. PROGRESSIVE AE
SERVICES THRU MAY 31 2025 - 2025 LAKE LANSING SAD 2,579.58
97. PRO-TECH MECHANICAL SERVICES
2025 HVAC SERVICES - PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 4,206.25
W/0O 56428 - MUNICIPAL - HVAC UNIT 4 REPAIRS 1,000.80
W/0 56455 - SOUTH FIRE - HVAC REPAIRS 468.54
W/O 56433 - POLICE - AIR COMPRESSOR FOR HVAC 599,90
W/0 56491 - POLICE - HVAC REPAIRS 985.00
W/O 56511 - POLICE - CLEAN COILS ON CONDENSOR 392.50
W/O 56552 - POLICE - REPAIRS TO HVAC 1,755.67
W/0 56559 - CLEAN AND REPAIR LIEBERT UNIT FOR SERV 956.20
W/O 56474 - MUNCIPAL - BOILER REPAIRS 683.80
TOTAL 11,048.66
98. PRO-TECH SECURITY SALES
' 3 BALLISTIC VESTS 4,087.00 114963
99. PURITY CYLINDER GASES INC
MEDICAL OXYGEN & QUARTERLY CYLINDER RENTAL CHARGE 473.43
100 QUALITY TIRE INC
MP TIRE DISPOSAL 56.00
TIRES - POLICE - UNIT 717 764.00
MP - AMBULANCE TIRES - STOCK 893.06
TOTAL 1,713.06
101 REBECCA PAYNE
MEALS REIMBURSEMENT 23.56 114964
102 RECDESK LLC
RECREATION SUBSCRIPTION AND INITIAL SET-UP 1,200.00
103 RED OAK STUMP GRINDING
STUMP GRINDING FOR 9 STUMPS IN VARIOUS PARKS 1,050.00
104 REDWOOD LANDSCAPING
JUNE 2025 - MUNICIPAL CAMPUS LANDSCAPING BED SPRIN 2,625.00
105 SA SMITH PAVING & TRUCKING INC
GF 2025 ASPHALT SPOT REPAIR 7,059.04
106 SERTAS BLACK ROSE LLC
PERFORMANCE 7/2/2025 - 6:30PM - 8:30PM - SUMMER CO 600.00 114940
107 SHAHEEN CHEVROLET INC
MP - FIRE - 134 365.89 114954
MP- FIRE - UNIT 701 427.43 114954
MP - FIRE - UNIT 663 107.76 114954
MP - POLICE - HEAD LAMP STOCK 1,610.44
MP - FIRE - UNIT 663 441.46 114954
CABLE - FIRE UNIT #135 101.84
BOLTS/LEVER/BRACKET - FIRE UNIT #135 34.51
TOTAL 3,089.33
108 SHILA KIANDER
FLOWER - 7/10/2025 - ASSESSING CONTINUING ED 50.00
109 SHJ CONSTRUCTION GROUP LLC
PB23-0403 AND PB23- 0422 - CANCELLED PERMITS 80% 7,300.00 114965
110 SMART HOMES INC
TECH REPAIR FOR THR 163.76
111 SPALDING DEDECKER ASSOCIATES
SERV FROM APRIL 28 2025 TO MAY 25 2025 - 2025 LOCA 1,495.12
SERV FROM APRIL 28 2025 TO MAY 25 2025 - CRUSH & S 17,693.00
SERV FROM APRIL 28 2025 TO MAY 25 2025 - 2026 LOCA 14,100.00
TOTAL 33,288.12
112 SPARKY'S ELECTRIC LLC
REFUND ELECTRICAL PERMIT-PROJECT BLUEBERRY LN 60.00
113 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS
MP - PARKS - 689 MOWER REPAIRS 296.14 114966




07/03/2025 11:01 AaM
User: GRAHAM

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID
BANK CODE: GF53 -~ CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK
Vendor Name

Description Amount Check #
114 SPARTAN FENCE

FENCE REPAIR LAKE LANSING RD NEAR HILLBROOK PARK 2,275.00
115 ST MARTHA CONFERENCE OF

EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE 500.00 114955
116 ST THOMAS AQUINAS PARISH

EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE 500.00 114956
117 STARFARM LLC

7PM TO 10 PM - 2025 CELEBRATE FESTIVAL PERFORMER 6,000.00 114957
118 SUPREME SANITATION

2025 CELEBRATE FESTIVAL PORTA JONS AND SINKS 1,270.00
119 TAYLOR NOEL TAYLOR

PERFORMANCE 7/9/2025 - 4PM - 6PM - SUMMER CONCERT 200.00 114941
120 THE HARKNESS LAW FIRM PLLC

JUNE 2025 PROSECUTING SERVICES CONTRACT 8,009.48
121 THE PEASE FAMILY FARM

FARMERS MARKET 18.00 114967
122 THOMAS CARY

REIMB FARMERS MARKET SIGN LAMINATION 36.67
123 TL CONTRACTING INC

TACOMA NEIGHBORHOOD - STORM DRAIN SPOT REPAIRS 64,506.95
124 TOKIO MARINE HCC

CINEY RICH CLAIM DEFENSE DEDUCTIBLE - CLAIM # 2022 6,392.50
125 TRIPP'S COLLISION EAST LANSING

REPAIRS TO PARKS UNIT #738 2,911.97
126 UM HEALTH - SPARROW OCCUPATIONAL

MAY 2025 EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS 9,001.50
127 VERIZON CONNECT

VEHICLE DATA 100000198152 1,435.50
128 YEO & YEO

AUDITING SERVICES THRU MAY 31 2025 16,130.00
129 YOUNG CHEVROLET OF ST JOHNS INC

REPAIRS - FIRE - UNIT #134 982.23
130 ZIPPITY2DAD PRODUCTIONS LLC

THUR 6/26/2025 ~ FAMILY MUSIC CHILDRENS NIGHT 600.00 114942
131 ZOE HEDRICK

REIMBURSE FOR PARAMEDIC CQOURSE AT HENRY FORD HEALT 100.00

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS

783,207.10




07/03/2025 11:01 AM

User: GRAHAM EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

DB:

Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

BANK CODE: PW53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

Vendor Name

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Description Amount Check #
1. AUTO VALUE OF EAST LANSING
SEWER - BATTERY - SEIRRA RIDGE 104.87
2. BLACKBURN MFG CO
MISS DIG MARKING PAINT FOR WATER/SEWER 978.64
FLAGS FOR STAKING WATER LINES 535.70
TOTAL 1,514.34
3. CATHEY INDUSTRIAL SUPPLIES, CO
WATER - HOSE FOR POOL FILLS 332.10
4. CITY OF EAST LANSING
JUNE 2025 - ELMWSA OPERATING, INTERCONNECT & DEBT 377,461.25 30128
5. CUMMINS INC
MAIN LIFT STATION GENERATOR REPAIRS 1,045.78
6. DRIESNEGA & ASSOCIATES INC
2ND HALF OF - 12/23/24 TO 01/26/25 - FOREST HILLS 1,950.00
7. EJ USA INC
WATER - STORZ RETRO FIT NOZZLES 1,999.98 30129
WATER - STORZ RETRO FIT NOZZLES 6,160.00
TOTAL 8,159.98
8. EJ USA, INC.
WATER - STORZ RETRO FIT NOZZLES 65.00 30130
9. FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386
2" COMPOUND METER - E. LANSING ADMIN BLDG 2,768.89
WATER - 1 1/2" REPLACEMENT METERS 2,750.64
ANGLE VALVES 3,125.00
WATER - ANGLE VALVES 1,875.00
WATER - 1 INCH CORP STOPS 172.17
TOTAL 10,691.70
10. GIVE EM A BRAKE SAFETY LLC
BARRICADE RENTAL WATER LEAK MALL PARKING LOT MACY' 2,912.00
11. HYDROCORP
AUG 2024 TO AUG 2026 CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAM SERV 2,735.00
12. IDC CORPORATION
SEWER - LIFT STATION CONTROLS MAINTENANCE 2025 1,236.75
13. MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO
JULY 2025 LIFE/DISABILITY INSURANCE 536.50 30132
14. MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE
7/1/2025-7/1/2026 POLICY PREMIUM #5000880-25 4,633.30 30127
15. OLGER BROTHERS SAND & GRAVEL
6A STONE ON 5/5/2025 (10985) 248.86
16. ROBERT ALEXANDER
UB REFUND 91.96 30133
17. SA SMITH PAVING & TRUCKING INC
PW 2025 - ASPHALT SPOT REPAIR 15,814.71
18. STATE OF MICHIGAN
2024 COMMUNITY PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY ANNUAL FEE 14,822.87 30131
19. TOM HUNDT
REIMBURSE FOR WORK BOOTS 175.00
20. TRI-COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING
9/27/24 TO 9/26/25 - GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT DUES 14,894.00
21. YEO & YEO
AUDITING SERVICES THRU MAY 31 2025 5,570.00
TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 464,995.97




07/03/2025 11:02 AM
User: GRAHAM
DB: Meridian

Vendor Name

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 07/08/2025 - 07/08/2025

JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID

BANK CODE: TA53 - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

Description Amount Check #
1. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP
ADVANCED TAX COLLECTION 2025 SUMMER FOR MAC LEGEND 690.66 14124
ADVANCED TAX COLLECTION 2025 SUMMER FOR MAC LEGEND 13%9.17 14124
TOTAL 829.83
2. STATE OF MICHIGAN
2024 PILT PMT - MARSH POINTE APTS 22,355.21 14125
2024 PILT PMT - MERIDIAN STRATFORD PLACE 10,683.45 14126
TOTAL 33,038.66

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS

33,868.

49




Transaction Date
6/12/2025
6/13/2025
6/17/2025
6/16/2025
6/17/2025
6/24/2025
6/27/2025
6/12/2025
6/27/2025
6/27/2025
6/11/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/24/2025
6/27/2025
6/24/2025
6/27/2025
6/30/2025
6/24/2025
6/26/2025
6/12/2025
6/21/2025
6/25/2025
6/18/2025
6/25/2025
6/24/2025
6/27/2025
6/11/2025
6/20/2025
6/30/2025
6/17/2025
6/17/2025
6/23/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/16/2025
6/23/2025
6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/17/2025
6/18/2025
6/20/2025
6/20/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/27/2025
6/26/2025
7/1/2025
71112025
7/1/2025

Credit Card Report 06/11/2025 - 07/01/2025

Account Name
LAWRENCE BOBB
LAWRENCE BOBB
LAWRENCE BOBB
LAWRENCE BOBB
LAWRENCE BOBB
LAWRENCE BOBB
LAWRENCE BOBB
ROBERT STACY
ROBERT STACY
ROBERT STACY
TYLER KENNELL
TYLER KENNELL
TYLER KENNELL
TYLER KENNELL
TYLER KENNELL
TYLER KENNELL
TYLER KENNELL
MICHAEL HAMEL
MICHAEL HAMEL
MICHAEL HAMEL
KYLE FOGG

KYLE FOGG

RUDY GONZALES
RUDY GONZALES
RUDY GONZALES
JACOB FLANNERY
JACOB FLANNERY
JACOB FLANNERY
JACOB FLANNERY
ASHLEY WINSTEAD
ASHLEY WINSTEAD
JEFFREY ROMMECK

CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON
CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON
CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON

BRIAN PENNELL

BRIAN PENNELL

BRIAN PENNELL

BRIAN PENNELL

COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI
COURTNEY WISINSKI

$134.38
$5.98
$17.97
$57.71
$76.55
$124.97
$378.00
$104.90
$104.90
$19.94
$119.82
$18.83
$14.06
$3.49
$117.94
$22.66
$128.70
$78.95

Transaction Amount Transaction Merchant Name

THE HOME DEPOT #2723

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
MIDWEST POWER EQUIPMENT
THE HOME DEPOT #2723

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
DICKS SPORTING GOODS

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS701339
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS701339
THE HOME DEPOT #2723

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
TRANE SUPPLY - 113430
GRAINGER

AUTO VALUE 244 EAST LANSI
THE HOME DEPOT #2723

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
HOMEDEPOT.COM

JONES & BARTLETT LEARNING

($78.95) JONES & BARTLETT LEARNING

$185.00
$17.77
$152.60
$354.24
$19.90
$108.76
$15.53
$67.80
$15.98
$499.98
$449.35
$14.60
$329.00
$106.79
$31.14
$92.52
$349.00
$88.86
$133.42
$99.00
$63.79
$3.98
$119.99
$199.00
$67.52
$3.98
$27.70
$632.00
$43.74
$67.78
$356.53
$18.27
$248.68
$248.68

AMERICAN RED CROSS

THE HOME DEPOT #2723

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
SUPERIOR SAW

HASLETT TRUE VALUE HARDWA
JONES & BARTLETT LEARNING
THE HOME DEPOT #2723
MIDWEST POWER EQUIPMENT
THE HOME DEPOT #2723
MIDWEST POWER EQUIPMENT
COSTAR GROUP INC

USPS KIOSK 2569809550

THE HOME DEPOT 2723
COSTCO WHSE#1277

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
COSTCO WHSE#1277

PAYPAL *EASY IC

JIMMY JOHNS - 90055 - ECO
JETS PIZZA - MI-053 MOTO
AMERICAN RED CROSS
QUALITY DAIRY#31

QUALITY DAIRY#31

CANVA* 104550-79195778
AMAZON RETA* NO3Q705A2
QUALITY DAIRY#31

QUALITY DAIRY#31

DOLLAR TREE

SQ *JERSEY GIANT SUBS! (O
LITTLE CAESARS 3441-0006
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPT#3379
MEIJER STORE #025

PY *NEXSTAR

PY *NEXSTAR

PY *NEXSTAR




6/16/2025
6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/28/2025
6/30/2025
6/17/2026
6/12/2025
6/17/2025
6/11/2025
6/12/2025
6/30/2025
6/19/2025
6/16/2025
6/15/2025
6/16/2025
6/17/2025
6/18/2025
6/19/2025
6/23/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/15/2025
6/15/2025
6/19/2025
6/19/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/27/2025
6/30/2025
6/11/2025
6/12/2025
6/15/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/17/2025
6/20/2025
6/25/2025
6/17/2025
6/12/2025
6/20/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/25/2025
6/18/2025
6/20/2025
6/20/2025

KATIE LOVE

KATIE LOVE

KATIE LOVE

KATIE LOVE

KATIE LOVE
ANGELA DEMAS
JUSTIN C CAROEN
JUSTIN C CAROEN
DERRICK BOBB
DERRICK BOBB
DERRICK BOBB
STEPHEN GEBES
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
RICHARD GRILLO
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
MICHELLE PRINZ
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
CATHERINE ADAMS
ED BESONEN

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

BART CRANE

PHIL DESCHAINE
DANIEL OPSOMMER
DANIEL OPSOMMER
DANIEL OPSOMMER

$77.00
$50.87
$24.00
$17.99
$418.42
$14.17
$69.97
$17.51
$35.49
$95.00
$47.86
$481.85
$87.99
$19.99
$113.00
$210.11
$52.45
$137.84
$82.99
$41.80
$14.84
$22.74
$15.98
$297.68
$410.43
$19.77
$19.99
$209.85
$19.99
$19.99
$26.98
$432.00
$256.41
$610.00
$70.00
$419.75
$76.11
$44.75
$557.00
$9.68
$239.00
$54.96
$32.99
$259.20
$39.89
$15.37
$193.14
$56.77
$22.82
$48.97
$19.33
$21.99
$118.98
$47.83
$81.68

MEIJER STORE #025

KOHL'S #0738

MEIJER STORE #025

MEIJER STORE #025
CONSUMER ENERGY
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPT#3379
HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS3459
EXXON LITTLE JAMES

THE HOME DEPOT #2723

THE HOME DEPOT 2723

THE HOME DEPOT #2723
ZOOM.COM 888-799-9666
AMAZON RETA* NA3215GMO
GANNETT MEDIA CO

AMAZON MKTPL*NA7ELOPIO
TOM'S FOOD

AMAZON MKTPL*NA6SM8UY1
AMAZON MKTPL*NO9P31DH2
GOOGLE *YOUTUBE TV
BP#8526386BELLAIRE BP

TST* SHORT'S BREWING COMP
TST* THE NEST

TOONIES

FORESIGHT GROUP LLC
FSP*SHANTY CREEK RESORT
TST*SPIKES KEG O NAIL
GANNETT MEDIA CO

AMAZON MKTPL*NO5H37CH2
GANNETT MEDIA CO

GANNETT MEDIA CO
ASANA.COM

MONDAY.COM
AMAZON.COM*NQ6R09PS0
GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICE
USA ARCHER* USA ARCHER
HOME CITY ICE

AMAZON MKTPL*NO1ZN6C92
AMAZON MKTPL*NA5SMQ5GMO
AMAZON MKTPL*NO5R53ZX2
THE HOME DEPOT #2723
FOSSIL INDUSTRIES

AMAZON MKTPL*NQ8UVS8LKO
COVERT SCOUTING
ACTIVE911 INC
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPT#3379
TST* SHORT'S BREWING COMP
COMCAST / XFINITY
HOPSCOTCH

TOONIES

SPEEDWAY 44470

TST*SPIKES KEG O NAIL
OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPT#3379
AMAZON.COM*NO06B8CB1
AMAZON MKTPL*NO3AZ6L50
AMAZON MKTPL*NO1OK86NIO




6/12/2025
6/12/2025
6/16/2025
6/16/2025
6/17/2025
6/24/2025
6/24/2025
6/26/2025
6/27/2025
7/1/2025

6/18/2025
6/18/2025
6/26/2025
6/26/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/11/2025
6/18/2025
6/27/2025
6/28/2025
7/1/2025

6/11/2025
6/18/2025
6/20/2025
6/26/2025
6/26/2025
6/26/2025
6/27/2025
6/27/2025
6/27/2025
6/28/2025
6/28/2025
6/28/2025
7/1/2025

ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
ALLISON GOODMAN
DAN PALACIOS

DAN PALACIOS

DAN PALACIOS

DAN PALACIOS
ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
ROBERT MACKENZIE
CURT SQUIRES
CURT SQUIRES
CURT SQUIRES
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL
SAMANTHA DIEHL

$133.90
$55.32
$62.67
$8.98
$50.00
$35.74
$67.98
$14.35
$35.00
$119.92
$44.95
$25.97

AMAZON MKTPL*NH5JF2U10
MEIJER STORE #253 '
WAL-MART #2866

WAL-MART #2866

USA ARCHER* USA ARCHER
WAL-MART #2866

FEEDERS SUPPLY COMPANY #4
AMAZON MKTPL*NQ5UGINVO
USA ARCHER* USA ARCHER
AMAZON MKTPL*N32JD7F50
HASLETT TRUE VALUE HARDWA
THE HOME DEPOT #2723

($6.00) HASLETT TRUE VALUE HARDWA

$34.96
$0.94
$0.31
$15.00
$45.00
$217.66
$100.00
$11.18
$423.57
$198.00
$19.95
$78.75
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$284.94

HASLETT TRUE VALUE HARDWA
ELAVON *SERVICE FEE
ELAVON *SERVICE FEE
SEC OF STATE BRANCH 229
SEC OF STATE BRANCH 229
AMAZON RETA* NA3WF8U70
A1 DETAILING & CUSTOMS
QUALITY DAIRY#31
OPTICSPLANET, INC.
ENVATO

FACEBK *Y6RMTTQBJ2
FILMFREEWAY

FACEBK *WVRFGTLCJ2
FACEBK *NF9QWUGCJ2
FACEBK *6368JTLCJ2
FACEBK *2WQNSUCCJ2
FACEBK *R44UJULBJ2
FACEBK *ZCBJEU4CJ2
FACEBK *8CVT2VGCJ2
FACEBK *YTXVGU4CJ2
FACEBK *9JHNXVUBJ2

B&H PHOTO 800-606-6969

TOTAL $16,115.88




ACH Transactions

Date Payee Amount  Purpose
6/12/2025 MCT Utilities S 2,177.28  Water/Sewer Utility Transactions
6/12/2025 Gallagher Benefit Services S 3,250.00 Employee Vision Insurance
6/13/2025 Nationwide S 10,613.96  Payroll Deductions 6/13/2025
6/13/2025 Alerus S 61,745.70  Payroll Deductions 6/13/2025
6/17/2025 ELAN S 21,155.10  Credit Card Payment
6/25/2025 Blue Care Network S 41,889.88 Employee Health Insurance
6/25/2025 Various Financial Institutions S 375,442.41  Payroll Deductions 6/27/2025
6/26/2025 IRS S 134,409.10  Payroll Taxes 6/27/2025
6/27/2025 Nationwide S 10,761.60  Payroll Deductions 6/27/2025
6/27/2025 Alerus S 59,023.11  Payroll Deductions 6/27/2025
6/27/2025 MERS S 510,012.48 Employee Retirement
6/30/2025 First American S 1,040.65 Employee Vision Insurance
6/30/2025 State of Michigan S 40,398.62  State Payroll Taxes June 2025
7/1/2025 Health Equity S 152,525.05 Employee Health Savings
7/1/2025 Consumer Energy $ 2,248.42  Utility Transaction Fees
7/3/2025 Blue Care Network S 88,001.62 Employee Health Insurance
Total ACH Payments S 1,514,694.98




TOWNSHIP‘?

To: Board Members

9.D

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works and Engineering

Date: June 12, 2025

Re: Sanctuary Il Pathway License Agreement with Consumers Energy

As part of the Sanctuary Il development located off of Robins Way, the developer must construct
the future pathway as shown on the Master Plan that will connect the Sanctuary neighborhood to
the Ronald ]. Styka Memorial Trail (previously known at the Hartrick Okemos Trail). This project
will also create an addition connection between the Okemos Preserve neighborhood and the
Ronald J. Styka Memorial Trail, as shown below by the red line inside the green rectangle:

smeiig —ioig = T T < — z
&S %e, |E 5
Tapestry Dr. 3 .

Fieldstone Dr.

" SONOMA VISTA

OKEMOS
HIGH
SCHOOL

ndiana Rd
(ANSAS RD.

Before the Board this evening is the license agreement the Township enters into with Consumers
Energy when constructing a trail through the Consumers Energy right-of-way. As is customary
with these license agreements, the Township will pay an annual fee. The annual fee for this
agreement will be $100 per year.

We currently anticipate that the developer will construct this pathway/off-road trail at some point
in 2025.

Lo . . . . — A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commumm

meridian.mi.us



Memo to Township Board
June 12, 2025
Re: Sanctuary II Pathway License Agreement with Consumers Energy

We are happy to answer any questions the Board may have.
The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration:

MOVE TO APPROVE THE LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH CONSUMERS ENERGY AND
DIRECT THE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR AND CLERK TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT.

Attachment:

1. License Agreement MI00000085885-ING-E Between Consumers Energy and Meridian
Township

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Consumers E ‘}

MI00000085885-ING-E

I

E?E}}Jnr onlis

LICENSE

Date: June 3, 2025

Licensor: Consumers Energy, a Michigan corporation, One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Ml 49201

(“Consumers”).
Phone: 1-866-679-4054 Email: landcontracts@cmsenergy.com

Licensee: Meridian Township, Dan Opsommer, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864

Phone: 517-853-4440 Email: opsommer@meridian.mi.us

Premises: Property owned by Consumers Energy, located in Sections 32 and 33, T4N, R1W, Meridian

Township, Ingham County as shown and described in Exhibit A.

Master Tract ID: 040132009 Legacy Tract ID:  620-D28-9
Master Tract ID: 040132003 Legacy Tract ID:  307-D61-3
Master Tract ID: 040133009 Legacy Tract ID:  305-D61-9

License Fee: $100.00 payable annually.

[Note: Consumers Energy may send Licensee an invoice for the License Fee. However,
Licensee is obligated to pay the specified Licensee Fee not withstanding Consumer Energy’s
failure to send an invoice or any inaccuracy in the amount stated in the invoice and is obligated
to pay the Licensee Fee at the time specified notwithstanding any contrary indication in any
such invoice.]

[Office use only:  BP CA30 IVD0603]

Purpose: In consideration of Licensee’s promises contained in this Agreement, Consumers grants to
Licensee, on the terms and conditions set forth below, a license for the sole purpose of constructing,
operating, maintaining, and removing a public non-motorized trail 8 feet in width made of concrete with a
1-foot gravel shoulder on each side, and a 12-inch culvert located under a portion of the trail, per plans
shown in Exhibit B.

Licensee promises to comply with the following terms and conditions:

1.

Licensee shall construct, improve, and maintain the trail solely at Licensee’s expense, and Consumers
shall not be required to incur any cost or expense whatsoever as a result of the construction, operation,
and maintenance of the trail. Licensee shall reimburse Consumers in the amount of any increase in
real or personal property taxes or assessments resulting from the trail improvements Licensee places
on the Premises pursuant to this License, payable 30 days after Licensee receives an invoice from
Consumers for any such increase. Licensee shall reimburse Consumers for other costs it is required
to incur (e.g., to comply with governmental regulation) as a result of Licensee’s use of the Premises.
Licensee shall not permit any construction lien to attach to the Premises by reason of any improvements
made or work performed at the Premises.

Consumers shall at all times while this Agreement is in effect have the right to use the Premises for any
purpose regardless of whether the use interferes with Licensee’s use under this Agreement. Such use
may include, without limitation, construction, operation, inspection, maintenance, modification,
relocation, and removal of electric and gas utility facilities on, over, under, and across the Premises or
the adjoining land, the removal, trimming, and controlling in any manner, including by chemical
spraying, of any or all trees, brush, and other vegetation now or hereafter growing on the Premises or
the adjoining land. Consumers shall have the right to grant to third parties the right to construct, operate,


mailto:landcontracts@cmsenergy.com
mailto:opsommer@meridian.mi.us

and maintain utility facilities and other structures on, over, under, and across the Premises or the
adjoining land. Consumers shall have no obligation to refrain from using, or to modify the manner of
its use of, the Premises or the adjoining land, whether or not such use interferes with, detracts from, or
is otherwise inconsistent with Licensee’s use of the Premises pursuant to this Agreement. Consumers
shall have the right of access to the Premises at any time, and Licensee shall construct and locate any
and all fences and barricades Consumers permits on the Premises so as not to interfere with
Consumers' use of the Premises or the adjoining land. In using the Premises or the adjoining land,
Consumers shall not be responsible to Licensee for any damage to Licensee’s improvements on the
Premises resulting from Consumers’ use of the Premises or the adjoining land. Consumers may require
Licensee to temporarily close the trail for such periods as Consumers deems necessary or desirable in
connection with its use of the Premises or the adjoining land. If requested by Consumers, Licensee
shall post public notices of such closing on the Premises, and Licensee shall be responsible to take
appropriate action to enforce the closing, including action to remove trespassers.

Consumers shall have the right at any time and for any reason it deems appropriate, in its sole
discretion, to require Licensee, at Licensee’s expense, to temporarily or permanently relocate the trail,
or portions thereof, or other permitted improvements. Relocation may include temporary or permanent
removal of portions of the trail from the Premises. Licensee agrees to fully cooperate with such
requirement and to use its best efforts to complete such relocation by the date Consumers specifies,
which shall be not less than 90 days from the date Consumers notifies Licensee to relocate. Licensee
agrees that if Licensee fails to complete the required relocation by the specified date, Consumers shall
have the right to relocate and/or modify the trail as necessary to accommodate its facilities or use of
the Premises. Licensee shall be responsible to reimburse Consumers for all costs and expenses
(including attorney fees) it incurs in making such relocation or modification. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Licensee may seek to avoid a relocation specified by Consumers by offering to pay
Consumers for the additional costs and expenses Consumers would incur if Licensee did not make the
relocation, which offer Consumers may accept or reject in its sole discretion.

Licensee shall post Consumers-approved signs in such places on the Premises as specified by
Consumers, identifying the Premises as being owned and/or provided for use by Consumers.

Licensee shall not place any trees, shrubs, or other landscaping, or any buildings, benches, viewing
platforms, signs, or other structures on the Premises without Consumers’ prior written consent, the
granting or withholding of which shall be within Consumers’ sole discretion.

Licensee shall take all measures that Consumers, in its opinion, deems necessary to restrict use of the
trail to non-motorized bicycles and pedestrian foot traffic.

Licensee shall erect fencing or other suitable barriers and signs reasonably specified by Consumers to
prevent trail users from having access to existing or future utility facilities on the Premises or the
adjoining land.

Licensee shall not remove any trees or shrubs from the Premises without Consumers’ prior written
consent, the granting or withholding of which shall be within Consumers’ sole discretion. However,
Licensee may trim and remove branches that impede use of the trail.

Licensee’s use of the Premises shall at no time create any condition on the Premises that would create
a fire hazard or be considered a nuisance. Licensee shall at all times maintain the Premises in a proper,
clean, and safe condition. At Consumers’ sole discretion, if the trail or the Premises allows or
encourages access to other areas of Consumers’ property resulting in unwanted activity including but
not limited to; dumping, vagrancy, or other nuisances, the Licensee shall be responsible for remedying
the situation and/or cleaning and restoring said other area(s) of Consumers’ property at their sole
liability and expense. If the Licensee does not comply with the obligations of this paragraph within 10
days of notification, Consumers may remedy and restore, and Licensee shall reimburse Consumers for
all expenses within 60 days of receiving an invoice from Consumers.

Page 2 of 16



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Prior to commencing any excavation or digging on the Premises, even for installation of signposts or
fence posts, Licensee shall contact the Utility Communications System (Miss Dig), phone number (800)
482-7171, prior to performing any excavation in accordance with Michigan Compiled Law 460.701 et
seq., as amended by Public Act 174 of 2013 and any future amendments.

Licensee agrees cooperate with Licensor to protect any infrastructure now on or hereafter located on
or below the Premises. Suitable means of protection may include the erection and maintenance of
barricades or other protection as required by the Licensor. Licensee agrees that the erection and
maintenance thereof shall be at Licensee’s sole cost and expense.

Vehicular activity and storage of equipment or materials shall not be permitted unless in conjunction with
the approved use described within this agreement. If approved, vehicular activity and storage of
equipment and materials shall not be within 15 feet of any Consumers poles and guy wires or directly
under electric lines is prohibited. Vehicular activity and storage of equipment or materials within 30 feet
or directly over any Consumers pipeline is prohibited. A minimum of 5 feet of cover or appropriate bridging
is required to cross any Consumers pipeline. Paralleling traffic shall maintain a minimum distance of 15
feet of any Consumers pipeline. Operation of motor vehicles for recreational purposes is not permitted
under any circumstances. MIOSHA standards shall be observed, if more stringent.

Licensee shall comply with all local, county, state and federal ordinances, regulations, laws, and
statutes. Licensee is solely responsible for obtaining any required governmental permits or
authorizations for its approved activities at the Premises. In seeking such permits, Licensee shall
identify itself as the applicant and responsible party and identify Consumers only as the owner of the
Premises. Licensee shall at all times maintain the Premises in a proper, clean, and safe condition.

Licensee shall not dispose or suffer to be disposed of any waste material on Consumers’ land and shall
not use, store, or maintain, or suffer to be used, stored, or maintained, on Consumers’ land any material
that is or may be or become hazardous to human health or the environment or the storage, treatment,
or disposal of which is regulated by any governmental authority without Consumers’ prior written
consent, the granting or withholding of which shall be within Consumers’ sole discretion. If use of
Consumers’ land as permitted in this Agreement results in the presence on or under Consumers’ land
(which includes but is not limited to the underlying groundwater) of contaminants, hazardous waste,
hazardous substances or constituents, or toxic substances, as currently or hereafter defined in the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), 42 USCA 9601
et seq; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 USCA 6901 et seq; the Toxic
Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 USCA 2601 et seq; the Michigan Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act, MCL 324.101 et seq; or any other similar existing or future statutes,
Licensee shall, at no cost to Consumers, promptly take: 1) all actions required by any federal, state,
or local governmental agency or political subdivision, and 2) all actions required to restore Consumers’
land to the condition existing prior to the introduction of such contaminants, hazardous waste,
hazardous substances or constituents, or toxic substances, notwithstanding any lesser standard of
remediation allowable under applicable law or governmental policies. The actions required by Licensee
pursuant to this paragraph include but are not be limited to: a) the investigation of the environmental
condition of Consumers’ land; b) the preparation of any feasibility studies, reports, or remedial plans
required by law or governmental policy, and c) the performance of cleanup, remediation, containment,
operation, maintenance, monitoring, or restoration work, whether on or off Consumers’ land. Licensee
shall proceed continuously and diligently with such investigatory and remedial actions. Licensee shall
promptly provide to Consumers, free of charge, copies of all test results and reports generated in
connection with the above activities and copies of all reports submitted to any governmental entity. No
cleanup, remediation, restoration, or other work required to be performed pursuant to this paragraph
shall require or result in the imposition of any limitation or restriction on the use of Consumers’ land
without Consumers’ prior written consent, the granting or withholding of which shall be within
Consumers’ sole discretion. Additionally, Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Consumers, its
officers, employees, agents, affiliates, and parent corporation, harmless from and against any and all
losses, liabilities, claims, damages, payments, actions, recoveries, settlements, judgments, orders,
costs, expenses, attorney fees, penalties, fines, encumbrances, and liens arising out of: A) the

Page 3 of 16



15.

16.

17.

18.

presence on or beneath Consumers’ land and the underlying groundwater, of contaminants, hazardous
waste, hazardous substances or constituents, or toxic substances, as currently or hereafter defined in
CERCLA, RCRA, TSCA, NREPA, or any other similar existing or future statutes, as a result of use of
the Premises pursuant to this Agreement; B) Licensee’s violation or alleged violation of any federal,
state, or local law related directly or indirectly to the use of Consumers’ land pursuant to this Agreement;
or 3) Licensee’s failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; provided, that
Licensee’s indemnification obligation shall not extend beyond the limitations placed on a governmental
body or employee to indemnify another pursuant to law, and such obligation shall not abrogate or
diminish Licensee’s defense of governmental or sovereign immunity against any party, including
Consumers. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

In the event that Licensee at any time discovers or otherwise learns of the existence on Consumers’
land of any contaminant, hazardous substance, hazardous waste, or hazardous constituent or any
object that is likely to contain a contaminant or hazardous substance, waste, or constituent (such as
vehicle tires, junk vehicles, storage tanks, barrels, cans, and similar containers), Licensee shall
promptly notify Consumers thereof. Licensee shall also promptly notify Consumers of the occurrence
of a spill or other release of a contaminant or hazardous substance, waste, or constituent on
Consumers’ land. For purposes of this notice requirement, a hazardous substance includes (but is not
limited to) any substance the storage, treatment, or disposal of which is regulated by a governmental
authority. Examples of contaminants or hazardous substances, waste, or constituents are oil, gasoline,
chlorinated solvents, vehicle tires, paint, and sandblasting material. This notice requirement applies
regardless of who caused the spill or release. Licensee shall send such information to Consumers’
Environmental Department, 1945 West Parnall Road, Jackson, Michigan 49201, 517-788-2986.

Licensee accepts the Premises in their present condition and acknowledges that Consumers has made
no representations as to the condition thereof. Consumers shall not be liable for any damages arising
from the acts or omissions of Licensee or its invitees or users of the Premises. Licensee shall be solely
responsible to arrange for the provision of police protection as may be required to maintain law and
order on the Premises and to comply with the provisions of this Agreement. Licensee agrees to
indemnify and hold Consumers, and its successors and assigns, harmless from and against all actions,
claims, liability, losses, expenses, and attorney fees for injury to or death of any person or persons and
loss or damage to the property of any person or persons whomsoever, including the parties hereto and
their agents, contractors, subcontractors, employees, and invitees, arising in connection with or as a
direct or indirect result of Licensee’s use of the Premises pursuant to this Agreement, whether due or
claimed to be due to Licensee’s negligence, Consumers’ negligence, the negligence of both
Consumers and Licensee, the negligence of any other person, or otherwise, except for Consumers’
sole negligence; provided that the City’s indemnification obligation pursuant to this paragraph shall not
extend beyond the limitations placed on a governmental body or employee to indemnify another
pursuant to law and shall not abrogate or diminish the City’s defense of governmental or sovereign
immunity against any party, including Consumers. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

Licensee shall maintain in force at all times while this License is in effect a policy of Commercial General
Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $1 million each occurrence. Said policy shall: (a) be written
on an “occurrence” form basis; (b) include Consumers Energy Company, its directors, officers and
employees as an additional insured; (c) include contractual liability; and (d) be primary and
noncontributory to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the additional insureds. Prior to use
of the Premises and on or before each insurance policy renewal date Licensee shall submit a Certificate
of Liability insurance to Consumers Energy Company, Corporate Insurance Department via
InsuranceCertificates@cmsenergy.com. The Certificate of Liability Insurance must designate that the
policy includes the required additional insureds. Licensee shall provide immediate notice to Consumers
if it receives any notice of cancellation or nonrenewal from its insurer.

Licensee shall insert in all contracts, and require to be inserted in all subcontracts, at any time let in

connection with work to be performed on the Premises, the requirement that the contractor or
subcontractor assume all liability for and protect, indemnify, and save Consumers harmless from and

Page 4 of 16


mailto:InsuranceCertificates@cmsenergy.com

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

against all actions, claims, liability, losses, expenses, and attorney fees for injury to or death of any
person or persons and loss or damage to the property of any person or persons whomsoever, including
the parties hereto and their agents, contractors, subcontractors, employees, and invitees, arising in
connection with or as a direct or indirect result of Licensee’s use of the Premises. The provisions of
this paragraph shall apply to each and every such injury, death, loss, and damage, however caused,
whether due, or claimed to be due, to Licensee’s negligence, Consumers’ negligence, the negligence
of any such contractor or subcontractor, the combined negligence of either or both of the parties hereto
and any one or more of said contractors or subcontractors, the negligence of any other person, or
otherwise. Further, Licensee shall require all contractors and subcontractors at any time employed in
connection with any work to be done on the trail to maintain in full force and effect a policy of
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with a minimum combined bodily injury and property
damage single limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence, written so as to provide coverage for collapse,
explosion, and underground hazards, which insurance shall either include a Cross Liability
Endorsement or shall not preclude recovery by a named insured as a result of the negligence of any
other named insured under said policy. Said policy of insurance shall be written by an insurance
company authorized to do business in the State of Michigan and shall name Consumers Energy
Company as an additional insured.

The license hereby granted to Licensee is personal to Licensee. Licensee may not assign or otherwise
transfer its interest in this Agreement to any third party; nor will its interest under this Agreement inure
to Licensee’s successors or assigns.

This License is given subject to any existing leases, licenses, easements and other interests in the
premises, whether or not of record. Licensee is responsible to give required notices, to secure
necessary consents and permits from existing lessees, licensees, easement owners, and owners of
other interests, and to comply with requirements of such existing leases, licenses, easements, and
other instruments.

Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this License, either party may at any time and for any reason
terminate this Agreement by giving the other 30 days written notice of termination; provided, however,
that Consumers agrees not to terminate this Agreement for a period of 10 years following the
commencement of this License, other than for Licensee’s failure to comply with the terms of this
Agreement within 30 days after written notice from Consumers of such failure or if termination is
required by any applicable law, rule, or regulation or other circumstances beyond Consumers’
reasonable control. Notice of termination to Consumers shall be given to: Consumers Energy
Company, Real Estate Asset Management Department, One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Ml 49201. Notice
of termination to Licensee shall be given to Dan Opsommer - Public Works Director/ Deputy Township
Manager, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864, opsommer@meridian.mi.us, 517-853-4440. Either
Consumers or Licensee may change the designated address or addressee for such notice by notifying
the other of such change.

Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensee shall take all actions necessary to immediately terminate
public use of the Premises. If Licensee fails to do so, Consumers shall have the right to take whatever
actions it deems necessary to terminate public use. Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensee may
remove any and all improvements erected by Licensee on the Premises, and shall remove such
improvements if so requested by Consumers. If Consumers requests removal of such improvements,
Licensee shall remove such improvements within such period of time as the parties agree to but no
event more than 6 months following such request. If Licensee fails to do so, Licensee shall reimburse
Consumers for the cost of such removal, on demand from Consumers.

Unless stated otherwise, all requirements for notice contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to
require notice in writing and service by: a) personal service, with service being effective upon delivery;
b) United States certified mail, return receipt requested, with service being effective on the date of
receipt; c) telecopy, facsimile, or other form of telecommunication, with service being effective on
receipt; or d) recognized overnight courier service, with service being effective on delivery.

Page 5 of 16


mailto:opsommer@meridian.mi.us

24. This License may be executed and delivered in counterparts, including by a facsimile or an electronic
transmission thereof, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any document generated by the
parties with respect to this License, including this License, may be imaged and stored electronically
and introduced as evidence in any proceeding as if original business records. Neither party will object
to the admissibility of such images as evidence in any proceeding on account of having been stored
electronically.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Consumers and Licensee have caused this instrument to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives on the dates indicated below.

Consumers Energy

Signature:

By:

Its:  Land Manager

Licensee/Charter Township of Meridian

Signature:

By:  Scott Hendrickson

Its:  Supervisor

Signature:

By: Angela Demas

Its: Clerk

Page 6 of 16



Exhibit A

\ L 3
+33.02 02.32-276.027

I 3
. e Wricrier
2 'ﬁ__%sui e.r'lz'n'm thp & » :
T 02023227 Al o e S | Approximate Trail
- 33.02.02:32276019LT | R 32, s 3 | g
334:2402,5;_:2;75‘411_ W ' . E Location

04N01W335Y

Approximate

e

!
|
Licensed Premises ‘
i

)

33.02.02-33-301013
33-0202-32-400-016 330202 33301014

330202 33 301012

33-0202-33-302-001

A parcel of land owned by Consumers Energy 165 ft. in width N-S and located in the SE 1/4 of the SE 1/4
of the NE 1/4 of Section 32, and the SW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 33, all located in
T4N, R1W, Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan as shown above.

Page 7 of 16



91 Jo g abed

UTILTY COMEANY. UTLITES

TELEPHONE
osg
CABLETV
EAST LANSING,
EAT3E 9012
MERIDUAN TOWNEHP VIATES MAIRS
151 MARSH RD. EANITARY SEWER
OHEMOS. M1 42854 PATHAAYE
£17EERaM0
WOLVERINEPEE LINE FETROLEUMPIFELINE
105 VALLEYWOOD LANE
PORTAGE M1 430245251
2313233431
INGHAM COUNTY DRAS DRANE
COMMESIONER STORM SENER.
TOT BUHL 5T
MAEON, MI 48354
s17EmeEIe
INGHAM COUNTY ROAD DEFT  FUBLIC ROADS AND
301 BUSH ST, FIGHTS OF WAY
MASON MI 48852

e ot embind ane rearre spn

& Sageg e wer s tm e by w Corincr an Srced 1t e i

e e T

B Dot wraio it prcn st be st it B sar sagms of crwnaton by te

Susrtatin ot pactoes Wl ou aorked o mgain ary
s of o e .

o

sonE:

-Capac Sandy Loams, 00
S e W et

- Cobwood-Brookzann o
Hwna Hougtin k. o rap R

RECOMMENDED CONSTRUCTION [5§ E =
SCHEDULING & SEQUENCING §§ g §
EEE

INSTALL SESC MEASURES

ROUGH GRADE FOR TRAIL

INSTALL CONGRETE TRAIL

CLEANUP AND RESTORATION

REMOVE SESC MEASURES

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number| Sheet Title
1 COVER SHEET
OVERALL PATHWAY SITE PLAN
PATHWAY SITE PLAN
PATHWAY SITE PLAN
PATHWAY SITE FLAN
CULVERT PROFILE AND CROSS SECTION
CULVERT PROFILE AND CROSS SECTION
PATHWAY STANDARD DETAIL SHEET
TYPICAL SECTION

ol w| | @ of & |

SANCTUARY Ill PATHWAY
CONSTRUCTION PLANS
FOR
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP
INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN

HPINE DR.

TILEE DR.

Moming Glory Dr.

Tapestry Dr.

/E- SUNWIND pg

VHLNDY HEIGHTS DR

Elderberry Dr.

Call @before you dig.

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION NOTES

the Charter Townzhip of Mleridan, Department of Fubil Works, Offics of
Emlwwsi?@smu"ﬂm of 72 Pours prior io the siart of consUCtion of PUblC WIS or of
'CONSITUCHION I the PUDC NGNE-Or-43y.
Al comsiruction shail confarm 10 the auent sandands and specficatons of Fe Charier Township of
ncluged 2 at the tme of construction.
ARE" D2 COMDIEION O CONSIUCHON of PUDIC LOITES O CONSYUCION WAN (uoic
mmmnu\nmm wmummmmn1mlmmm
reziad o o fnal neieaze and aco
mmmnsnmmmmnnmummmmnmlmm
erty. . which might
The contractor snad noty "WISE DIG™ 18004827171 % least 72 RoUrE prior to S shart of consinuction.
The conractor shal at 3 times be 3war of Inconverience Caused b T Sbulting roperty cwners and e
genen publkc. Where e confactar doss nol remedy undus inconveniences, the Charker Townsn of
S . S i Se e o
the maney due the contmctor

A Fiegistersd Land Surveyor provided by the confackr f he (onracors smense shal moiace ol
Dropedty Imns and monuments distirben or destroyer by e CoNTCOP psratons.

Sttt Sl a oo,
o

“Tranch backtsl undar axtsfing or | roasaye. drivesays, and parting aress. shal be zand o g,
piaced In 12" layers (manimum) and consoiated 10 S5% of MMM densy 3 meazarEd by modfed
proctor o noteg.

Extzing fences shail be: removed and resiored o ther oignal conclton or betier wher in confict wih
constmuction.

Ovevers, cavets, diches, dn S e fels, dranoge Sk, ., Bt are dubed oy 0
mmcmnelmmto

y g o Al
e areas shal . secied T Bering S abching Sl b ore 1 e W
General Specticatons.

=hail rave

PROJECT LOCATION

DR.
D,

Mt sl e o e e o o

Cnzite parthg and sanitary faciites zhall be provided for construction worters. The faclifies chal be
Conziructed and operated fth minimal IMpact i She sDURGng ares) by e zatiaction of e Townshp.

EAT-NAY NOTES

Pattways and four (4] Inch Bk concrete ol be =i (5)
o i

Thres (3] iInches of| e piaced urder

Al Etuminous. sprons shal ) Inches thick,
Proparty ions sal be mantined by e Contracor.

Al extstng concrete and bhuminous 1o be removed shal be swwcle Al btminous ol shal be
considema incisentl o consinsctor.

Al aggregas aze materal shall be four (4) nches of Z3A,
=

Location of new pint material shll be 22 drecied by Fe Enginesr, and shall be insialed In accondanee
Wi guideines ectiblicned by e ANLA.

Al plart ratartsl ot marked for removal stad be pofscied
Eituminous orives shall be S3wCHE 157 on either side of proposed Dathagy.

‘The maximem longit.cias siope I= S5 155 an sheclte mastmum of S5 at the drection of the Enginesr)
and the mawum ooz siope 1 2%,

Expansion joinis shal be piaced at approxmatety 100 intervals and shall be £ Sick. Confracion jants shall
be swrt 0 depth of S of Fie deoth of the concrete.

Al luber f0 be pressure reated (Demose 33 of gl 1o 04 retenion.

1- COVER SHEET

g 31qlyx3



91 Jo g abed

EAETNG THEE LE
EAETNG WO

EATHWAY NOTES

wok oo

-

Thres (3) Inches of D e a

A shail be 3 noted

Bruperty irons shal be mainiined by e Conracior,

Afl 4523 CONCTete 3G DETINGUS 50 be FEmOVEd Sl Be SSWCLL. All BETINGUS femoval Shal De comidered
Incidentsi 1o constructon.

A8 aggregaie base maierial 57 De four (4] Inches of 224,
Afl e (1223 I £7) 20 SHFUD Mo hal e CONSienecl FAVE of Sbgrack preparation.

Locaton of new piant matarisl chal be as dmcied by the Engnesr. and shal be instaled in accomancs wih
geitelines cxtablzhed by the ANLA

A8 42N ARE MO TR TOF rEMOVE TN De DromcED
b s3wcw 12" on sither s

The U oRGRASNal Siope 1% 5% (U I 8N ADSokin MANIMAT of 5% 3 e APECtion of T Enghesr) and
‘the. manmur cros: slope 1535,

Expansion Joints shaf be piaced af 20pramatery 100 RNVl 30 shail be J° NCK. Donraction Jores shal be
SWCLLE 0 3 G 4 O e e Of e ot

A8 lumber 53 be preszure treted (Ososs T3 o soual 15 0.4 retantion

At 1

= P
Meridian Charter T: P | W waNTE
Ingham County, Michi [ I
[ gham County Michiga T o | oS
SANCTUARY IIT PATHWAY
/4 SECTION 31, T4, KIW, MERSGAN i
TN, NG A COLNTY, MIHGA VAL PATIRT BITE PLAN
w0 [ cimcran ur v

(3u09) g nayx3



9l Jo 0| abed

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET-lI

s
DesTURBARCE

LT, ¥

: |
.
-
s |
.
‘
V.
-~ : |
/,’ I
//, BT v I
- I
BTG TE UE ~ | ‘ |
BoE . 1
BTG HoE i I
Ee———
|
o CONCRETE PATART WTe
T ERAEL SO BENE (VP - I & I
- = -
- \ I
Y |
A S
\
I TD DTG T SEERRLE
AT E 1
IDE i T 1
Meridian Charter T ip —
Ingham County, Michigar ol B0
Cal @before you dig. | bRTY =
SANCTUARY Il PATHWAY

51 rince ToBE
PACED AT LAATE CF
ETURBANGE (TFP)

~ CENTERLINE GF SWALE WITH CHECK
AMS (2 OETAIL ON SHEET5) T

¥ LIIHS 335 INIT HILYW

WOLVERINE PIPE LINE MPANY

NE 178 SBCTION 32 AND VW 104 SECTION 1 T4N. KW, MERSSAN
TOWAS, INGHAM COLATY, MICHICAN

[T

T [ oussmrn

3-PATHAAY STE LA

(3u09) g nayx3



9l Jo || abed

EOCE OF waTEH

£ L33HS 33S AN HILYW

cenrEnumE oF
SR WY CHE EAISTING cALsn—

= COMCRETE PATIWAY WeTH
GRAVEL SHCULOERS (TP

(3u09) g nayx3

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET &

- — e —— | == =t =— (= == § [JTHS T3S INMHILYWN -

Meridian Charter T hip
Ingham County, Michigan
. 3
Callii]before youdig. | ~ - ZATAY
%@ mum:sdf
. SANCTUARY NI PATHWAY

NE L/ SECTION 32 AKDNW 174 SECTION
B InGiLA

A-PATINY STE PLAN

T

WOLVERINE FIPE LINE MPANY

aaws v o0




9l Jo z| abed

- T INTO EXISTING ASPHALT PATHKY

E GF WATER

¥ L3IHS 338 INMHOLYW

CENTERLINE OF SWAL
AT CHECK DAMS (SEX
DETAIL GHEMEET 5 (TP}

= COMCRETE PATHVEAY WeTH

ECCE OF walEr T GRAVEL SHCULEERS (TYP)

BN waTER
Uik ELsEUET

EASTING WaTER vl

S

SCALE
HORZ 1" = 20
VERT: 17=2"

Meridian Charter Tawnship e e
I '“gh‘*“‘l)i‘_’rwg”h‘w o o
SANCTUARY III PATHWAY
NE L4 SECTY [suseT:
gl
S Vv T cscnsomm

(3u09) g nayx3



9l Jo ¢| abed

v <

0 LEYIL

S o o
e = ——— e ——
d /
. -
-
7
i ;
/ i
F ‘
‘ 7
£
‘
/
£
F;
F
/
§
K

i . E o]

11 | 3
;o I
- i L -
1 dl i
| ;|3
- L - { -
F '.
| . l |+
11} { v ann
Ll -
5 % —
1w =" e crp @ aowed LR b
Bbs 23 4
e
e + 03
i 1]
ezil
B a2
s afe
BEA s 268 FRICAST COMIRITE JECTHH
Foll FIFE CULVERT
e 3 RF |
B¢ 264
i
0 o 0
=
Meridian Charter Township T o e

califjbefore you dig.

WOLVERME FFE LIE ©

anT pto—nas—pnio | Gapar B

Ingham County, Mickigan

[ FATHWAT

SARCTUAKT 111 PATHWAY
RT3 T e ERCTION T T, L IR
T ™ cEEas

T [==rr

(3u09) g nayx3



9l Jo | abed

(3u09) g nayx3

COMSUMERS CULVERT PROFILE
HORZ. 1"=20" VERT. 1=2'
a7z a72 i
o e
ecasT o] B LT
P heteer ke ca [
W TR St
ek
\\ . L
855 == a5 chon BEE PLaR vIEY
Wil
476 412" 57 C7H |9 G 7OR | 2 [ A F ]
R - |
il ULl
3o It
854 864 i =%
SEERE
T 10° waTER: wals cAcsshG—.| F 23 &
2
o~ 7lSgly
HEERT
- S |
g i
= 1
860 BED v El LOKGITUDIRAL SECTION ENT ELEVATION
e s
pa R e
TASLE oF DiMERSNS
CONSUMERS CULVERT CROSS SECTION s sty
o it £ N
. HORZ. 1"=20" VERT. 1=2 . T R
swpehien s
868 7 i 888
ek o] |\
| soeoes 1 covverr
iy
[PRECAST CONCRETE END SECTION|
FOR PIPE CULVERT
864 854 m | [®-8e-r [
i £
e om0 [
F o NORTH
i =
F /
; h
— - T
Meridian Charter Ti p S T
Ingham County, Michigan CE N [
call @before you dig. ' PRI o
SANCTUARY [Tl PATHWAY
et HILL/4 SECTION 12 AND W 1% SCTION T3, 4K, KW, MERDUR. [FWEPT:
Lt :
WOLVERINE PIPE LINE COMPANY 219—B44—9510 (}3‘# ¢ o /on a0 T - T S F-CURVEAT RRoN




9l Jo G| abed

—
|
P Al L
bt 4 i T
6" CONCRETE RAMP W0 CURB

CROSS SECTION A-A

CROSS SECTION B-B

RAMP SLOPEMAX

4 DoWELS EMEESHD T D
ADIACENT CURE R GUTTER )

IR AN SERALTE PRI CAG;
PLACT EXPANSION |DINT AT BOZ)
DOWEL RAMP TO CLG WITI 4,
EPONY CIIATED F-ROO49 1670

DETAIL ¢

DETECTABLE WARNING DETAILS

5| Duas” v
RAMPS LOCATED IN RADIUS RAMP LOCATED IN RADIUS
RAMP PERPENDICULAR
Py TO TARGENT CURE
e v

s

SECTION]q |

=

B N —

[ Ba—
DOME SECTION

-

e
[ |

CROSS SECTIONS E-E; F-F

MAXSLOPEE PELIT

o .

T sANDRAE

& concre

e TOPEOIL S, FETILIE, £ MLLOL

EMEANKMENT & BERM CROSS SECTION

wucsun(f’mrv

—-1\ T —-I e vaR —-1
ﬁmmﬁ;ﬁiﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬁ“ —

SWALE CROSS SECTION

MAYEOPE PR T

TYPICAL SECTION W /0 CURB KEE? PATHWAT 1 MIGHER THAN ROAS CENTERLINE

1o covTEn

wow concame | o

[ p— P

CONCRETE PINNING DETAIL

CROSS SITTION- [N SCALT)

~—SEE ABDVE—-|

— PaTIwAY

T EannmAsE

NLOCK RETARING WALL FER
MAMITALTURIS SPICFCATIONS
=iy

FENCE FLAN o0

CEOGE 5

TYFICAL SAWED JOINT DETAIL

gl =ty
iy
i por s ceany

—

[ =

L
Wi

&

e i ——
. OF COMP ACTED SAND BASK

SUALL [0 PLACIT [NOER ALL SIDDWALES, PATHWAYE.
ALL ESTUMSGUS APRONS SIALL BK 2 17" THICK, UNLISS ROTED OTHERWISE
PAGPRTY BN SUAL S MASTANED Y T CONTIACT
5 CONCRETE 40 ATUMINGS T D REWCVED SHALL B8 SAWCST AL CSHELETE ANG SITUMINGL SEMCHAL SUALL
I CONSRED IR AL T CERET I Cri
AGGRCATY RS AL 28 224 ¢ THICE.

L ALLTHED AND I WAL SUALL SE CORSICAED AL 0P SLCAOE PRITRATION,

LGCATION CF NEW PLANT MATERGAL SILARL I A5 DEUSCTED 8Y THE ENGINEDE, ARD SHALL I SNSTALLID 1N ACCORDANCE WITH
SR A b

WARKED Pa R, proTECTES,
AL B AT 1 OW 7T S04 O RmRaRAD PATINEAL

et

1% wany QU

TAIVEWAT

mmeausa
18247 AT 10 POOT
ATERVALS REST]

[E———
Pty

CROSS SECTIONS J-|

LAY (D SIDEWRLS)

arvanc 1r

T J—
RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY SLOPES

o]

“i_ 4" MIN, TYPICAL EXCEPT

7] & MIN @ RESIDENTIAL DRIVE APPROACHES
T MIN. @ COMMERCLAL APPROACHES

TYPICAL CONTROL [OINT K-E

FMIN. |

4" MIN. TYPICAL EXCEPT
|& MIN. @ RESIDENTIAL DRIVE APPROACHES
7 MIN. @ COMMERCTAL APPROACHES

)
TYPICAL EXPANSION [OINT L-L

LTELT I ASC AERAR TC CURS & GUTTER
. PR [
Meridian Charter Township [mE = CORTERTE

e ornzze [on IcpcsumMITTAL
Ingham County, Michigan 070534 [CH  CONSIMERS SURMITTAL

ENGINEERING|

5'SIDEWALK & 7' PATHWAY

DETAIL SHEET

B-TYRIAL BECTION

(3u09) g nayx3



9l Jo 9| abed

EXGRADE

'[3) 45 DIRECTED

TYPICAL DETAIL: FILL
STA. 1+45 - 2+20; 3473 - 4+86 ; 6+88 - 9+15

EXCRADE

S50 "(F) 45 IRECTED

TYPICAL DETAIL: CUT
STA. 2420 - 3+73; 5+43 - 6+88

PAY ITEM LEGEND:
1) EMBANKMENT, LM

| EXCAVATION, EARTH

(ba)

‘3) SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, TYPEII

‘4) ERDSION CONTROL, CHECK DAM, STONE

(5) SHLD,CLIL 6 INCH [1 FOOT WIDE)

(6) SHARED USE PATH, AGGREGATE (6 INCH DEEP)
7) SHARED USE PATH, GRADING

(8) SHARED USE PATH, CONCRETE

9) CHEMICAL ROOT INHIBITOR

=
=/

SITE RESTORATION (3" SCREENED TOPSOIL)

1

(=)

DISTANCE FROM EDGE OF PATHWAY TO
CENTERLINE OF THE TRAIL VARIES, SEE PLAN

EX GRADE

345 DIRECTED B .

L

TYPICAL DETAIL: MINOR CUT/FILL TO CONSTRUCT AT/NEAR GRADE
STA 4+86 - 5+43 ; 9+15 - 9+53

GENI
0

[ERAL NOTES:

CROSS-SECTIONS ARE NOT TO SCALE.

CROSS-SECTIONS ARE LOOKING DOWN-STATION.

SALVAGE OR REMOVE EXISTING TOPSOIL WITHIN THE GRADING LIMITS.
OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. REMOVAL AND DISFOSAL WILL BE
PAID FOR AS EXCAVATION, EARTH.

TOPSOIL FOR SITE RESTORATION MAY EE SALVAGED FROM SITE, BUT
MUST BE 5CREENED OR RAKED TO REMOVE 1" OR GREATER DEBRIS.

FOR SITE RESTORATION, USE SEED MEETING MDOT THM MIXTURE.

EMBANKMENT, LM SHALL BE CLASE Il GRANULAR MATERIAL OR.
ASPHALT MILLINGS.

SHARED USE PATH, AGGREGATE SHALL BE SAND OR ASPHALT MILLINGS.

FOR EMBANKMENT, LM AND SHARED USE PATH, AGGREGATE THE
CONTRACTOR MAY USE MILLINGS FROM THE STOCKPILE AT MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIF'S SERVICE CENTER. THERE ARE MORE THAN ENOUGH
MILLINGS FOR ALL OF THE FILL REQUIRED ON THIS PROJECT. THE
CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIELE TO PROVIDE THE LAEOR AND
EQUIPMENT TO LOAD AND TRANSPORT THE MILLINGS FROM THE
STOCKPILE LOCTION TO THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.

CHECK DAMS:

7
‘—L'—-“—l.S‘—-

s —

o

-USE CHECK DAMS FOR SWALE GRADES 3-5%.
-SPACE OUT CHECK DAMS AT 20 O.C. TYPICAL DETAIL: SWALE (POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF MITIGATION)
-UZE 1-3" CRUSHED, WASHED STONE OR CONCRETE. STA *ALL®

ESTIMA’ CUT/FILL QUANTI
TOTAL CUT-525 CY
TOTAL FILL- 500 CY

Meridian Charter Township by

ED e
Ingham County, Michigan o [icoc sosurmr
| commmns sumwa
[ENGINEERING]|

TYPICAL SECTIONS

- TemeaL secmon

s

IE

v, v

(3u09) g nayx3



P 9.E
MERIDIAN ?

TOWNSHIP‘?

To: Township Board
From: Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP
Director of Community Planning and Development
Date: July 2,2025
Re: MUPUD 22-14-Haslett Village Square-Extension

The Township Board approved the MUPUD for Haslett Village Square on July 27, 2022. The applicant
had two years from that date to commence construction on the project, which started with the
issuance of the demolition permit on October 31, 2023. Under the provisions of our ordinance, all
construction related to the project must be completed within 36 months from the effective date,
which would be July 27, 2025. The Township Board can grant one 12-month extension, which is
being requested at this time. Staff is also preparing an ordinance adjustment to grant the Board the
ability to further extend projects, similar to plats, which can be granted biannually with no final
expiration.

Move to extend the approval for MUPUD 22-14 - Haslett Village Square, for one
year, per Section 86-128(d).

Attachment:
1. Request for Extension

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



To: Meridian Township Board Members
From: SP Holding LLC
Re: Haslett Village Square — Request for Extension of MUPUD Approval

6/18/25

Dear Board Members,

First and foremost, thank you for your continued support and patience as we work to bring
the Haslett Village Square project to fruition. Over the past 18 months, we have also been
navigating delays related to coordination with the Ingham County Drain Commission,
which have extended our anticipated timeline.

Given these unforeseen circumstances, we respectfully request an extension of our
MUPUD approval originally granted on July 26, 2022.

We remain committed to this development and look forward to working closely with you in
the months ahead as we strive to move the project forward.

Sincerely,

Chad Koster
Member
SP Holding LLC



m
MERIDIAN

~——" __

To: Board Members

9.F

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works and Engineering

Date: June 24, 2025

Re: Gate Valve Replacement 2025 Contract

Township staff recently requested proposals for the installation of three (3) new 16-inch gate
valves, one (1) new 20-inch gate valve, and repair of one (1) 8-inch gate valve on Grand River
Avenue and Park Lake Road in Meridian Township.

The low bidder was Fonson Company, Inc. Township staff have checked references and
recommend awarding this contract to Fonson Company, Inc.

The Board approved funding for this project in the 2025 budget. This project shall be paid out of
591-900.901-974.000.

We are happy to answer any questions the Board may have.

The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration:
MOVE TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT WITH FONSON COMPANY, INC. IN THE AMOUNT
OF $417,366.20 AND DIRECT THE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TO EXECUTE THE
AGREEMENT.

Attachments:

1. Gate Valve Replacement 2025 Contract
2. Gate Valve Replacement 2025 Contract Bid Tab

Lo . . . . — A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commumm

meridian.mi.us



GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN



GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

FOR
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ADVERTISEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

PROPOSAL

CONTRACT

NOTICE OF AWARD

NOTICE TO PROCEED

GENERAL CONDITIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
Ingham County Road Department Permit Specifications
Division 1 - Earthwork
Division 2 - Not included in this contract
Division 3 - Water Distribution System

Division 4 — Concrete Work
Division 5 - Not included in this contract

Division 6 - Not included in this contract

Division 7 - Pay Items, Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment
SPECIAL PROVISIONS
APPENDICES

Appendix A - Traffic Control Typicals

AD-1 to AD-2
IB-1 to IB-2
P-1to P-4
C-1toC-3

Notice of Award
Notice to Proceed
GC-1to GC-10
GS-1 to GS-5

RC-1 to RC-6
1-1to 1-5

3-1to 3-7

4-1to 4-5

7-1to 7-9

SP-1 to SP-3

Apx - A-1to A-6



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Sealed proposals will be received by the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, at the Meridian
Township Clerk’s Office, Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864-1198, Ph. 517.853.4000,
up to 11:00 am, local time on Monday, June 5, 2025 for the installation of three (3) new 16-inch gate valves, one (1)
new 20-inch gate valve, and repair of one (1) 8-inch gate valve mostly along Grand River Avenue in Meridian
Township.

Bids are solicited on a unit price basis. The work involves the following major bid items:

Isolation of sixteen (16) inch D.I. water main at three (3) locations
Isolation of twenty (20) inch D.I. water main at one (1) location
Installation of three (3) 16-inch gate valves

Installation of one (1) 20-inch gate valve

Repair of one (1) 8-inch gate valve

Proposals shall include the furnishing of all labor, material, and some equipment to complete the project. Equipment
to be furnished by Meridian Township includes:

o Three (3) 16" Gate Valves, Valve Boxes, and MEGALUG Fittings
e One (1) 20" Gate Valve, Valve Box, and MEGALUG Fittings

Work on the project must commence within ten (10) days of issuance of the “Notice To Proceed.”
Construction shall be completed by November 1st, 2025. Completion is defined as being constructed, tested,
placed in service, and the site restored.

Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified check or a bid bond by a recognized surety company similar to a
U.S. Government Standard form bid bond, in the amount of five percent (5%) of the bid, payable to the Charter
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan as security for the acceptance of the Contract.

Insurance and bonds are required from the successful bidder for this project; please see pages G-2 thru G-3 for those
requirements. Please note Owner/Contractors Protective Liability is required for all our contracts.

The vendor’s agreement to pay prevailing wage rates is one relevant consideration that Meridian Township may
make in its determination of which bidder should receive this contract. Meridian Township may thus consider in
awarding this contract whether any vendor voluntarily pays employees and sub-contractors, directly upon the site
of work, at least the prevailing wages and fringe benefits as determined and published by the United States
Department of Labor for the Ingham County area.

The contract documents may be examined at the following locations:

Meridian Charter Township, Dept of Public Works, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864
Builders Exchange of Lansing & Central MI, 1240 E. Saginaw St., Lansing, MI 48906-5522
Builders Exchange of Michigan, 678 Front Ave. NW, Ste. 330, Grand Rapids, MI 49504
Construction Assoc of MI, 43636 Woodward, Bloomfield Hills, MI 48302

Dodge Data & Analytics, 2521 E. Michigan Avenue, Lansing, MI 48912-4010

PDF copies of the plans and contract documents can be downloaded from the Township website here:
https://www.meridian.mi.us/government/township-projects. To be added to the Township’s list of prospective
bidders, please make sure to contact the Engineering Office, as described below.

Hard copies of the contract documents for the work may be obtained from the Department of Public Works &
Engineering at 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, for a non-refundable fee of ten dollars ($10). There is a five
dollar ($5.00) fee for mailing contract documents. Contract documents may be obtained via email free of charge.
Questions regarding this contract may be addressed to Meridian Township Department of Public Works &
Engineering by phone at 517.853.4440, or by email at DPW@meridian.mi.us.

In submitting this bid, it is understood that the right is reserved by the Owner to reject any or all bids, to award the
Gate Valve Replacement 2025 AD-1


https://www.meridian.mi.us/government/township-projects
mailto:DPW@meridian.mi.us

Contract to other than the low bidder, to award separate contracts for each project and/or phase, to waive
irregularities and/or formalities, and in general, to make award in any manner deemed by it, in its sole discretion, to
be in the best interest of the Owner.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 AD-2



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

PROPOSALS

Proposals must be made upon the forms provided, without modifications or changes and all other
data submitted as required.

The proposal must be enclosed in a sealed envelope marked “Bid Proposal - Meridian Township Gate
Valve Replacement Contract 2025" clearly indicating the name and address of the bidder, and filed
at the place and by the time specified in the Advertisement.

BASIS OF PROPOSALS

Proposals are solicited on the basis of unit prices for the entire work of the contract. Proposals may
be submitted for any one or all of the projects or phases, as may be applicable.

The right is reserved by the Owner to reject any and all bids, to award the Contract to other than the
low bidder, to award separate Contracts for each project and/or phase, to waive irregularities and/or
formalities, and in general, to make award in any manner deemed by it, in its sole discretion, to be in
the best interest of the Owner.

BID DEPOSITS

Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified check, or bid bond from a recognized surety
company, in the amount of five percent (5%) of the total amount of the bid, payable to the order of
the Owner, to be forfeited to the Owner in case of failure on the part of the successful bidder to enter
into the attached form of Contract to do the work covered by such Proposal at the price and within
the time stated therein. The bid deposit of all except the successful bidder will be returned within
four weeks after opening of bids. The bid deposit of the successful bidder will be returned within 48
hours after the executed Contract has been finally approved by the Owner.

QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

It is the intention of the Owner to award the Contract(s) to contractor(s) fully capable, both
financially and as regards experience to perform and complete all work in a satisfactory manner.
Evidence of such competency must be furnished, including a listing of similar projects which the
bidder has satisfactorily undertaken and completed.

INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS

If the bidder is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of the plans, specifications or Contract
Documents, he may submit to the Engineer a written request for an interpretation thereof. Any
interpretation made in response to such query will be mailed or duly delivered to each prospective
bidder. The Owner will not be responsible for any other explanation or interpretation of the Contract
Documents.

REQUIREMENT OF SIGNING BIDS

Bids which are not signed by the individual making them shall have attached thereto a power of
attorney evidencing authority to sign the bid in the name of the person for whom it is signed.

Bids, which are signed by a partnership, shall be signed by all of the partners or by an attorney-in-
fact. If signed by an attorney-in-fact, there shall be attached to the bid a power of attorney evidencing
authority to sign the bid, executed by the partners.

Bids which are signed for a corporation shall have the correct corporate name thereof and the
signature of the president or other authorized officers of the corporation manually written below the
corporate name following the word “By”. If such a bid is manually signed by an officer other than the
president of the corporation, a certified copy of a resolution of the board of directors evidencing the

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 IB-1



10.

11.

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
authority of such official to sign the bid shall be attached to it. Such a bid shall also bear the attested
signature of the secretary of the corporation and the corporate seal.

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

The bidder to whom an award is made will be required to enter into the written contract included
herein, within ten (10) calendar days after being notified of the acceptance of his bid and receipt by
him of the copies of the documents to be executed. In case of failure to comply with this requirement,
he may be considered to have abandoned all his rights and interests in the award and his certified
check or amount of bidder’s bond may be declared to be forfeited to the Owner and the Contract may
be awarded to another bidder.

INSURANCE (Ref. General Conditions - GC.2)

The contractor will be required to carry Worker’s Compensation Insurance, Bodily Injury and
Property Damage, Builder’s Risk Insurance and Owner’s Protective Liability in the amounts specified
in the General Conditions. Certificates of such insurance must be attached to each copy of the
executed Contract Documents.

BONDS (Ref. General Conditions - GC.1)

The successful bidder will be required to furnish for each set of executed Contract Documents and
conformed copies thereof an original completed Performance Bond, and Labor and Material Bond
with surety acceptable to the Owner as set forth in the General Conditions.

BIDDER’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXAMINING PLANS AND SITE

At the time of opening bids, each bidder will be presumed to have made a personal investigation of
the site of the work and of existing structures, and to have read and be thoroughly familiar with the
plans, specifications and Contract Documents (including all addenda). He shall determine to his own
satisfaction the conditions to be encountered, the nature of the ground, difficulties involved in
completing the Contract and all factors affecting the work proposed under this Contract.

The bidder to whom this contract is awarded will not be entitled to any additional compensation by
reason of his failure to fully acquaint himself with the conditions at the site or by his failure to fully
examine the plans, specifications and Contract Documents.

NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

The Contractor shall adhere to all applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and
regulations prohibiting discrimination with regards to employees and applicants for employment.
The contractor and his/her subcontractors shall not discriminate against an employee or applicant
for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, including
a benefit plan or system or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age, height, weight, condition of pregnancy, marital status,
physical or mental limitation, disability, source of income, familial status, educational association,
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or HIV status. Breach of this section shall be
regarded as a material breach of this Contract.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 IB-2



PROPOSAL

TO:  Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, MI 48864

RE: GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025
Board of Trustees:

The undersigned, as a bidder, hereby declares that these bids are made in good faith, without fraud or
collusion with any person or persons bidding on the same Contract, that he has read and examined the
Advertisement, Instruction to Bidders, Proposal, Contract, General Conditions, Specifications, Special
Provisions and Plans and understands all of the same; that he or his representative has made personal
investigation at the site and has informed himself fully with regard to the conditions to be met in the
execution of the Contract.

In submitting this bid, it is understood that the right is reserved by the Owner to reject any or all bids, to
award the Contract to other than the low bidder, to award separate contracts for each project and/or
phase, to waive irregularities and/or formalities, and in general, to make award in any manner deemed
by it, in its sole discretion, to be in the best interest of the Owner.

Itis further understood and agreed by the undersigned that any qualifying statement or conditions made
to this proposal as originally published, as well as any interlineation, erasures, omissions or entered
wording obscure as to its meaning, may cause the bid to be declared irregular and may be cause for
rejection of the bid.

The undersigned agrees to start work within ten (10) days of issuance of the Notice to Proceed. The
undersigned further agrees to complete all work covered by this Proposal to the point of use of the
project by the Owner by the completion date stated in the Advertisement or within the number of
calendar days stated in the Advertisement; and that for all days thereafter until final acceptance, there
will be charged, as liquidated damages, the sum of $1,000 per calendar day per project for each and every
day thereafter until final acceptance.

The undersigned hereby proposes to perform everything required to be performed and to furnish all
labor, materials, tools, equipment and all utility and transportation services necessary to complete in a
workmanlike manner all the work to be done under this Contract, including addenda thereto, for the
sums set forth in the following Bidding Schedule:

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 P-1



ITEM DESCRIPTION

1la.
1b.
9a.
9b.

31a.
31b.
31c.
31d.
32a.
32b.
32c.
32d.
40a.
40b.

42,

45a.
45b.
53a.
53b.

54.

GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

PROPOSAL - Line Stops

Traffic Control (Grand River Ave) 1
Traffic Control (Park Lake Rd) 1
Pavt, Rem, Concrete 200
Pavt, Rem, Asphalt 500
Water Main, 16 inch, Line Stop 6
Water, Sleeve, 16 inch 3
Water Main, 20 inch, Line Stop 2
Water, Sleeve, 20 inch 1
Water, Gate Valve, 16 inch (Installation) 3
Water, Gate Valve, 20 inch (Installation) 1
Water, Gate Valve, 8 inch (Exposure) 1
Water, Gate Valve, 8 inch (Repair Allowance) 1
Concrete, 4 inch 200
Concrete, 7 inch 100
HMA, 13A 30
Curb & Gutter, Rem 40
Curb & Gutter, Inst 40
Erosion Control, Silt Fence 200

Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 5

Site Restoration 1

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 P-2

LS
LS
SF
SF
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
SF
SF
TN
FT
FT
FT
EA
LS

QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE

AMOUNT
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$3.000 $3.000
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
TOTAL BID: $




GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

PROPOSAL - Insertion Valve

ITEM DESCRIPTION

1la. Traffic Control (Grand River Ave)
1b. Traffic Control (Park Lake Rd)
9a. Pavt, Rem, Concrete

9b. Pavt, Rem, Asphalt

32c.  Water, Gate Valve, 8 inch (Exposure)

32d. Water, Gate Valve, 8 inch (Repair Allowance)
32e. Water, Insertion Valve, 16 inch (Installation)

32f.  Water, Insertion Valve, 20 inch (Installation)

40a. Concrete, 4 inch
40b. Concrete, 7 inch
42. HMA, 13A

45a. Curb & Gutter, Rem
45b.  Curb & Gutter, Inst

53a. Erosion Control, Silt Fence

QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE

1
1
200
500

W e

200
100
30
40
40
200

53b. Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 5

54, Site Restoration

Gate Valve Replacement 2025

P-3

1

LS
LS
SF
SF
EA
EA
EA
EA
SF
SF
TN
FT
FT
FT
EA
LS

AMOUNT

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $
$3,000 $3,000
$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $
TOTAL BID: $




Give the name of the Owners and dates of other projects which the Bidder has constructed or has had responsible charge
of construction:

NAME DATE

The Bidder acknowledges that his bid is in accordance with the information contained in Addendum No. , , ,

The Bidder is hereby reminded that the Pay Items listed under the Bidding Schedule are the only items for which he will
receive payment under this Contract. In the event that lesser or greater quantities of specific Pay Items are required to
complete the work and place the system in operation, the total amount bid for the specific item will be adjusted by the
unit price bid to the actual quantities utilized. In the event that an error is made in extending the unit prices, the Bidder
is hereby notified that the unit prices as bid, will govern in determining the Total Base Bid. It is expressly understood
and agreed that the Total Base Bid is the basis for establishing the amount of Bid Security on this Proposal and for
comparison of bids only and is not to be constructed as a lump sum Proposal.

The undersigned attaches hereto a certified check or bidder's bond in the sum of not less than five percent (5%) of the
Total Base Bid as required by the Advertisement and Instructions to Bidders and the undersigned agrees that in case he
shall fail to fulfill his obligations under this Proposal and/or shall fail to furnish bonds, as specified, the Owner may, at
its option determine that the certified check or amount of said certified check or bidder's bond accompanying this
Proposal has been forfeited to the Owner, but otherwise the said certified check or bidder's bond shall be returned to
the undersigned upon the execution of the Contract and acceptance of the bond.

The undersigned further agrees that this proposal shall be effective for a period of sixty (60) days from the date
established for opening of all bids.

Date Company Name
By Address
Signature
Printed Name
Title Phone Number
Email Address

The vendor’s agreement to pay prevailing wage rates is one relevant consideration that Meridian Township may
make in its determination of which bidder should receive this contract. Meridian Township may thus consider in
awarding this contract whether any vendor voluntarily pays employees and sub-contractors, directly upon the site
of work, at least the prevailing wages and fringe benefits as determined and published by the United States
Department of Labor for the Ingham County area.

Will the bidder voluntarily pay its employees and sub-contractors, directly upon the site of work, at least the
prevailing wages and fringe benefits as determined and published by the United States Department of Labor
for the Ingham County area. Please circle one below:

Yes or No

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 P-4



GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

THIS CONTRACT, dated . 2025 by and between , hereinafter
called the "CONTRACTOR", and Meridian Charter Township, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI
48864-1198, hereinafter called the "OWNER".

WITNESSETH, that the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER for the consideration herein
agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. SCOPE OF WORK.

The CONTRACTOR shall perform everything required to be performed and shall provide and
furnish all labor, materials, necessary tools, expendable equipment and all utility and
transportation services required to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all the
work required for constructing the project as described in the Advertisement and Proposal and
for performing all related work for the OWNER, required by and in strict accordance with the
plans and specifications, including any and all addenda, and other Contract Documents
mentioned and made a part hereof.

ARTICLE II. THE CONTRACT PRICE.

The OWNER shall pay for constructing the project complete with all labor, materials,
equipment, appurtenances, surface restoration and related work in strict accord with the Plans
and Specifications, ready for use, the unit prices as listed in the Proposal and herein made a part
of this Contract. Payment shall be made to the CONTRACTOR in accordance with and subject
to the conditions specified under General Conditions.

ARTICLE III. TIME.
Time is of the essence in the performance of this contract. The CONTRACTOR agrees to start
work within ten (10) days of issuance of the Notice to Proceed and to fully complete the work

so as to permit use of the project by the OWNER within the number of calendar days or by the
completion date listed in the Advertisement.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 C-1



ARTICLE IV. DELAYS AND DAMAGES.

If the CONTRACTOR refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any separate part thereof, with
such diligence as will insure its substantial completion, ready for operation within the number
of consecutive calendar days specified herein, or any extension thereof, or fails to complete said
work within such time, the OWNER may, by written notice to the CONTRACTOR, terminate the
CONTRACTOR's right to proceed with the work or such part of the work as to which there has
been delay. In such event, the OWNER may take over the work and prosecute the same to
completion by contract or otherwise, and the CONTRACTOR and his sureties shall be liable to
the OWNER for any excess cost occasioned thereby. If the CONTRACTOR's right to proceed is
so terminated, the OWNER will take possession of and utilize in completing work such
materials, appliances, and plant as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore.

If the OWNER does not terminate the right of the CONTRACTOR to proceed, the CONTRACTOR
shall continue to work, in which event the actual damages for the delay will be impossible to
determine and in lieu thereof the CONTRACTOR shall pay the OWNER the sum of one thousand
dollars ($1,000.00) per day as fixed, agreed, and liquidated damages for each calendar day of
delay until the work is substantially completed, ready for operation and the CONTRACTOR and
his sureties shall be liable for the amount thereof. However, the right of the CONTRACTOR to
proceed shall not be terminated or the CONTRACTOR charged with liquidated damages
because of any delays in the completion of the work due to unforeseeable causes beyond
control and without the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including, but not restricted
to acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the OWNER, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine
restrictions, delays of subcontractors due to such causes, if the CONTRACTOR shall, within ten
(10) days from the beginning of any such delay (unless the OWNER shall grant a further period
of time prior to the date of final settlement of the Contract) notify the OWNER in writing of the
cause of delay and extend the time for completing the work when, in OWNER’s judgement, the
finding of fact justify such an extension and OWNER'’s findings of fact thereon shall be final and
conclusive on the parties thereto. In no event shall bankruptcy or labor disputes, or the like,
either of CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors or suppliers, be considered as an
unforeseeable cause beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the
CONTRACTOR.

ARTICLE V. COMPONENT PARTS OF THIS CONTRACT.

This Contract consists of the following component parts, all of which are as fully a part of the
Contract as if herein set out verbatim, or, if not attached: 1) Advertisement, 2) Instructions to
Bidders, 3) Proposal, 4) Addenda, 5) Contract, 6) Bonds and Insurance, 7) General Conditions,
8) General Specifications, 9) Ingham County Department of Transportation and Roads
Specifications, 10) Standard Specifications, 11) Special Provisions, 12) Plans, and 13) Notice to
Proceed.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 C-2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be
executed in three (3) original counterparts the day and year first above written.

CONTRACTOR
WITNESS:

By:

Title:

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
OWNER

WITNESS:

By:

Scott Hendrickson

Title: Supervisor
Date:

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 C-3



NOTICE OF AWARD

Dated:
TO:
ADDRESS:
CONTRACT: GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025
You are notified that your Bid dated , for the above Contract has been considered.

You are the apparent Successful Bidder and have been awarded a Contract for GATE VALVE
REPLACEMENT 2025.

The Contract Price of your Contract is: $

Three copies of each of the proposed Contract Documents accompany this Notice of Award.

You must comply with the following conditions within 10 days of the date you receive this
Notice of Award.

1. Deliver to the OWNER three fully executed counterparts of the Contract Documents.
(Each of the Contract Documents must bear your signature on page C-3.)

2. Deliver with the executed Contract Documents the Contract security (Bonds and
Insurance) as specified in General Conditions (GC).

3. Ifnotlisted as the owner, president, or partner, we need a letter (on letterhead) stating
the person signing contract, has permission to sign the contract.

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle OWNER to
consider your Bid in default, to annul this Notice to Award and to declare your Bid security
forfeited.

Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, OWNER will return to you one
fully executed counterpart of the Contract Documents.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

By:

Dan Opsommer
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Engineering & Public Works

NOTICE OF AWARD



NOTICE TO PROCEED

Dated:

TO:

ADDRESS:

CONTRACT: GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

You are notified that the Contract Times under the above Contract will commence to run on

2025. By that date, you are to start performing your obligations under the
Contract Documents. In accordance with Article III of the Contract, the date of Completion
is: 2025.

Deliver to OWNER an acknowledged copy of this Notice to Proceed.

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP

By:

Younes Ishraidi, P.E.
Township Engineer/Deputy Director PW

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE TO PROCEED

CONTRACTOR acknowledges acceptance of this Notice to Proceed this
,2025.

day of

Notice to Proceed



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.1 CONTRACT SECURITY
GC.2 CONTRACTORS' AND SUBCONTRACTORS' INSURANCE
A. Policies, Coverages and Endorsements

B Builder's Risk Insurance (Fire and Extended Coverage)
C. Owner's Protective Liability

D. Insured Parties

E. Acceptable Insurance Companies

F. Indemnification and Hold Harmless

GC.3  QUALIFICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT

GC.4 PROGRESS SCHEDULE

GC.5 ACCIDENT PREVENTION

GC.6 CONTRACT PRICE SCHEDULE

GC.7 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR

GC.8 SUBCONTRACTING

GCY9  ASSIGNMENTS

GC.10 EXTRAS

GC.11 CHANGES IN WORK/PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS
GC.12 TIME OF MAKING CLAIMS

GC.13 MATERIALS, SERVICES, AND FACILITIES

GC.14 TERMINATION FOR BREACH

GC.15 OWNER'SRIGHT TO WITHHOLD CERTAIN AMOUNTS AND MAKE APPLICATION THEREOF
GC.16 SUPERINTENDENCE

GC.17 NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF

GC.18 COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

GC.19 PERMITS

GC.20 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

GC.21 INSPECTIONS

GC.22 CORRECTION OF WORK AFTER FINAL PAYMENT
GC.23 PROTECTION OF WORK

GC.24 USE OF JOBSITE

GC.25 "OREQUAL" CLAUSE

GC.26 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

GC.27 OWNER'SRIGHT TO DO WORK

GC.28 CLEANING UP

GC.29 REPORTS, RECORDS AND DATA

GC.30 NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT
GC.31 DEFINITIONS

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-1



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.1 CONTRACT SECURITY

The Contractor shall furnish a surety bond, by a duly authorized surety company satisfactory to the
Owner, in an amount equal to 100 percent (100%) of the Contract price as security for the faithful
performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall also furnish a separate surety bond, by a duly
authorized surety company satisfactory to the Owner, in an amount equal to 100 percent (100%) of the
Contract price as security for the payment of all persons performing labor and/or furnishing materials.

The surety company writing the bid, performance, labor and material, and maintenance bond shall be:
1) acceptable to the Owner, 2) be listed in the Federal Register as published by the U.S. Department of
Treasury under most recently revised Circular 570; 3) have an A.M. Best Company’s Insurance reporting
rating of no less than A- (Excellent); and 4) authorized to do business in the State of Michigan by the
Michigan Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs Office of Financial and Insurance Regulations.
Upon request, the Contractor shall submit evidence of such insurance.

GC.2 CONTRACTORS' AND SUBCONTRACTORS' INSURANCE

The Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until he/she has obtained all the insurance
required under this section and such insurance has been approved by the Owner, nor shall the
Contractor allow any subcontractor to commence work on his/her subcontract until all similar
insurance required of the subcontractor has been so obtained and approved. Contractors and
subcontractors are required to file with the Owner completed certificates of insurance, as evidence that
they carry adequate insurance to comply with the requirement of this section. New Certificates of
Insurance shall be furnished to the Owner at the renewal date of all policies named on these certificates.

A. Policies, Coverages, and Endorsements

The Contractor agrees to maintain, or to cause its personnel providing services under this
Contract to maintain, at its sole cost and expense or the cost and expense of his personnel, the
following insurance policies, with the specified coverages and limits, to protect and insure the
Owner and Contractor against any claim for damages arising in connection with Contractors
responsibilities or the responsibilities of Contractors personnel under this Contract and all
extensions and amendments thereto.

1. Commercial General Liability

a. General Aggregate $2,000,000
b. Each Occurrence $1,000,000

Such insurance shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for:

Comprehensive form, Premises-operations, Explosion and collapse hazard,
Underground hazard, Products/completed operations hazard, Contractual insurance,
Broad form property damage, Independent contractor, Personal injury

2. Workers' Compensation & Employer’ Liability (if applicable)

a. Medical & Indemnity Statutory Requirements
b. Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Each Accident
C. Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Each Employee
d. Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit

e. Employers Liability $500,000

3. Automobile Liability

Including hired and non-owned Automobiles  $1,000,000 (Combined Single Limit)
Such insurance shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for:
Comprehensive form, Owned vehicles, Hired vehicles, Non-owned vehicles

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-2



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.2 CONTRACTORS' AND SUBCONTRACTORS' INSURANCE (Cont’d.)
B. Builder's Risk Insurance (Fire and Extended Coverage)

Until the project is completed and accepted by the Owner, the Contractor is required to
maintain Builder's Risk Insurance (fire and extended coverage) on a 100 percent completed
value basis on the insurable portion of the project for the benefit of the Owner, the Contractor,
and subcontractors as their interests may appear.

C. Owner's Protective Liability

The Contractor shall procure and shall maintain during the life of this Contract
Owner's/Contractor's Protective Liability Insurance, listing the Owner as the named insured.
The minimum limit of liability shall be not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence/aggregate.

D. Insured Parties

All policies shall contain a provision naming The Charter Township of Meridian, it’s Board of
Trustees, agents, officers, employees, and volunteers as Additional Insured parties on the
original policy and all renewals or replacements during the term of this Contract.

E. Acceptable Insurance Companies

All insurance companies required by this section shall be: 1) acceptable to the Owner; 2)
authorized to do business in the State of Michigan by the Michigan Department of Licensing
& Regulatory Affairs Office of Financial and Insurance Regulations, and 3) have an A.M. Best
Company’s Insurance reporting rating of no less than A- (Excellent). Upon request, the
Contractor shall submit evidence of such insurance.

F. Indemnification and Hold Harmless

The Contractor shall, at its own expense, protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the
Owner and its elected and appointed officers, employees, and agents from all claims,
damages, costs, lawsuits and expenses, including, but not limited to, all costs for
administrative proceedings, court costs and attorney fees that they may incur as a result of
any acts, omissions, or negligence of the Contractor, its subcontractors, sub-subcontractors
or any of their officers, employees, or agents. This includes but is not limited to injury or
death to any person or persons, including the contractors employees, and damage to
property. The furnishing by the Contractor of any insurance required by this Contract, or the
acceptance or approval thereof by the Owner as provided in this Contract, or otherwise, shall
not diminish the Contractor's obligation to fully indemnify the Owner, its elected and
appointed officers, employees, and agents as required in this section.

The Contractor shall not cancel or reduce the coverage of any insurance required by this section without
providing 30-day prior written notice to the Owner. All such insurance must include an endorsement
whereby the insurer shall agree to notify the Owner immediately of any reduction by the Contractor.
The Contractor shall cease operations on the occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction, and shall
not resume operations until new insurance is in force.

GC.3 QUALIFICATION FOR EMPLOYMENT

The Contractor shall employ competent laborers and mechanics for the work under this Contract, and
shall comply with all applicable regulations of the United States Department of Labor and any other
agencies having jurisdiction.

GC.4 PROGRESS SCHEDULE

The Contractor, if requested by the Owner, immediately after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare
and submit to the Owner and its representative an estimated progress schedule for the work in relation
to the entire project. This schedule shall indicate the dates for the starting and completion of the various
stages of construction.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-3



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.4 PROGRESS SCHEDULE (Cont’d.)

If the Contractor chooses to work overtime, they will be backcharged for inspection. Overtime is any
Township recognized holiday and/or any time other than 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m,, local time, Monday
through Friday. No work will be allowed at the site prior to 7:00 a.m. or after 7:00 p.m., or dusk, of
any working day. No work will be allowed on Sundays with the exception of work necessitated by an
emergency.

GC.5 ACCIDENT PREVENTION

Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons (including employees) and
property, and hazardous conditions shall be guarded against or eliminated. The Contractor is entirely
responsible for all aspects of job safety and shall execute the work under this Contract in strictest
conformance with all state and local safety codes, rules and regulations.

GC.6 CONTRACT PRICE SCHEDULE

The Contractor, if requested by the Owner, shall submit to the Owner a cost breakdown for the various
items of the work. The schedule shall be prepared in a manner acceptable to the Owner as to both form
and completeness and supported by data as necessary to substantiate its correctness.

GC.7 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall submit semi-monthly, or at longer intervals, if he so desires, an invoice covering
work previously performed for which he believes payment, under the Contract terms, is due, and shall
deliver said invoice to the Owner. Each request for payment shall be accompanied by a statement
certifying that all bills for labor and materials have been paid up for all previous pay requests.

Each progress payment request shall be paid within one of the following time periods, whichever is later:

A. Thirty (30) days after the Owner has certified that the work is in place in the portion of the
facility covered by the applicable request for payment in accordance with the documents.

B. Fifteen (15) days after the Owner has received the funds with which to make the progress
payment from a department or agency of the federal or state government, if any funds for the
facility are to come from either of these sources.

To assure proper performance of the Contract by the Contractor, the Owner shall retain ten percent
(10%) of the dollar value of all work in place until the work is fifty percent (50%) in place. After the
work is fifty percent (50%) in place, additional retainage shall not be withheld unless the Owner
determines that the Contractor is not making satisfactory progress, or for other specific cause relating
to the Contractor's performance under the Contract. In the event of such a determination the Owner
may retain up to but not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the dollar value of the work more than fifty
percent (50%) in place.

Any funds retained by the Owner shall not exceed the prorated share of the Owner's matching
requirement if the project is funded, in part, with federal or state funds. Any retained funds shall not be
commingled with other funds of the Owner and shall be deposited in an interest-bearing account in a
regulated financial institution.

At any time after ninety-four percent (94%) of the work under the Contract is in place and at the request
of the Contractor, the Owner shall release the retainage plus interest, only if the Contractor provides to
the Owner an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of the retainage plus interest, issued by a bank
authorized to do business in the State of Michigan, containing terms mutually acceptable to the
Contractor and Owner.

Retainage shall be released to the Contractor together with the final progress payment.
Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-4



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.7 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR (Cont’d.)

Owner and Contractor agree that disputes concerning retainage, at the option of the Owner, shall be
submitted to the decision of the agent as provided in Section 4 of Act 524 of the Michigan Public Acts of
1980 (MCLA 125.1564; MSA 5.2949 (104)) and that interest earned on retainage shall be released to the
Contractor together with the final progress payment except as provided in said Section 4 of 1980 PA
524.

The final progress payment request by the Contractor shall include:

A A final invoice in a form satisfactory to the Owner.

B. A sworn statement certifying that all bills for labor and materials have been paid by the
Contractor.

C. A sworn statement waiving any further claims (other than the final payment, retainage and

interest, if any) by the Contractor against the Owner.
D. A certificate from Contractor's bonding company approving issuance of final payment.

All payments shall take due account of additions to or deductions from the Contract price as herein
provided.

The acceptance by the Contractor of payment on the final progress payment request shall be conclusive
evidence of Contractor's acceptance and approval of estimates, accounting and deductions, and of full
payment by the Owner for all work, labor, materials and services done or furnished hereunder, and a
full satisfaction, discharge, release and waiver of all claims and demands of or on behalf of the Contractor,
its agents or employees against the Owner arising out of this agreement.

GC.8 SUBCONTRACTING

The Contractor shall not award any work to any subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer or fabricator
without prior written approval of the Owner, which approval will not be given until the Contractor
submits a written statement to the Owner concerning the proposed award to the subcontractor. Said
statement shall contain such information as the Owner may require.

The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his subcontractors
and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as he is for the acts and omissions of
persons directly employed by him.

The Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the work
to bind subcontractors to the Contractor by the terms of the General Conditions and other Contract
documents insofar as applicable to the work of the subcontractors, and to give the Contractor the same
power of terminating any subcontract that the Owner may exercise over the Contractor under any
provision of the Contract documents.

Nothing contained in this Contract shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and
the Owner.

GC.9 ASSIGNMENTS

The Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of this Contract or any monies due or to become
due hereunder without written consent of the Owner. In case the Contractor assigns all or any part of
any monies due or to become due under this Contract, the instrument of assignment shall contain a
clause substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of the assignee in and to any monies due
or to become due to the Contractor shall be subject to prior liens of all persons, firms and corporations
for services rendered or materials supplied for the performance of the work called for in this Contract.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-5



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.10 EXTRAS

Except as otherwise herein provided, no charge for any extra work or materials will be allowed unless
the same has been ordered in writing by the Owner and the price stated in such order.

GC.11 CHANGES IN WORK/PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS

Adjustments, if any, in the amounts to be paid by the Contractor by reason of changes in, additions to, or
deductions from the work to be performed or the materials to be furnished under this Contract, shall be
made on the basis of the acceptable unit prices or lump sums submitted by the Contractor covering such
changes, additions or deductions.

Failing an acceptable lump sum or unit price basis for extra work caused by changes or additions, the
Contractor may be directed to proceed with extra work on the basis of actual total cost of:

A. Labor, including foremen (including fringe benefits);

B. Materials entering permanently into the work;

C. The ownership or rental cost of construction plant and equipment during the time of use on
the extra work at a rate not to exceed AGC rates;

D. Power and consumable supplies for the operation of power equipment;

E. Insurance;

F. Social Security and unemployment contributions.

To the cost of the six items above, there shall be added a fixed fee, to be agreed upon but not to exceed
fifteen percent (15%) of the actual cost of the work. The single fee shall be compensation to both the
Contractor and/or subcontractor to cover the cost of supervision, overhead, bond, profit and any other
general expenses.

Failing an acceptable lump sum or unit price basis for adjustment for any decrease in work caused by
changes or deductions, the amount of such adjustment may be determined on a similar basis to that
described for extra work, with the Contractor furnishing all pertinent cost data from his/her books and
records that may be available and necessary for determination of the amount of adjustment.

All changes in, additions to, or deductions from the work specified shall be made only by written order
by the Owner or by an authorized representative of the Owner. No claim for extra work will be allowed,
unless ordered in writing as above stated, and the claim therefore presented in writing by the Contractor
on or before the fifth (5th) day of the month following that in which the work was done.

GC.12 TIME OF MAKING CLAIMS

If the Contractor shall claim compensation or extension of time for any losses, damages, or delays
sustained by reason of the acts of the Owner or its agents or other causes, he/she shall make a written
statement of the nature of the loss, damage, or delay sustained to the Owner, within ten (10) days after
the sustaining of such loss, damage, or delay. At the time of delivery and as a part of the Contractor's
Declaration as hereinafter provided, the Contractor shall file with the Owner an itemized statement of
the details and amounts of the loss, damage, or delay, and unless the statement shall be made as thus
required, the Contractor's claim for compensation or extension of time shall be forfeited and invalidated,
and he/she shall not be entitled to payment or extension of time on account of any such loss, damage or
delay.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-6



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.13 MATERIALS, SERVICES, AND FACILITIES

It is understood that except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract documents, the Contractor
shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, light, power, transportation,
superintendence, temporary construction of every nature and all construction facilities whatsoever
necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the work within the specified time.

Any work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or Sundays and legal holidays, shall
be performed without additional expense to the Owner.

GC.14 TERMINATION FOR BREACH

In the event that any of the provisions of this Contract are violated by the Contractor or by any of his
subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon the Contractor and the Surety of its intention
to terminate the Contract, such notice to contain the reasons for terminating the Contract, and unless
within ten (10) days after the serving of such notice upon the Contractor, the violation shall cease and
satisfactory arrangements for correction be made, the Contract shall cease and terminate. In the event
of a termination of the Contract, the Owner shall immediately serve notice thereof upon the Surety and
the Contractor, and the Surety shall have the right to take over and perform the Contract.

However, if the Surety does not commence performance thereof within 30 days from the date of mailing
said Notice of Termination to such Surety, the Owner may take over the work and prosecute the same
to completion by contract for the account and at the expense of the Contractor. The Contractor and his
Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost incurred by the Owner in completing the work,
and Owner may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, all materials, appliances and
plants as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore.

GC.15 OWNER'S RIGHT TO WITHHOLD CERTAIN AMOUNTS AND MAKE APPLICATION
THEREOF

The Owner may withhold a sufficient amount of any payment otherwise due to the Contractor to cover:

A Payments that may be past due and payable for just claims for labor, materials, or equipment
furnished in and about the performance of the work on the project under this Contract.

B. For defective work not remedied.

C. For failure of the Contractor to make proper payments to his subcontractors.

The Owner shall disburse and shall have the right to act as agent for the Contractor in disbursing such
funds as have been withheld pursuant to this paragraph to the party or parties who are entitled to
payment therefrom. Any payment so made by the Owner shall be considered as a payment made under
the Contract by the Owner to the Contractor. The Owner will render to the Contractor a proper
accounting of all funds disbursed in behalf of the Contractor.

GC.16 SUPERINTENDENCE

The Contractor shall give his/her personal superintendence to the work or have a competent foreman
or superintendent, satisfactory to the Owner, on the worksite at all times during work progress, with
authority to act for the Contractor.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-7



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.17 NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF

Where in any of the Contract documents there is any provision in respect to the giving of any notice, such
notice shall be deemed to have been given; as to the Owner, when written notice shall be delivered to
the Owner, or shall have been placed in United States mails with first-class postage pre-paid addressed
to the chief executive officer of the Owner at the place where the bids or proposals for the Contract were
opened; as to the Contractor, when a written notice shall be delivered to the chief representative of the
Contractor, at the site of the project or by mailing such written notice in the United States mails with
first-class postage pre-paid addressed to the Contractor at the place stated in the papers prepared by
him to accompany his proposal as to the address of his permanent place of businesses; as to the Surety,
when a written notice is placed in the United States mails with first-class postage pre-paid addressed to
the Surety at the home office of such Surety or to its agent or agents who executed bonds in behalf of
such surety.

GC.18 COMPLIANCE WITH LAW, APPLICABLE LAW, AND VENUE

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, County, and Municipal laws, ordinances,
rules and regulations.

This contract shall be construed according to the laws of the State of Michigan.

The venue for the bringing of any legal or equitable action under this contract shall be the County of
Ingham, of the State of Michigan. In the event that any action is brought under this Contract in Federal
Court, the venue for such action shall be the Federal Judicial District of Michigan, Western District,
Southern Division.

GC.19 PERMITS

The Township will secure and pay for the Building Permit from the Meridian Township Building
Department. All other permits or licenses which may be needed for prosecution of the work are to be
obtained by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

GC.20 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

The Contractor shall pay for all royalties and patents, and defend all suits or claims for infringement on
any patent right, and shall save and hold harmless the Owner from loss on account thereof.

GC.21 INSPECTIONS

The Owner and its representative shall at all times have access to the work wherever it is in preparation
or progress and the Contractor shall provide facilities for such access and for inspection.

The Owner and/or its representative shall have the right to reject materials and workmanship which
are defective, or require their correction. Work on the project may be ordered terminated until
correction is made. Rejected workmanship shall be satisfactorily corrected, and rejected materials shall
be removed from the premises without charge to the Owner. If the Contractor does not correct
condemned work and remove rejected materials within a reasonable time, fixed by written notice, the
Owner may remove them and charge the expense to the Contractor.

Should it be considered necessary or advisable by the Owner at any time before final acceptance of the
entire work to make an examination of work already completed, by removing or tearing out same, the
Contractor shall on request promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and materials. If the work is
found to be defective in any material respect, due to fault of the Contractor or their subcontractors, they
shall defray all the expenses of examination and satisfactory reconstruction. If, however, the work is
found to meet the requirements of the Contract, the actual cost of labor and material necessarily involved
in the examination and replacement, plus 15 percent (15%) shall be allowed the Contractor.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-8



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.22 CORRECTION OF WORK AFTER FINAL PAYMENT

Neither the final payment nor any provision in the Contract documents nor partial or entire occupancy
of the premises by the Owner shall relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for negligence or faulty
materials or workmanship within the extent and period provided by law, and, upon written notice,
he/she shall repair any defects due thereto and pay for any damage due to other work resulting
therefrom, which shall appear within one year after date of completion and acceptance.

GC.23 PROTECTION OF WORK

The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all his/her work from damage and
shall protect the Owner's and adjacent property from injury arising in connection with this Contract, and
shall be responsible for all damage and/or injury caused by or arising out of his operations.

GC.24 USE OF JOB SITE

The Contractor shall confine his/her equipment apparatus, the storage of materials and operations of
his/her workmen to limits indicated by law, ordinances, permits or directions of the Owner and shall
not encumber the premises with his materials.

GC.25 "OR EQUAL" CLAUSE

Whenever in any of the Contract documents an article, material or equipment is defined by describing a
proprietary product, or by using the name of a manufacturer or vendor, the term "or equal” if not
inserted, shall be implied. The specific article, material or equipment mentioned shall be understood as
indicating the type, function, minimum standard of design, efficiency, and quality desired and shall not
be construed in a manner so as to exclude manufacturer's products of comparable quality, design and
efficiency. The Contractor shall comply with the requirement of the Contract documents relative to the
Owner's approval of materials and equipment before they are incorporated in the project.

GC.26 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

The Contractor shall keep on the worksite a copy of the drawings and specifications and shall at all times
give the Owner access thereto. Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown on the drawings,
or shown on the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications, shall be of like affect as if shown or
mentioned in both. In case of difference between drawings and specifications the specifications shall
govern. In any case of discrepancy in the figures, drawings or specifications, the matter shall be
immediately submitted to the Owner, without whose decision said discrepancy shall not be adjusted by
the Contractor, save only at his/her own risk and expense.

The Owner shall furnish from time to time such detail drawings and other information as he/she may
consider necessary, unless otherwise provided. The Contractor shall keep such drawings at the site of
the work.

GC.27 OWNER'S RIGHT TO DO WORK

If the Contractor should neglect to prosecute the work properly or fail to perform any provision of this
Contract, the Owner three (3) days after given written notice to the Contractor and his/her Surety may,
without prejudice to any other remedy the Owner may have, make good such deficiencies and may
deduct the cost thereof from the payment due to the Contractor.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-9



GENERAL CONDITIONS

GC.28 CLEANING UP

The Contractor shall at all times keep the premises free from accumulations of waste material or rubbish
caused by his/her employees or work, and at the completion of the work he /she shall remove all his/her
rubbish from and about the work and all his/her tools, equipment, scaffolding and surplus materials and
shall leave his/her work clean and ready for use. In case of dispute, the Owner may remove the rubbish
and surplus materials and charge the cost to the several Contractors in proportion to the amounts as
shall be determined to be just.

GC.29 REPORTS, RECORDS AND DATA

The Contractor and each of his/her subcontractors shall submit to the Owner such schedules of
quantities, costs, progress schedules, payrolls, reports, estimates, records, and other data as the Owner
may request concerning work performed or to be performed under this Contract.

GC.30 NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

The Contractor shall adhere to all applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and
regulations prohibiting discrimination with regards to employees and applicants for employment. The
Contractor, as required by law, shall not discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment
with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or
indirectly related to employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight,
marital status, or handicap that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a
particular job or position. Breach of this section shall be regarded as a material breach of this Contract.

GC.31 DEFINITIONS

The following terms as used in these Contract documents are respectively defined as follows:

(a) "Contractor” The person, firm or corporation to whom the within Contract is awarded
by the Owner and who is subject to the terms hereof.

(b) "Subcontractor” A person, firm or corporation other than a Contractor, supplying labor
and materials or labor for work at the site of the project.

(© "Project” The total construction proposed by the Owner to be constructed in part
or in whole pursuant to the within Contract.

(d) "Work on the Project" Work to be performed, including work normally done, at the location of
the project.

(e) "Surety” Any person, firm or corporation that has executed, as surety, the

Contractor's performance and/or labor and material bonds securing the
attached Contract.

§]] "Owner" The public body or authority for whom the work is to be performed and
as identified in the advertisement and proposal.

(g) "Engineer” The Director of Public Works and Engineering for the Meridian
Township or their authorized representative.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GC-10



GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS
INDEX
GS.1 Definition
GS.2 Elevations
GS.3 Quality of Materials and Equipment Furnished
GS.4 Care of Existing Structures
GS.5 Care of New Structures
GS.6 Existing Public Utilities
GS.7 Protection of Trees and Shrubs
GS.8 Safety Precautions
GS.9 Sanitary Requirements
GS.10 Utilities
GS.11 Pumping and Drainage
GS.12 Winter Construction
GS.13 Use of Facilities before Final Completion
GS.14 Test of Materials
GS.15 Other Work
GS.16 Lines and Grades
GS.17 Complete Work Required
GS.18 Property Markers
GS.19 Records and Measurements
GS.20 Guarantee

GS.1 _DEFINITION

The Contractor shall furnish all materials specified herein, shown on the plans, and required to be
incorporated in the work of the Contract. They shall furnish all labor, construction equipment, tools,
supplies and facilities required to construct the elements designated by the Contract documents and
shall construct all of the designated elements complete and in full conformance with the
requirements of these documents. They shall comply with all regulatory provisions of the Contract,
General Conditions and the Specifications.

GS.2 ELEVATIONS

All the elevations shown on the plans or referred to herein are in feet above mean sea level datum as
established by the United States Geological Survey, unless otherwise noted. The Contractor shall
verify all the existing structure locations and elevations at points of connection or possible
interference between their work and the existing structures and shall report at once to the Engineer
any interference’s or discrepancies discovered.

GS.3 UALITY OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT FURNISHED

All materials and equipment furnished by the Contractor hereunder shall be new and conform to
specifications herein.

Materials, supplies, and equipment, whether furnished by the Contractor or the Owner, shall be
stored at the site of the work in such manner as not to interfere with traffic, convenience to public or
other Contractors on the site or in the vicinity. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage
caused to new or existing structures by reason of such storage or handling of materials, supplies, or
equipment.

Flammable materials in portable containers are not to be stored overnight on the site. This includes,
but is not limited to, gasoline and diesel fuel for use in construction machinery. Portable containers

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GS-1



GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

suitably protected, will be allowed overnight at the site, if confined to permanent tanks which are a
normal part of the construction machinery.
GS.3 QUALITY OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT FURNISHED (Cont'd.)

Where the Contractor is required to do work within rights of way under the jurisdiction of
governmental bodies, they shall meet the requirements of said governmental bodies for work and
storage within their jurisdiction. Such requirements must be met as a minimum requirement, and if
the specifications given herein impose further limitation on the work, they shall also be met as the
required work standard.

The Contractor’s attention is directed to the Ingham County Road Department permit specifications,
Section 5. Restoration and Maintenance of Right-Of-Way (e.), for dust control requirements.

GS.4 __CARE OF EXISTING STRUCTURES

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any damage to any existing underground services or
structures, or to structures and roadway above ground caused by their operations or those of their
subcontractors and suppliers.

GS.5 CARE OF NEW STRUCTURES

The Contractor shall use every reasonable precaution to prevent injury to the new structures being
constructed hereunder. They shall be responsible to correct all injury or damage resulting from their
operations and/or occurring while the work is under their supervisory control. They shall furnish
and install such guards, coverings and other protection as may be needed to insure that the structures
remain undamaged prior to completion of the entire work.

In the event damage does occur to the finished portions of the work, or to the work in progress, the
Contractor shall take such corrective action and measures as may be necessary to repair the damage
to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

GS.6 EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITIES

Existing public utilities and underground structures such as pipelines, electric conduits and sewers
are shown on the drawings from available information. The Contractor shall, through Miss Dig and
any other reasonable measures, verify the exact location of underground utilities for themselves.

The Contractor shall conduct their operations so as not to damage any existing utility whether or not
shown on the plans. The Contractor shall correct, at their own expense, any damage or injury that
may be caused by them during their operations or damage or injury caused during the operations of
their subcontractors or suppliers.

The Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating relocation or repair of existing public and
private utilities with the appropriate utility or owner. No extra payment will be allowed for repairs.

If the Contractor desires, or is required by the utility companies, to relocate any power or telephone
poles to facilitate their work, any expense encountered from such relocation shall be borne by the
Contractor.

GS.7 PROTECTION OF TREES AND SHRUBS

All trees and shrubs encountered along the route of the project shall be protected from damage by
the Contractor and saved from harm resulting from any of their operations or operations of their
subcontractors and suppliers. Only those trees and shrubs marked for removal on the plans shall be
removed. All others will be saved from damage by tunneling or by slightly adjusting the alignment of
the project as directed by the Engineer.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GS-2



GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS
GS.8 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

During the progress of the work, the Contractor shall maintain adequate facilities for the protection
and safety of all persons and property. The Contractor and all their subcontractors and suppliers shall
comply with the “Construction Safety and Health Standards” as published by the Michigan
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, and to all other local, state and federal laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations pertaining to safety of persons or property.

GS.9 SANITARY REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall provide adequate sanitary facilities for all persons employed on this Project. The
sanitary facilities shall conform in every way to the requirements of the “Construction Health and
Safety Standards” as published by the Construction Safety Standards Commission of the State of
Michigan.

GS.10 UTILITIES

The Contractor shall make all necessary arrangements for the provision of all utility services required
to prosecute the work under this Contract. The Contractor shall pay the costs for such connections
and service. Where the Owner has utility service at the site, the Contractor may obtain service by
connection to the Owner’s service, subject to reasonable regulation of its use and satisfactory
agreement as to charges. In the event that the Contractor’s use of any or all of the Owner’s utility
services causes the Owner to have an inadequate supply of such service, the Contractor shall
disconnect said service and provide their own separate supply at no cost to the Owner.

All utility services shall be inspected by and meet the requirements of the applicable local codes and
governmental bodies.

GS.11 PUMPING AND DRAINAGE

Adequate pumping and drainage facilities shall be provided and water from whatever sources
entering the work during any stage of construction shall be removed promptly and disposed of. All
pumping and drainage shall be done with no damage to property or structures and without
interference with the right of the public, owners of private property, pedestrians, vehicular traffic, or
the work of other contractors. Dewatering shall be done in such a manner that the soil under or
adjacent to existing structures shall not be disturbed, removed or displaced.

The overloading or obstructing of existing drainage facilities shall not be permitted, and the
Contractor shall be solely responsible for damages caused to such existing drainage facilities by their
operations. Additionally, sufficient measures shall be utilized to prevent migration of soil from the
site due to any pumping or drainage activities.

GS.12 WINTER CONSTRUCTION

The Engineer has authority over approving the prosecution of work which is proposed to be done
during the winter months. The Contractor shall provide adequate weather protection, temporary
heating and take any other measures which are necessary to ensure that work performed during the
winter months is properly installed and protected against damage from freezing.

Reference is made in Division 4 of the Technical Specifications to the requirements for performing
concrete construction and masonry construction in cold weather.

GS.13 USE OF FACILITIES BEFORE FINAL COMPLETION

The Owner shall have the right to make use of, during construction, such portions of completed and
acceptably tested facilities as it finds practicable. Such use by the Owner shall not relieve the
Contractor from responsibility for any defective work which may be subsequently discovered.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GS-3



GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS
GS.14 TEST OF MATERIALS

All laboratory tests, except as otherwise noted, are to be made at the expense of the Contractor as
specified in the Technical Specifications. The Contractor shall furnish satisfactory containers for
taking and shipping samples. The name of the laboratory making the test must be submitted by the
Contractor to the Engineer for approval.

In all cases “laboratory” refers to an independent laboratory of recognized standing. Acceptance of
materials tested shall be based upon compliance with the specifications hereinafter stated for the
various items. Where no particular tests are specified, the tests shall be those normally made for
determination of the fitness of the particular material. Certificates of tests shall be furnished by the
testing laboratory or producer, in triplicate, to the Engineer.

The Owner may require, at its own option and expense, additional mill and/or shop inspection by
competent parties. The Owner may require, at its own option and expense, additional field inspection
by a qualified inspector.

All materials failing to meet the requirements of the specifications, as determined by test or
otherwise, shall be rejected and not used in the work. The cost of testing materials which fail to meet
requirements shall be paid by the Contractor. All follow-up testing required shall also be paid by the
Contractor. Materials, if rejected at the site, shall be immediately removed therefrom and shall not
be used in the work.

GS.15 OTHER WORK

The Contractor shall cooperate with other Contractors on the site or adjoining work to the end that
the entire Project may proceed with the utmost harmony and with a minimum of delay.

Where the work under this Contract is to involve work completed under other contracts or existing
facilities or structures, the Contractor shall investigate the condition of such other work or facility to
determine its suitability for incorporation into the work of this Contract. Any defect or discrepancy
in other work of facility making it unsuitable for proper execution of this Contract shall be
immediately reported to the Owner who shall order such adjustments in the work of the project as
necessary for proper completion, and unless such defect or discrepancy is reported promptly, the
Contractor shall be solely responsible for any adjustments in the work as shall be found necessary to
properly complete the work on this project.

GS.16 LINES AND GRADES

General control lines and grades will be established by the Owner. The Contractor shall notify the
Engineer no less than 48 hours prior to requiring such control. The Contractor shall furnish all stakes
and labor for driving them and rodmen to assist the Owner in this work. The Contractor shall
carefully preserve the general control lines and grades established by the Engineer. The cost of
replacement of stakes which are damaged or lost shall be borne by the Contractor.

Construction lines and grade shall be transferred and set by the Contractor from the control lines and
grades established by the Engineer, and the Contractor shall furnish necessary instruments and
competent personnel for performing such work, and they shall be responsible for the accuracy of the
transferred line and grade. The Owner will check the work at intervals, as it deems necessary, and
the Contractor shall make correction of error, if any, at their own expense, as may be required for the
proper function and performance of the structure and installed equipment.

GS.17 COMPLETE WORK REQUIRED

It is the intent of the Contract documents to provide that the Project to be constructed under this
Contract will be complete and ready for use. Any minor items not specifically called for on the plans
or specifications, but which are clearly necessary, are to be included.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GS-4



GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

GS.18 PROPERTY MARKERS

The Contractor shall take precautions not to move or destroy any monuments or stakes marking the
boundaries of property along or near the work. A licensed surveyor shall reestablish property irons
in the proper location if disturbed. Buried property irons shall be extended 1/2" diameter rods. The
Contractor shall pay for reestablishment.

GS.19 RECORDS AND MEASUREMENTS

The Contractor shall keep careful records showing measured overall length of underground facilities
installed and distances of such from any available line as may be designated by the Engineer. Such
records shall be turned over to the Engineer as the work progresses and the records must be accurate
and complete.

GS.20 GUARANTEE

The Contractor shall guarantee and shall secure from the manufacturer of each item of manufactured
equipment used in the project a written guarantee that all materials and equipment furnished by
them shall be first class and free from defects, and the guarantor agrees that they will, upon notice
and without delay, make good or repair without expense to the Owner the whole or any part of the
equipment furnished by them hereunder, which within a year from date of acceptance of that portion
of completed work incorporating such equipment shall fail or develop unfitness for the purpose for
which it is intended as a result of any defect in design, material, workmanship, erection or
construction.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 GS-5



INGHAM COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT
SUPPLEMENTARY PERMIT SPECIFICATIONS
FOR UTILITY INSTALLATIONS

As referred to herein:

“Board” shall denote the Board of Ingham County Road Commissioners or its duly appointed agents.

“Utility” shall denote any cable, conduit, pipe, structure, or similar facility installed within the road right-of-way.
“Contractor” shall denote an individual or legal entity contracted to perform a proposed utility’s installation.

1.

2.

GENERAL

All proposed utility installations within county road right-of-way shall be reviewed and approved
by means of a permit issued by the Board, regardless of the type, size, location, or installation
method. The Board shall have absolute authority over any work to be performed within the county
road right-of-way and shall exercise said authority at its discretion. The Board reserves the right to
impose, at its discretion, cash bond requirements for any permit granted. The cash bond may be
used to reimburse the Board for work not performed by the Contractor, restoration of roadways
caused by Contractor activities, costs associated with detour signing, and other reasonable
expenses incurred by the road commission.

The Board shall have the authority to direct any work or stop any work, permitted or not permitted,
that in its opinion is not being performed to the Board’s satisfaction. All costs for corrective work
or work stoppages shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

To issue a utility installation permit, the applicant must provide drawings that illustrate all the work
to be performed, the method of installation, and materials to be used. If road or lane closures are
proposed, along with the information required below, the approximate start and completion date
shall be provided on the permit application.

ROAD CROSSINGS

All proposed utility crossings of county roads shall be performed using methods other than open
cut methods unless otherwise permitted by the Board. The following are general specifications or
provisions to be followed when installing utilities using methods other than open cut methods.

1. The methods of utility installation described in this section include, but are not limited to,
tunneling, bore and jacking, and directional boring. These methods represent preferred
installation methods and are employed to allow installation of utility road crossings
without closing the road to through traffic or damaging the existing road pavement. The
Board, at its discretion, may require that a particular installation method be employed by
the Contractor.

2. When a utility is to be installed by tunneling methods, the tunnel shall be adequately
sheeted and shored to prevent the tunnel walls from collapsing and the road pavement from
settling or cracking.

3. When a utility is to be installed by bore and jacking methods, a casing pipe will be required
with the utility to be installed inside the casing pipe. The annular space between the utility
and the casing pipe shall be filled and sealed using pressure grouting or other approved
methods.

4, All shafts or pits not sheeted and shored shall be located, at least, 10 feet off the edge of
road pavement in rural sections and 6 feet behind the back of curb in urban sections.

RC-1


nunn
Typewritten Text
RC-


If any settlement or other changes in grade occur in the vicinity of the utility crossing
within one year of the work, upon notification the road shall be immediately reconstructed
to the proper grade at the Contractor’s expense. In addition, damage to the roadway
embankment, shoulder, and pavement shall also be immediately repaired to the Board’s
satisfaction.

Unless otherwise approved by the Board, all utilities shall have a minimum cover of 4 feet
below the road surface. Where approved construction plans indicate cover greater that 4
feet, the plan depth shall govern.

All costs for maintaining traffic, including flagging operations, shall be the responsibility
of the permitted party. Traffic control shall be erected in accordance with the current
edition of the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) or as
directed by the Board. Modifications to traffic control measures may be ordered by the
Board, at its discretion, and the cost of any modifications shall be the responsibility of the
Contractor. Once work is completed for the day, traffic control signs which are not
appropriate shall be covered or removed so that the motoring public is made aware of the
road’s condition and how to safely traverse through the work zone.

If, in the opinion of the Board, traffic conditions warrant suspension of utility installation
operations and restoration of a road’s full capacity, the Contractor shall comply
immediately. All costs associated with such an action shall be borne by the Contractor.

If the Board permits a proposed utility crossing of a county road using open cut methods, the
following general specifications or provisions shall be followed:

1.

Large projects that involve many utility crossings and or may extend for several months
shall be completed in “sections”. The intent being, that once a particular crossing, of many,
is completed or a 1/4 mile “section” of a multi-mile utility has been installed, the
Contractor shall restore the road and right-of-way to the satisfaction of the Board before
moving on to the next crossing or section of utility installation.

In general, open cut utility crossings will not be allowed during winter months.

Open cut utility crossings shall be performed during off-peak traffic hours unless
specifically permitted by the Board. Off-peak hours vary, but they are typically between
the hours of 9:00 am to 3:00 pm.

Unless otherwise approved by the Board, all utilities shall have a minimum cover of 4 feet
between the utility and the road surface. Where approved construction plans indicate cover
greater that 4 feet, the plan depth shall govern.

All costs for maintaining traffic, including flagging operations, shall be the responsibility
of the permitted party. For road closures intended to last one or two days, the contractor
will submit a deposit with the permit application, the Ingham County Road Department
will set up, maintain, and dismantle the road closure, the actual costs incurred will be
subtracted from the deposit and the remainder returned to the contractor. If incurred costs
exceed the deposit, the contractor will be billed for the overage. For road closures intended
to last an extended period of time, the Contractor shall set up, maintain, and dismantle the
closure per the approved detour plan. Regardless, traffic control shall be erected in
accordance with the current edition of the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control
Devices (MMUTCD) or as directed by the Board. All traffic control schemes are to be
approved prior to the beginning of work. Modifications to traffic control measures may be
ordered by the Board, at its sole discretion, and the cost of any modifications shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor.

RC-2


nunn
Typewritten Text
RC-


If a proposed road closure is not permitted, at least one lane of traffic shall be maintained
with proper flagging operations in effect throughout the work day. Road cuts shall be
backfilled, flush with the driving surface at the end of each working day, appropriately
signed, and opened for overnight traffic. Depending on traffic volumes and other
conditions, the Board may require the permit applicant to provide by-pass lanes (either
paved or unpaved) to maintain traffic.

Maintenance of open cut work zones is the responsibility of the Contractor and shall be in
effect 24 hours a day for the duration of the work.

3. PAVEMENT AND GRAVEL SURFACE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

a. All proposed open cut utility installations or existing utility installations needing corrective
reconstruction shall conform to the following specifications or provisions:

1.

All pavement to be removed shall be saw cut, full depth, to its removal limit and carefully
removed as to not damage the saw cut edge. All damaged edges shall be subsequently saw
cut and removed back to sound pavement. The pavement removal limit shall extend, at
least, 1 foot beyond both sides of the open cut trench.

Both bituminous and concrete pavement removal shall have a minimum width of 6 feet, be
perpendicular to the centerline of the road, and extend the full width of existing lanes.
Diagonal pavement removal and replacements will not be allowed unless approved by the
Board.

Concrete pavement removal limits are to utilize existing joints whenever possible. The
minimum distance between a concrete replacement slab and an existing pavement joint
shall be 5.5 feet unless approved by the Board. The Contractor shall verify concrete
pavement removal limits with the Board prior to pavement replacement.

b. Pavement replacement and gravel road surface restoration shall conform to the following
specifications or provisions:

1.

Aggregate base material under pavement shall be a minimum of 8-inches thick and meet
MDOT 21AA or 22A aggregate specifications, as determined by the Board. The proposed
aggregate base material shall conform to the characteristics of the insitu aggregate base
material as much as possible. Bituminous pavement replacement shall either match the
existing pavement thickness or be 5-inches thick, whichever is greater, and utilize hot mix
asphalt materials that meet or exceed MDOT 13A bituminous mix specifications.
Concrete pavement replacement shall either match the existing pavement thickness or be
7-inches thick, whichever is greater, and utilize 4500 psi strength concrete that meets or
exceeds MDOT specifications. Concrete pavement patch size and geometry shall be
determined by the Board and shall be doweled into adjacent concrete pavement.
Aggregate surfaced roads and shoulder material shall be a minimum of 6-inches thick and
meet MDOT 22A or 23A aggregate specifications. Aggregate base shall be compacted to
95% of its maximum density, hot mix asphalt is to be compacted to 97% of its maximum
density, and aggregate shoulder material shall be sufficiently graded and compacted to
prevent standing water and erosion problems.

The finished driving surface shall be installed to conform to the vertical profile of the
existing roadway and not exhibit “dips” or “humps” that are noticeable to the motoring
public. “Mounding” over excavations to allow for future settlement will not be permitted.
If settling or upheavals occur at pavement replacement locations, the Contractor may be
required to remedy the situation. Failure to do so may result in a stoppage of subsequent
work or denial of subsequent permits.

RC-3


nunn
Typewritten Text
RC-


3. Bituminous pavements shall not be replaced using lifts that exceed 250 Ibs/syd (2 1/4
inches thick). A tack coat emulsion shall be applied between successive lifts of bituminous
paving.

4. Replacement concrete pavement shall be doweled into adjacent pavement using 18-inch
long by #9 and #5 epoxy coated deformed bars. The dowels shall be drilled, inserted
9-inches, and grouted in accordance with current MDOT specifications. Dowels installed
along the pavement edge, parallel to the lane lines (#9), shall be spaced at 18-inches on
center. Dowels installed along the pavement edge, perpendicular to the lane lines (#5),
shall be spaced at 24-inches on center.

5. Composite pavements, such as asphalt overlaying concrete pavement shall be replaced to
match the existing pavement structure using the same provisions described above. If
approved by the Board, composite pavements may be replaced with full depth asphalt
equal in thickness to the existing pavement structure.

4. BACKFILLING AND COMPACTION

a.

All utility trenches, holes, bore pits, and other excavations within the county road right-of-way
shall be backfilled with granular material that meets or exceeds MDOT class Il material.
Excavation backfill shall be placed and compacted to 95% of its maximum density in successive
layers that are no more than 12-inches thick. In-place backfill density shall be verified and reported
to the Board by an independent testing laboratory. The cost of said verification and reporting shall
be the responsibility of the Contractor. The above backfilling and compaction provisions shall
apply to that portion of the subgrade that is within the influence of the roadway pavement structure,
including the shoulder. Refer to MDOT Trench Detail “B”. Failure to meet said backfill and
compaction requirements may result in a stoppage of subsequent work, replacement of deficient
backfill, and denial of subsequent permits.

All under drain systems and similar facilities destroyed or disturbed due to the utility installation
shall be rebuilt using similar materials and in a manner that completely restores their function.

5. RESTORATION AND MAINTENANCE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY

All drainage courses shall be restored with topsoil, seed, and mulch immediately after completion
of utility installations. The Contractor shall employ and maintain soil erosion and sedimentation
measures to stabilize all disturbed grounds per the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s (ICDC)
standards. Disturbed drainage courses or backslopes that have steep grades, as determined by the
Board, shall be stabilized with mulch blanket, rock check dams, or both. The Contractor shall
follow ICDC and Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Best Management
Practices (BMS) for soil erosion and sedimentation control.

All existing storm sewer, drainage structures, culverts, and similar facilities shall be protected
during utility installation. If permitted by the Board and the structure owner, the Contractor may
remove and replace said facilities if needed for utility installation. All replacement facilities shall
be in accordance with current agency (owner) requirements for materials and construction
standards, regardless of existing condition. Any damaged facilities left in place during utility
installation shall be fully repaired to the satisfaction of the Board, or be replaced in accordance with
current agency (owner) requirements. It is the responsibility of the contractor to research and
obtain permission from the appropriate “owner” for the proposed work.

All traffic signs requiring replacement or that need to be relocated due to utility installation shall be

replaced or relocated by Ingham County Road Department personnel and their costs reimbursed by
the Contractor.

RC-4


nunn
Typewritten Text
RC-


Encroachments (private installations) within the road right-of-way, such as fences, mailboxes, and
hedges that must be removed due to utility installation may be replaced or re-installed, within the
right-of-way, upon approval of the Board. In general, removed objects, other than mailboxes,
cannot be re-installed within the road right-of-way. Please be aware that the Ingham County Road
Department will not become involved with negotiations between the utility owner and property
owners relative to encroachment removal and replacement, but the Board will ultimately approve
or disapprove whether replacements are allowed, and their subsequent locations.

The Contractor shall maintain a safe work area, free from dust and free from dirt and mud being
tracked onto the adjacent roadway. The Contractor shall make arrangements to have paved roads
swept and gravel roads treated with dust palliative for the duration of installation activities. If
requested by the Board, the Contractor shall sweep roads or apply dust palliative within 4 hours of
the request. Failure to do so may result in a stoppage of work.

6. MANHOLE CASTING, VALVE, AND FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS

a.

Permitted utility manhole structures and vaults shall conform to the following specifications or
provisions:

1. In general, proposed manhole castings and valve boxes shall be located outside the paved
road surface and somewhere other than in the roadside ditch. If approved by the Board,
manhole castings and valve boxes installed within a paved surface or parkway shall be
located flush with the existing surface, manhole castings and valve boxes installed within
the traveled portion of a gravel road shall be located 6-inches below the road’s surface, and
manhole castings and valve boxes installed in a ditch bottom shall be located, at least
12-inches below the ditch bottom. The contractor may be required to re-route the ditch
around manhole castings and valve boxes, at the discretion of the Board.

2. Manhole castings and valve boxes shall not protrude from the backslope of the road or
above the normal ground contour by more than 6-inches. The contractor may be required
to adjust a manhole casting or regrade the area, to the Board’s satisfaction, at their expense.

3. Proposed manhole casting and valve box type shall be approved by the Board prior to the
start of installation. If at any future time it is determined that the type of casting or valve
box must be changed due to road reconstruction, widening, resurfacing, etc., the utility
owner agrees, by performing under permit, to bear all costs for the change

4. Proposed fire hydrant installations shall be approved by the Board prior to the start of
installation. If at any future time it is determined that the fire hydrant must be moved due
to road reconstruction, widening, resurfacing, etc., the utility owner agrees, by performing
under permit, to bear all costs for moving the fire hydrant.

7. TREE REMOVAL, TRIMMING, AND TUNNELING

a.

All tree removals, trimming, and tunneling within county road right-of-way shall be reviewed and
approved by means of permit by the Board of Ingham County Road Commissioners. Any trees,
regardless of their location, that cannot be protected due to utility installation or are in eminent
danger of dying as a result of utility installation shall be removed by the Contractor. All stumps
shall either be removed or ground flush with the average ground surface in the vicinity of the
stump.

Proposed tree removals, trimming, and tunneling shall be sufficiently illustrated on construction
plans along with the tree’s species and size so that a proper review and site visit can be performed.

Trees that are located close to proposed utility installations, in the county road right-of-way, and
reside within maintained lawn areas shall be protected from above ground and below ground

RC-5


nunn
Typewritten Text
RC-


damage. Any trees, as described above, that are to be removed due to utility installation, shall only
be removed after the Contractor has given notice to the adjacent property of the intent to remove the
tree(s) and offered replacement trees. In general, the Board will require the Contractor to replace
“lawn” trees removed due to utility installation. Replacement trees shall be planted outside the
road right-of-way or at locations approved by the Board.

d. All stumps, logs, limbs, and litter shall become the property of the utility installation contractor and
be properly disposed of. The adjacent property owners have the right of ownership of wood felled
within the right-of-way, therefore the Contractor shall offer to leave the felled wood for the
property owners use. Wood requested by the property owner shall be left outside of the county road
right-of-way.

CONDUCT OF OPERATIONS

a. The Contractor shall control and ensure that trucking operations related to utility installations
adhere to the current Michigan Vehicle Code and restrictions imposed by the Board, including
spring weight restrictions. Failure to do so will result in the truck operator being ticketed and may
also result in a stoppage of work.

b. Contractors, permitted or not permitted, who conduct utility installation operations in a manner
detrimental to the Board’s statutory obligation to maintain county roads reasonably safe for the
public will be required to cease utility installation activities and correct all detrimental conditions
immediately. If deemed necessary by the Board, cash deposits to cover the cost of a full-time
ICRD inspector to ensure proper operations may have to be submitted to the Board before utility
installation continues.

d. Dewatering water disposed of by the Contractor within the county road right-of-way must be
approved by the Board in advance of any discharge and conform to Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Best Management Practices (BMS) for soil erosion and
sedimentation control. In general, discharge of water into roadside ditches for more than a couple
of hours will not be allowed. If the Board deems it necessary that dewatering activities be modified
or discontinued altogether, the Contractor shall comply and devise another method to complete
their work. The Contractor, by performing under permit, accepts the responsibility of restoring the
road right-of-way and affected drainage system to the satisfaction of the Board and the Ingham
County Drain Commissioner after dewatering system removal.

e. The Contractor shall store construction materials as far off the road so that the materials do not pose
a hazard nor block the vision of the traveling public and those seeking egress and ingress to private
property. Only materials to be installed immediately can be stored within the right-of-way. All
other materials and equipment shall be stored outside of the right-of-way.

e. For location of underground utilities, the Contractor shall call Miss Dig at 1-800-482-7171 a
minimum of three working days prior to utility installation.

Rev. 01-06

RC-6


nunn
Typewritten Text
RC-


EARTHWORK (DIVISION 1)

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
DIVISION 1

EARTHWORK
INDEX

1.01 SCOPE

1.02 CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. CLEARING THE SITE
PROTECTION OF TREES
EROSION CONTROL
EXCAVATION
BACKFILLING & ROUGH GRADING
EXTRA SAND BACKFILL
EXTRA STONE BEDDING
RESTORATION & CLEAN UP

NN

1.01 SCOPE

The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment for all excavation and backfilling required
for work under this contract, including all sheeting, shoring and bracing, dewatering of excavation, and other
work as herein specified. All work shall be done in accordance with the current Michigan Department of
Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction, except as stated within this specification.

1.02 CONSTRUCTION METHODS
1. Clearing the Site

The Contractor shall clear the site of all brush and debris which may be present and interfering with
construction operations and shall remove and dispose of the same. No trees or shrubs are to be removed
unless shown on the plans or permitted by the Engineer. Concrete, asphalt, trees, and shrubs shown on the
plans to be removed shall be disposed of at a suitable location off the site of the work.

2. Protection of Trees

All trees which are to be preserved or which, in the opinion of the Engineer, might be subject to damage by
the Contractor's operations, shall be adequately protected against damage to the bark by 2-inch thick
vertical planking securely wired or tied completely around the tree trunk. Such protection shall not be
removed until authorized by the Engineer.

No excavation greater than 1 foot in depth shall be made by machine within 5 feet of any tree. If the
excavation cuts within the canopy (dripline) of a tree, the Contractor shall tunnel under roots and protect
them from injury throughout the work. All roots greater than 2" shall be cleanly cut, if removed.

Trees which interfere with the work, and the removal of which is permitted, shall be removed by the
Contractor in a safe manner and incidental to construction unless otherwise noted on plans and proposal.
No trees are to be removed without the expressed approval of the governmental body or property owner
having jurisdiction thereof, and of the Engineer.

Trees, trunks, and limbs to be removed that are greater than six inches in diameter shall be trimmed and cut
into lengths less than eight feet and piled outside of the right of way for use if the abutting property owner
so desires. If the property owner does not desire the timber, the timber becomes the property of the
Contractor. All other timber, brush, limbs, and stumps shall be disposed of by the Contractor. Onsite burning
will not be allowed.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 1-1 (Spec Date: Dec 2019)



EARTHWORK (DIVISION 1)
1.02 CONSTRUCTION METHODS (Cont’d.)

3. Erosion Control

Erosion Control devices shall be installed as shown on the plans and as needed to eliminate the migration of
soil from the worksite. Typical devices include catch basin fabric drops (silt sacks) and silt fence.
Additional requirements, as necessary, can be found in the Special Provisions.

Fabric drops shall be designed and constructed for use in the specified structure. Drops shall be installed
prior to construction, cleaned and maintained in a working state for the duration of the project, and
removed and disposed of upon final completion and restoration of the construction site.

Silt fence shall be a product in accordance with the MDOT 2020 SSC, Section 910.

Grass shall be growing before the erosion control measures are removed. Retainage will not be released
until the sediment guards are removed.

4. Excavation
A. General

Trench excavation shall be by open cut, except as otherwise shown or permitted. Excavation may be
performed by any practical method consistent with the integrity and protection of the work, adjoining
structures, and the protection of workers and the public.

Excavation of trenches for piping shall provide a minimum net clearance of six inches outside the barrel
of the pipe and, in all cases, shall be of sufficient width to permit the convenient placing of pipe and
making of joints. The bottom of the trench shall be shaped so as to conform as nearly as possible to the
outside of the pipe, particular care being taken to recess the bottom of the trench in such a manner as to
relieve the bell of all load and to provide continuous soil bedding under the lower quadrant of the pipe.

Excavation for structures shall be extended sufficiently beyond the limits of the structure to provide
ample room for practical construction methods to be followed.

If excess excavation is made or the material becomes disturbed so as to require removal beyond the
prescribed limits, the resulting space shall be refilled with selected material. It shall be thoroughly
tamped into place in not more than six inch layers, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, before the
construction work proceeds. Alternatively it may be filled with Class B Concrete or Flowable Fill.

Foreign materials such as slabs of wood, boulders, etc. which obstruct the excavation, shall be removed
with other excavation; and where such obstructions occur at or near the bottom, requiring excavation
below grade for their removal, the excavated area shall be brought back to grade as in the previous
paragraph, and incidental to construction. Unnecessary excavation below grade by the Contractor shall
be refilled to grade as in previous paragraph, and at the Contractor's expense.

B. Existing Utilities and Structures

The Contractor shall cooperate with all utility firms, in advance, to locate and avoid interference with
and damage to existing facilities, insofar as possible. Means for elimination of interference and
correction of damage shall be subject to the instruction or approval of the Engineer. Where any apparent
conflicts with underground utilities become evident, the Contractor shall excavate the utility in advance
of working in the area. The Engineer shall then determine if any conflict exists and, if so, shall determine
the action to be taken. Exploration for underground utilities is incidental to the other work performed.

Underground pipes or structures encountered in excavation shall be adequately supported during the
Contractor's operations. Before backfilling, the structure shall receive a permanent support of a suitable
material approved by the Engineer, extending from the bottom of the excavation to the underside of the
pipe or other structure.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 1-2 (Spec Date: Dec 2019)



EARTHWORK (DIVISION 1)

1.02

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

4. Excavation

B. Existing Utilities and Structures (Cont’d.)

The Contractor shall use care not to damage adjoining structures and existing underground utilities.
Existing underground pipes and cables are shown on the plans insofar as information is reasonably
available. The Contractor shall be responsible to ascertain the locations of all utilities, whether shown
on the plans or not.

Work within MDOT and Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) rights of way is done under separate
permit from the agency involved. In addition, to these specifications, the Contractor shall adhere to all
conditions contained in such permits.

When excavating along paved roads, extreme care shall be taken that the existing pavement and
structures will not be damaged or undermined. All sheeting, bracing, and other equipment necessary to
prevent damage shall be furnished by the Contractor. Where a trench must be cut through a roadway or
driveway, particular care shall be taken not to unnecessarily damage adjoining areas of pavement.
Existing pavement shall be sawcut prior to excavation.

Sheeting or other suitable protection, as required, shall be provided wherever excavation is performed
adjacent to an existing structure. Any material removed from beneath the foundation of an existing
structure shall be replaced with Class B concrete. Sheeting, bracing, and shoring required to support the
sides of excavation shall be removed with care after completion of the work. Any injury to the work or
to adjacent property resulting from the removal shall be repaired by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage caused by their operations to pipes, structures, poles
and accessories, and the like above or below ground, whether shown on the plans or not. They shall
make good and repair any such damage to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Particular care shall be
exercised where excavation or other work is being prosecuted near electric or telephone lines.

C. Ground Water

Excavations shall be kept dry during placing of pipe and initial backfill. The Contractor shall supply stone
sumps and pumps as necessary to maintain satisfactory conditions. This work is considered incidental
to the pipe cost.

The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to prevent the accumulation of water to such a level
as might cause damaging uplift pressure to partially completed structures. The Contractor shall be
responsible for any damage to partially completed structures because of inadequate or improper
protection from uplift pressure, and shall repair or remove and replace at their own expense, to the
satisfaction of the Engineer, all work so damaged.

D. Dewatering

The Engineer may direct the installation of a dewatering system if they deem it necessary to lower the
adjacent water table. This is a pay item which includes all costs to furnish and operate the system,
including down-time and remobilization. Only use this method when normal methods, outlined in above
paragraph (4C), prove to be insufficient.

Backfilling and Rough Grading

A. Bedding and Initial Backfill

The backfilling and bedding of utilities shall not incorporate frozen materials. Trench backfill shall be
carefully placed such that pipeline and grade are not disturbed. Bedding and initial backfill shall be as
specified for ductile iron, plastic, and concrete pipe in Division 2 and for ductile iron pipe in Division 3
of the Technical Specifications.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 1-3 (Spec Date: Dec 2019)



EARTHWORK (DIVISION 1)
1.02 CONSTRUCTION METHODS

5. Backfilling and Rough Grading (Cont’d.)
B.  Final Backfill Outside Right of Way

The remainder of the trench, if not in a roadway, may be backfilled with excavated material unless it
contains peat, muck, cinders, stones larger than 6" in diameter, or other undesirable material as
determined by the Engineer. This undesirable material shall, upon written order of the Engineer, be
removed and replaced with Extra Sand Backfill or material approved by the Engineer.

In a field, above a point 12-inches over the pipe, water main trenches may be backfilled completely with
loose material and compacted from the top of the trench. Sewer trenches shall be backfilled and
compacted in layers of 3'. In lawn areas the layers in each case shall not exceed 12".

Excavated material, above a point 12-inches over the top of the pipe, shall be compacted by running the
wheel or track of excavation equipment along the trench or by methods and equipment approved by the
Engineer. At least 30" cover over the top of pipe is required for wheeled or tracked vehicles and 48"
cover for machine mounted compactors. Temporary mounding of excess material over the trench will
be allowed only until such time as lawn repairs are completed.

C. Backfill within Roadway Zone of Influence

Where excavation cuts through a road, drive, or sidewalk, or is in the zone of influence of a pavement,
the trench shall be backfilled with granular material and compacted in accordance with MDOT or ICRD
specifications, whichever is applicable. Road crossings are incidental to pipe installation. Longitudinal
trenches will be paid as the bid item Extra Sand Backfill, unless otherwise specified.

D. Rough Grading

At the end of each working day, all excavations shall be completely backfilled up to existing grade with
all excess excavated material being removed from the site. The excavation at the point where pipe
installation is to start on the next working day need not be backfilled if it is greater than 6 feet deep,
adequately protected, fenced, and lighted. However, in all cases, roadways and driveways should be
made accessible overnight.

Excessive soil settlement and any resulting damage which occurs within one year of final approval shall
be repaired by the Contractor at no cost to the owner.
6. Extra Sand Backfill
When the Engineer deems the native backfill material above the pipe to be unsuitable (such as rocks, peat
or landfill outside the right of way or clay within the right of way) they may order extra sand backfill.

The unsuitable material shall be removed from the site and replaced with an approved granular material.
This granular material shall be compacted as previously specified for excavated material.

Sand used under paved driveways, for road crossings, for pavement sub-base or for pipe bedding and
backfill to a point 12" over the pipe is considered incidental to the project and does not qualify as Extra Sand
Backfill, unless it is the result of a plan change.

7. ExtraStone Bedding

This item is used, as directed by the Engineer, to replace any unsuitable earth foundation, (such as muck,
landfill or rubble), below the pipe bedding or trench bottom. The unsuitable material shall be removed from
the site and replaced with one-inch crushed stone.

Stone used for dewatering purposes and for pipe bedding and backfill is considered incidental to the project
and does not qualify as Extra Stone Bedding.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 1-4 (Spec Date: Dec 2019)



EARTHWORK (DIVISION 1)
1.02 CONSTRUCTION METHODS (Cont'd.)

8. Restoration & Clean-Up

As construction operations proceed, the Contractor shall follow their operations with a general clean-up
which shall include rough grading, removal of debris, temporary replacement of mailboxes, temporary
restoration of driveways, etc. The general clean-up shall follow construction such that no more than 1000
feet shall remain uncompleted at any time. Access to individual homes and parcels shall remain
uninterrupted during construction operations with all driveways temporarily restored to use at the end of
each working day. Temporary driveways and roads shall be maintained by the Contractor during the period
of construction.

After all construction has been completed, the Contractor shall finish, grade and rake all areas disturbed by
construction. Topsoil shall then be spread on the prepared areas to a depth of 3-inches. All stones and lumps
larger than 1-inch diameter plus all roots, litter and other foreign material shall be raked out prior to seeding
or sodding.

Lawn areas and vacant land shall be repaired with seeding, fertilizer and mulch. 12-12-12 fertilizer shall be
evenly applied at a rate of 200 Ibs./acre. Seed shall be MDOT “THM” mixture and shall be sown following or
in conjunction with the fertilizer and while topsoil is in a friable condition. Seed shall be evenly sown at a
rate of 220 pounds per acre and shall not be sown through mulch. Mulch blankets shall be installed
immediately after seeding and shall be pinned in place, unless otherwise specified.

If called for, lawn areas shall be repaired with first-quality commercial lawn sod. The existing sod in the
excavated areas shall be cut, trimmed and removed as necessary to accept a minimum 12-inch width of new
sod without overlapping new sod onto the existing or without leaving gaps between the new sod and
existing. Watering of new sod shall be the responsibility of individual property owners.

Driveways and approaches shall be repaired with material of the same quality, width and thickness as that
which existed prior to construction, but shall not be less than the following:

i. Concrete shall be 6-sack, transit-mixed; formed, jointed and finished to match existing. Slabs less
than 24-inches wide shall be removed and replaced with new concrete - see Division 4 of the Technical
Specifications for additional requirements.

ii.  Asphaltshall be MDOT HMA 13A, three inches compacted thickness and rolled to a uniform, dense
surface. Prior to placing of new asphalt, the existing asphalt shall be trimmed with a concrete saw to
straight edges which are parallel with the adjoining roadway. Overlays shall be preceded by an asphalt
primer. Thicknesses greater than two inches shall be placed in two layers that have cooled between
courses.

It is the intent that upon completion of the work all surfaces will be returned to the standard of profile and
conditions that existed prior to this work. All gravel, top soil, seeding, sodding, surface restoration, paving,
etc., shall be performed under this contract. Surface restoration shall include replacement of mailboxes,
posts, fences, signs, culverts, ditches and other miscellaneous improvements. No deviations from existing
conditions will be allowed without the written permission of both the Engineer and the affected property
owner.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 1-5 (Spec Date: Dec 2019)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP STANDARD SPECIFICATION

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

DIVISION 3
INDEX
3.01 SCOPE
3.02 WATER MAIN MATERIALS
1. Pipe
A. General
B. Joints
C. Cement Mortar Lining
D. Length of Pipe
E. Pipe Thickness
F. Coating
G. Independent Tests
2. Fittings
3. Valves
4, Valve Boxes
5. Fire Hydrants
6. Bolts
3.03 INSTALLATION METHODS
1. Pipe
2. Valve Manholes
3. Setting Valves and Boxes
4. Setting Fire Hydrants
5. Thrust Blocks
3.04 WATER SERVICES
1. Pipe Material
2. Service Fittings
3. Installation
4. Inspection
5. Guarantee
3.05 TESTING AND STERILIZATION
1. Pressure Testing
2. Sterilization and Bacteriological Testing
3.01 SCOPE

The contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment and materials to completely construct, test, and
place in operation the water system as shown on the plans and as specified herein.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-1 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

3.02 WATER MAIN MATERIALS

All pipes, piping fittings, plumbing fittings, and fixtures that are used for potable water must comply
with the new lead-free requirement and must bear the mark NSF/ANSI Standard 61, Annex G or
NSF 61-G.

1. Pipe

A.

General: All pipe used for main lines shall be ductile iron meeting the requirements of
ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51. Where these specifications differ with ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51,
these specifications will prevail.

Joints: The bell of each length of pipe shall provide for the seating of a single rubber gasket
meeting the requirements of ANSI/AWWA C111/A21.11 Standards. The gasket shall be self-
centering when the plain end of a pipe enters the bell. Sufficient lubricant shall be furnished to
provide a coating on each plain end of pipe. The lubricant shall be non-toxic, shall impart no taste
or odor to the water and have no deleterious effect on the rubber gasket. The lubricant shall be
of a consistency that can be easily applied to the pipe in hot or cold weather and shall adhere to
either wet or dry pipe.

Cement Mortar Lining: Cement Mortar lining of pipe shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C104/A21.4,
except for the following items. Care shall be taken to insure that no mortar remains in the joint
surface of the bell. If mortar is found in the joint surface or lining of greater thickness than
allowed, the pipe will be returned.

Length of Pipe: The minimum nominal laying length of the pipe shall be 18 feet. A maximum of
20 percent of the total number of each size of an order may be furnished as much as 24 inches
shorter than the nominal laying length; an additional 10 percent may be furnished as much as 6
inches shorter than nominal laying length.

Pipe Thickness: Ductile iron pipe shall have a wall metal thickness as follows:

6-inch pipe 0.37 inch (Class 54)
8-inch pipe 0.39 inch (Class 54)
12-inch pipe 0.43 inch (Class 54)
16-inch pipe 0.46 inch (Class 54)
20-inch pipe 0.48 inch (Class 54)

Tolerances will be as allowed in ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51. Pipe sizes not listed above will not
be approved for use as main lines in the Township water system.

Coating: The inside and outside of the pipe shall be coated with a bituminous coating of either
coal-tar or asphalt base one mil thick.

Independent Tests: The supplier shall furnish reports of all tests and inspections as required in
ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-2 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

3.02 WATER MAIN MATERIALS (Cont'd.)

2. Fittings
All fittings shall be mechanical joint ductile iron, shall be short bodied and conform to ANSI/AWWA
C153/A21.53 or ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10 Standards. Ductile Iron fittings shall be designed for a
working pressure of 350 pounds per square inch (psi).

Seal coating with bituminous material of the fittings shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C104/A21.4
Standard. Fittings shall be bituminous coated inside and out.

All mechanical joint accessories including glands, rubber gaskets and bolts shall be furnished for each
joint opening and shall conform with ANSI/AWWA C111/A21.11, except cast bolts are not permitted.

Tapping sleeves shall be from the same manufacturer as the valve. They shall be ductile iron (ASTM
A536 Grade 65-45-12), or stainless steel. The flange dimensions and drilling shall comply with ANSI
B16.1 Class 125 with MSS SP-60. The mechanical joint shall comply with AWWA C111.

3. Valves
Valves shall be iron body, bronze mounted, double disc, and parallel seat gate valves conforming to
AWWA C-500 or resilient seated gate valves conforming to AWWA C-509. The valve ends shall be
mechanical joints with glands, bolts, and gaskets furnished. The stem seal shall be of the double “0”
Ring design. The operating nut shall be a standard 2-inch square. The valve shall have a non-rising
stem, open left inside screw. All bolts, pins and fasteners used for attachments in the disk or wedging
mechanism shall be bronze.

The wedge rubber shall be permanently bonded to the wedge in a process meeting the requirements
of ASTM D429.

Gate valves shall be EJIW FlowMaster® series with an EJIW screw-type valve box,

Valves greater than 12 inches shall be butterfly type meeting the requirements of AWWA C504.
Butterfly valves shall have a 150-pound per square inch rating with the seat molded, vulcanized and
bonded to the body. Ends shall be mechanical joints with glands, bolts, and gaskets furnished. The
valve shall open left with a minimum of 32 turns, have a non-rising stem and a standard 2-inch square
operating nut. Valves shall be equal to those manufactured by Traverse City Iron Works, Dresser
Manufacturing, Henry Pratt Company or equal as approved by Engineer.

4. Valve Boxes
Valves smaller than 12-inch shall be fitted with a valve box. The valve boxes shall be cast iron, screw
type, three piece, consisting of the base, the center section and the top section. The length shall be
adjusted by means of threads cast into the top and center section. The center section shall lock into
the base. A cover shall be furnished marked “Water”.

The base shall be No. 6 Round and the shaft shall be 5-1/4 inch. The size shall provide for a range of
extension of 55-75 inches from the top of pipe.

The valve boxes shall be Tyler Series 6860 or Clow F2450, or as approved by Engineer.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-3 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

3.02 WATER MAIN MATERIALS (Cont'd.)

5. Fire Hydrants
The fire hydrants shall have a center stem with double “O” Ring packing. The hydrant valve shall be
5-1/4 inch in diameter. The barrel and head shall be cast iron with a breakable traffic safety flange.
All fire hydrants shall conform to AWWA C502 Specifications.

The drain mechanism shall drain the hydrant barrel down to the level of the valve seat. The hydrant
head shall contain the hose nozzles and be able to face in any of eight positions without digging up
the hydrant. The hydrant head shall have two 2%:-inch hose nozzles and one 4-inch pumper
connection. Each nozzle cap shall be attached to the hydrant with a non-linking chain. The inlet
connection shall be 6-inch mechanical joint.

The depth of trench shall be 5% feet. Threads shall be Meridian Township Standards.

The hydrants shall open left with a standard 1%-inch pentagon nut, shall be painted OSHA red and
shall be East Jordan Iron Works 5 BR. The hose nozzle threads shall be #4 (2 %" National Standard
Thread). The pumper nozzle shall be fitted with the “Harrington Integral Hydrant Storz” nozzle.

6. Bolts
No cast iron bolts shall be used. All bolts shall meet approval of Engineer.

3.03 INSTALLATION METHODS

1. Pipe [Ref. Sec. 1.02]
The installation, handling, and storage of all pipe and appurtenances shall be in accordance with
AWWA Standard C-600 and manufacturer’s recommendations. Pipe shall at all times be protected
against impact shocks and free fall. Stockpiling of pipe and appurtenances at the site shall be in such
a location as to minimize handling and prevent collecting or submergence with water.

A water main shall be separated from a sanitary sewer crossing by 18" vertical and a 10" horizontal
separation when parallel. The trenching method for Class 54 ductile iron shall be AWWA Type 1: flat
bottom (undisturbed earth), loose backfill.

The depth of trench shall be such that the top of the pipe shall not be less than five feet below the
proposed finish grade, unless otherwise shown on the plans or so ordered by the Engineer. The
trench shall be of such width as will readily permit the laying, handling and assembling of the pipes
in the trench and to allow a thorough filling and compacting of the earth refill adjacent to the lower
half of the pipe. Holes, no larger than necessary, shall be provided for the bells at each joint and to
ensure that the pipe barrel will lie flat on the trench bottom. Blocking of pipe will not be allowed.

After the trench has been excavated, the pipe, fittings, valves and hydrants shall, after first being
inspected and the joints cleaned, be carefully placed into the trench in such a manner as to prevent
damage to them. Under no circumstances shall water main materials be dropped or dumped into the
trench. All lumps, blisters and excess tar coating shall be removed from the bell and spigot ends of
each pipe and fittings. The outside of the spigot and the inside of the bell shall be wire brushed and
wiped clean and dry before the pipe is laid. Any damage to the exterior coating of the pipe shall be
repaired with an approved coating before the pipe is laid. After placing a length of pipe in the trench,
the spigot end shall be lubricated and then entered in the bell and the pipe forced home and brought
to correct line and grade. Lubricants recommended by the pipe manufacturer and approved for use
on potable water systems shall be applied as recommended. Due care should be used to seat the
gasket evenly in the bell at all points.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-4 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

3.03 INSTALLATION METHODS
1. Pipe [Ref. Sec. 1.02] (Cont'd.)

The plain end of the slip type joint is furnished with a slight taper to ease its sliding fit with the gasket
when the joint is made up. When necessary to cut pipe in the field, the outside of the cut end should
be tapered by filing or grinding back about 1/8 inch at an angle of about 30 degrees with the
centerline of the pipe.

A plug shall be used during any breaks in construction to prevent any possible contamination. If the
trench contains any water, the open ends of the pipe shall be plugged with a watertight plug.

To form a long-radius curve or to avoid obstructions, the pipe may be deflected within the tolerances
recommended by the manufacturer and approved by the Engineer. Some common deflections from
AWWA C-600 are:

Push-on Joint Mechanical Joint
Max. Offset Max. Offset
Diameter 18' 20' 18" 20’
6" 19" 21" 27" 30"
8" 19" 21" 20" 22"
12" 19" 21" 20" 22"
16" 11" 12" 13%" 15"

Backfill for a Type 1 trench requires no compaction. When under existing or future roadways or
lawns, then specified density procedures shall prevail.

Polyethylene encasement of pipes will be required in areas with corrosive soils including swamp,
marshes, alkaline soils, cinder beds, landfill areas or any other potentially corrosive location. The
encasement thickness shall be 8 mil minimum and installed in accordance with ANSI/AWWA
C105/A21.5.

2. Valve Manholes
Valves 12 inches and greater shall be installed in a valve manhole. All tap valves shall be installed in
manholes. The size of the manholes shall be 5’ in diameter for existing mains that are smaller than
12",and 6' in diameter for 12" mains and larger. The manhole covers shall have “Meridian Township
Water” cast into the top.

3. Setting Valves and Boxes
All valves shall be set with the stem in a vertical position and shall be plumb. Valve box shall be so set
that it will not transmit shock or stress to the valve. It shall be centered over the stem nut of the valve
and shall be true and plumb. The box shall be adjusted so that the cover is flush with the finished
ground surface or as directed by the Engineer. Stone shall not be placed around the valves.

4. Setting Fire Hydrants
Fire hydrants shall be located as shown on the plans, or as directed by the Engineer. All hydrants shall
be set to a grade that will place the 4" hose nozzle twenty-one (21) inches above the ground surface,
unless otherwise directed by the Engineer. Sufficient barrel extensions shall be furnished and
installed by the contractor to meet this requirement.

Each hydrant shall be connected to the main by a 6-inch branch. A 6-inch gate valve shall be installed
in each hydrant connection. The hydrant and valve shall be connected to the mainline tee by 3 /4-inch
rods as shown in the detail on the plans.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-5 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

3.03 INSTALLATION METHODS

4.

Setting Fire Hydrants (Cont'd.)

Excavation for each hydrant shall extend at least twelve inches (12") below the base of the hydrant
and shall have an area of at least four square feet. Before setting the hydrant, the excavation shall be
filled to the elevation of the hydrant, base with washed or broken stone. After the hydrant is set and
securely blocked, additional washed or broken stone shall be placed around the base of the hydrant
to an elevation of twelve inches (12") over the 6-inch branch connection.

. Thrust Blocks

All bends, stub ends, plugs and any other portion of the system which may be subject to separation
of joints because of water pressure shall be securely thrust blocked. Blocking shall be concrete
poured in place and shall be so placed as to prevent any movement of pipe or fitting joints due to
water pressure. Size and shape of blocks shall be in accordance with the details shown on the plans.

3.04 WATER SERVICES

1.

Pipe Material
Allowable sizes are 1-inch, 1%-inch, 2-inch, 3-inch, 4-inch, or as specified for mains.

Material for 3- and 4-inch shall be Class 54 ductile iron as specified for mains. Material for 1-inch, 1%2-
inch, and 2-inch shall be Type K annealed seamless copper tubing conforming to ASTM B-88.

Service Fittings

Corporation stops, curb stops and unions shall be only Mueller 110 compression style, or Township
approved “Ford” fittings. The inlet on the corporation stop shall have AWWA threads.

Curb boxes for new construction shall be only Minneapolis Pattern, 4%-foot depth, cast iron.

Double strap service clamps shall be used with 1%2-inch and 2-inch corporation stops.

Installation

All service pipe shall be buried 5 feet below finished grade. Curb box locations under driveways and

sidewalks shall be prohibited.

Joints shall be made using three-part unions as described above. Solder and band type couplings will
not be allowed.

Water and sewer service lines may be installed in a common trench if a minimum horizontal
separation of 3.0 feet is maintained.

. Inspection

All service lines shall be inspected by Township personnel prior to being backfilled. The contractor
shall notify the Township a minimum of 6 hours prior to inspection. Any services which are backfilled
prior to being inspected shall not be approved and the contractor shall be responsible for all costs of
exposing the services.

. Guarantee

The contractor and/or developer shall be responsible indefinitely for the correct elevation and
measurements of house services and curb boxes. If a curb box or house service cannot be found, is
not at the correct elevation, or has been installed improperly, the contractor will be notified of the
situation. He will then be required to pay for finding the curb box or house service, fixing the
installation, or reinstallation, whichever the case may be.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-6 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (DIVISION 3)

3.05 TESTING AND STERILIZATION

1. Pressure Testing
The contractor shall furnish equipment for the test, and the test shall be run by him in compliance
with AWWA C-600 and under the direction of the Engineer. The test shall be made at 150 pounds per
square inch hydrostatic pressure and shall be maintained for at least (2) hours and the leakage shall
not exceed 11.65 gallons per day, per mile of pipe, per inch of nominal diameter. The contractor shall
furnish all labor and equipment to make the test.

All valves shall be opened such that all air in the line can be removed upon filling with water. The
contractor shall install any corporation stops necessary to allow the air to be expelled.

Upon opening all valves the test will begin. If the line is a dead end, the 1st hour of the test shall be
against the last hydrant. After 1 hour of testing the dead end valves shall be closed and all bleeder
lines (dead end hydrants) shall be opened. The test will continue for the remaining 1 hour. If the line
is not dead end, the test will be a continuous 2 hours.

The contractor shall run a preliminary test to determine that all air has been expelled and to check
for any leakage. If any leakage should exist the contractor shall make the necessary repairs and
perform the preliminary testing until satisfactory results are obtained. The final test shall be made in
the presence of the Engineer. The contractor shall notify the Engineer in advance of the testing a
minimum of 48 hours. The contractor shall provide the equipment necessary to add and measure the
water necessary to maintain the hydrostatic pressure within 5 pounds per square inch (psi) of the
required test pressure for the duration of the test. When the testing period is complete the contractor
shall add and measure the water to bring the final pressure reading to the initial pressure reading.
The total gallons added during the duration of the test shall not exceed the allowable leakage.

2. Sterilization and Bacteriological Testing
Disinfection and bacteriological testing shall be in accordance with AWWA Standard C-651. Before
the mains are chlorinated, they shall be thoroughly flushed. All mains shall be chlorinated for a period
of twenty-four (24) hours. The contractor shall furnish all necessary equipment and materials, and
the work shall be done under the direction of the Engineer in accordance with all local and state
health department regulations. Chlorine shall be added in sufficient quantity to give a 50-ppm
residual of free chlorine after a twenty-four (24) hour period.

After completion of the chlorine procedure, the main shall be flushed. Then the Engineer shall take a
sample of water from the main for bacteriological tests. If the tests should result in unsafe conditions,
the chlorinating shall be repeated by the contractor. The contractor shall be responsible for all costs
associated with necessary retesting.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 3-7 (Spec Date: 8/5/21)



CONCRETE WORK (DIVISION 4)

4.02

4.03

4.04

4.01

4.02

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
DIVISION 4

CONCRETE WORK

SCOPE

MATERIALS
1. SUPPLIER
CONCRETE MIXTURE
REINFORCING

W

CONSTRUCTION METHODS
SUBGRADE PREPARATION
FORMWORK

PLACEMENT

FINISHING

JOINTS

CURING & PROTECTION

QU WD e

TESTING

SCOPE

This work shall consist of furnishing all labor, materials and equipment necessary for the
proper mixture and placement of concrete. The current MDOT Standard Specifications for
Construction (SSC) shall be followed, unless otherwise specified.

MATERIALS

Supplier

The use of transit-mix concrete is required. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer who the
supplier will be prior to beginning work. The Engineer must approve the concrete supplier
and the mixer trucks used to transport the concrete.

Concrete Mixture

Batching and mixing operations shall conform to ASTM C94. Water shall not be added to the
mix after the trucks leave the batching plant. The mix for sidewalk shall be MDOT P1 with
approximated proportions of one part cement; two parts fine aggregate, and three parts
coarse aggregate. The mix shall contain 6 sacks of cement per cubic yard, with a maximum
allowable slump of 3%2" (three and one-half inches).

Coarse aggregate shall conform to MDOT 6AA. Fine aggregate shall conform to MDOT 2NS.
Cement shall be Type 1A air-entraining Portland cement conforming to ASTM Specification
C150 or Type 1 with an air entrainment admixture. Air shall be 6% plus or minus 1%.

The compressive strength of Class A concrete shall not be less than 3,500 pounds per square
inch (psi) after 28 days. The compressive strength of Class B concrete shall not be less than
3,000 psi after 28 days.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 4-1 (Spec Date: March 1996)



CONCRETE WORK (DIVISION 4)

4.02

4.03

MATERIALS

Concrete Mixture (Cont'd.)
Water shall be clean and free from deleterious substances such as oil, alkali and organic
matter. Potable water shall be used from sources approved by the Engineer.

No admixtures will be used unless approval is received from the Engineer, or is specified.
Admixtures, if approved, shall be used in strict accordance with manufacturer’s directions
and shall conform with applicable ASTM Standards.

Reinforcing

Concrete slabs, walls and footings shall be reinforced with steel bars or mesh as shown on the
plans. Bars shall be rust-free, new deformed billet-steel conforming to ASTM A615, Grade 60
and mesh shall conform to ASTM A1064.

The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Engineer shop drawings showing bending
and assembly diagrams, splicing, laps of bars, shapes, dimensions and details of bars. Scaled

dimensions from drawings shall not be used in determining the lengths of reinforcing bars.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

Subgrade Preparation

The earthgrade shall be prepared by removing the topsoil, vegetative cover and root mat. The
base shall then be prepared by excavating and/or placing of embankment material to achieve
the grade and cross-section required. All soft and yielding material shall be removed and
replaced with acceptable material.

When a pathway is benched into cut or fill slopes, grading shall be done in accordance with
the MDOT 2020 SSC, Section 205, Roadway Earthworks. Subgrade density shall be not less
that 95% of Maximum Unit Weight in fills. In cuts, the Engineer will visually inspect the grade
and may order additional compaction to achieve the desired subgrade density.

A minimum of three (3) inches of Class Il granular material shall be used under all pathway
construction. The base shall be smoothed, trimmed and compacted prior to placement of
forms. The Engineer may order additional compaction to achieve the desired subgrade
density after visual inspection.

Formwork

All concrete work shall be accurately formed to the lines and grade shown on the plans. Forms
shall extend to the full depth and width of the specified concrete surface. Forms shall be
shored and braced from the outside to maintain %" tolerance in thickness, line and grade. All
formwork shall be oiled with an approved non-staining form oil before placing concrete.
Formwork shall be left in place until the concrete is sufficiently hard so as to not be damaged
upon removal.

Construct all formwork to provide continuous, straight, smooth surfaces and edges. Exposed
edges to have %2" chamfer. Curved walks shall be formed on a radius with flexible forms.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 4-2 (Spec Date: March 1996)



CONCRETE WORK (DIVISION 4)

4.03

3.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS (Cont'd.)

Placement

All formwork and reinforcement placement shall be inspected by the Engineer prior to
placement of concrete. The Contractor shall give ample notice and time so that such
inspection can be made.

No concrete shall be deposited until the area has been dewatered and not until after the
Contractor has made satisfactory provisions to eliminate all possibility of water entering or
flowing through the concrete while it is being poured or is curing.

Subgrades shall be wetted and forms shall be oiled prior to concrete placement. All debris
shall be removed from forms and reinforcement.

Time Between Charging Mixer and Placing Concrete (minutes)
Concrete Temperature
Type of Unit (ASTM C1064)
<60°F | 60°F-85°F | >85°F

Truck Mixers 90 60 45
Truck Mixers with Concrete
containing ~ Water-Reducing 120 90 70
Retarding Admixture

Exposed concrete shall not be poured when the atmospheric temperature is below 40 °F or
when the concrete temperature is below 55 °F as placed. Concrete shall not be poured on
frozen ground. Concrete shall not be cast if the temperature of the concrete is above 90 °F.

When placement of concrete is started, it shall be carried on as a continuous operation until
the placement of the section is completed. Concrete in walls shall be placed in 24-inch lifts
keeping surface of concrete level throughout. Concrete shall be deposited to the full depth of
the forms in one pour. Drops of greater than 5' shall use tubes.

Reinforced concrete greater than six inches in finished thickness shall be compacted by high
frequency internal vibrators. The concrete shall be thoroughly worked around the
reinforcement and into the corners of the forms, using procedures which minimize air pockets
and honeycombs. Care shall be taken in vibrating concrete so as not to move reinforcement
out of place.

Concrete less than six inches in finished depth shall be compacted by spading along all edges
and joints and by alternately tamping and striking off the surface until all voids are removed.

Finishing

Horizontal, exposed surfaces shall be floated and troweled just enough to produce a smooth,
dense surface, free from irregularities. All joints and edges shall be rounded to a radius of one-
quarter inch by the use of an approved edging tool. After completion of floating and finishing,
a fine brush shall be drawn across the finished surface to remove tool marks, and provide a
non-slip surface.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 4-3 (Spec Date: March 1996)



CONCRETE WORK (DIVISION 4)

4.03

4.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

Finishing (Cont'd.)

Formwork panels are intended to provide a satisfactory finish for vertical, exposed surfaces.
Finishing shall be limited to minor rubbing, removal of fins and patching of honeycombed
areas. Unexposed surfaces need not be finished except for patching of honeycombed areas.

All concrete sidewalk and driveway approaches shall be legibly stamped with the name of the
Contractor and the year, with figures 1%2" to 274" tall. The stamps shall be used at the ends of
each segment, each truck load, and at intervals no greater than 100 feet in length.

Joints

Construction cold joints not indicated on the plans shall be so made and located so as to least
impair the strength of the structure. The location of all construction joints shall be approved
by the Engineer. Slabs shall have a cold joint at the end of each truck load.

Transverse expansion joints %2” thick shall be placed in sidewalk at approximately 100 foot
intervals. %" thick expansion joints shall be placed anywhere that the walk meets the back of
curb, and where the walk meets the edge of concrete driveways or building walls.

Expansion joints material shall be pre-molded of bitumen filled fiber placed at right angles to
the line of the walk, perpendicular to the surface and shall extend from %4” below the surface
of the walk to the subgrade.

Contraction (plane of weakness) joints shall be placed at a minimum distance equal to the
width of the sidewalk. Contraction joints for bicycle pathways (7-foot width) shall be spaced
approximately nine feet apart. The joint shall be sawed to a width of 1/g” and to a depth of %
of the slab thickness.

Sawing must be accomplished as soon as the concrete has hardened such that no excess
raveling or spalling occurs, but before any random cracks develop. Joints shall be at right
angles to the line of the walk, and perpendicular to its surface. Tooled joints are not allowed.

Curing and Protection

Sidewalks and other slabs on grade shall be treated with a curing compound conforming to
the requirements of ASTM C309. The compound shall be sprayed or rolled on to provide a
continuous film over the entire surface of the walk after completion of finishing, and as soon
as all free water has left the surface. Compound shall be applied at the rate of not less than
one gallon per 200 square feet. Immediately upon removing sidewalk forms, the exposed
concrete edge shall be sprayed with curing compounds or backfilled with earth. The final
grading of topsoil will be such that the mature sod will be %2" below the concrete.

All concrete shall be protected from vehicles for the first 72 hours after placing. The period of
protection will increase to 7 days as the temperature decreases to 40 degrees. Any concrete
found to be defective or damaged due to weather, vandalism, or other causes shall be removed
and replaced, at the Contractor's expense. Damaged sections of sidewalk and curb and gutter
shall be removed back to the nearest joint or as indicated by the Engineer.

Freshly placed concrete shall be protected from rain by covering with polyethylene film.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 4-4 (Spec Date: March 1996)



CONCRETE WORK (DIVISION 4)

4.03 CONSTRUCTION METHODS

6. Curing and Protection (Cont’d.)
Concrete shall not be allowed to freeze for 72 hours. Protection must be provided when there
is a forecast for freezing.

Barricades shall be placed at the areas under repair from the time the damaged section is
removed until it is ready for use. Lighted barricades will be required for intersection areas
left under repair overnight.

4.04 TESTING
The Contractor shall make arrangements for and coordinate various concrete tests as
ordered by the Engineer. The testing company will be selected by the Township and the

Township will pay for the tests. The Contractor will be charged for any waiting time suffered
by the testing company. All tests will be done according to ASTM standards.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 4-5 (Spec Date: March 1996)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

DIVISION 7

PAY ITEMS, METHOD OF MEASUREMENT & BASIS OF PAYMENT

INDEX
7.01 SCOPE
7.02  SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
1-19 GENERAL
1. Traffic Control
2. Road Repair
3. Extra Sand Backfill
4. Extra Stone Bedding
5. Road or R.R. Crossing
6. Abandonment
7. Dewatering
8. Special Structures
9. Pavement Removal

10. Misc. Items

20-29 SANITARY
20. Sewer Mains

21. Manholes

22. Sewer Services
23. Bypass Pumping

30-39 WATER

30. Ductile Iron Pipe
31. Water Main Fittings
32. Valves and Boxes
33. Fire Hydrants

34. Live Tap

35. Water Services

40-49 PAVEMENT

40. Concrete Sidewalk

41. Sidewalk Ramps

42. Bituminous Construction

43. Embankment

44. Aggregate Base or Surface Course
45. Curb and Gutter

46. Subgrade Preparation

50-59 LANDSCAPE
50. Retaining Wall
51. Fence

52. Ditching

53. Erosion Control
54. Site Restoration
55. Drainage Pipe

7.03 TRENCH PAY ITEMS (SCHEMATIC)
7.04 RAMP PAY ITEMS (SCHEMATIC)

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-1

(Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

7.01 SCOPE

It is intended that payment for all work done under the Contract Documents including the furnishing of
all labor, equipment and materials and the performing of all operations in connection with the
construction of the project, will be made under the following pay items. Other work for which there is
not a specific pay item will be considered included in the Contract Unit Price for the various specified
pay items and no additional compensation will be allowed.

The Owner reserves the right to alter the plans, extend or shorten the improvement and increase or
decrease the quantities of work to be performed to accord with such changes, including the deduction
or cancellation of any one or more of the Pay Items. Such changes shall not be considered as a waiver of
any conditions of the Contract nor to invalidate any of the provisions thereof. A supplemental agreement
between the Contractor and the Owner will be required when such changes involve a net increase or
decrease in the total amount of the original contract of more than 25 percent. For a net increase or
decrease of less than 25 percent, the Contractor will accept payment according to contract prices for
such items of work as appear in the original contract.

The work will be done in compliance with the Contract Documents and paid for under the Pay Items or
Contract Items herein listed. The Contractor shall take no advantage of any apparent error or omission
in the plans or specifications, and the Engineer shall be permitted to make such corrections and
interpretations as may be deemed necessary for the fulfillment of the intent of the Contract.

7.02 SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
1-19 GENERAL

1. Traffic Control
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes labor, equipment, and material
necessary to complete traffic control for this project in accordance with the Michigan Manual of
Uniform Traffic Control Devices and, as applicable, Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) or Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) requirements.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
on the following basis: after first use of traffic control measures, 25% will be paid; once
50% of the original contract price is completed, 50% will be paid; once 75% of the original
contract price is completed, 75% will be paid; once the contract work is complete, 100%
will be paid.

2. Road Repair
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes restoration of all public roads to at
least their conditions as existed prior to the start of construction. Specific examples are
furnishing and placing of subbase, gravel or asphalt base and gravel, asphalt or concrete surface
plus all other miscellaneous work associated with the complete restoration of all public roads
including shoulders. All work shall be done in accordance with the plans and specifications.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
when all public roads have been restored to their original condition.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-2 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

7.02  SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
1-19 GENERAL (Contd))

3. Extra Sand Backfill [Ref. Sec. 1.02 (E)]

A. Description: When the Engineer deems the native backfill material above the pipe to be
unsuitable (such as rocks, peat or landfill outside the right of way and clay within the right of
way) the Engineer may order extra sand backfill. It includes the excavation and disposal of the
unsuitable material. Fill material shall be Class II granular material and placed at the direction
of and to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

Sand used under paved driveways, for pavement subbase at road crossings, or for pipe bedding
and initial backfill is considered incidental to sewers or water main and will not be paid for under
this item.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for the total volume actually furnished and placed. Volume will be determined compacted-in-
place (CIP) by measurements obtained at the site unless otherwise stated.

4. Extra Stone Bedding [Ref. Sec. 1.02 (F)]
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes the furnishing and placing of crushed
stone bedding material to replace unsuitable subgrade material under the pipe. This work shall
be done at the direction of, and to the satisfaction of, the Engineer.

Stone used for dewatering purposes or to stabilize water sand is considered incidental to sewers
or water main and will not be paid for under this item.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for the total volume actually furnished and placed. Volume will be determined in place by
measurements obtained at the site unless otherwise stated.

5. Road and Railroad Crossing
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all extra work over and above that
described under Sewers, Site Restoration, and Road Repair herein. Specific work includes
furnishing and installing the steel casing pipe (by methods other than open cut), placing crushed
stone around the carrier pipe, sealing the casing ends plus all miscellaneous related work.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for the Contract Unit Price
after the work is completed. The lineal footage of pipe installed inside the casing will be paid for
under the pay item sewer or water main in addition to this item.

6. Abandonment
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes everything necessary to abandon the
structure or facility as described in the contract.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
per pile set for the actual number placed and incorporated into the finished work.

7. Dewatering [Ref. Sec. 1.02 (4.D)]
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes the furnishing, installation, operation
and removal of all materials and equipment to lower the groundwater level adjacent to the
construction area to expedite the excavation for and installation of the work.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-3 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

7.02

1-19

SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
GENERAL

7.

8.

9.

B.

A.

A.

10.

A.

Dewatering (Cont’d.) [Ref. Sec. 1.02 (4.D)]

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
per lineal foot of excavation actually dewatered or as lump sum. Measurement will be along the
centerline of the pipeline.

Special Structure

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes the furnishing and installation of labor
and materials to complete the structure as shown on the plans, including excavation, backfilling,
access openings and covers, floor drains and associated piping, pre-cast concrete sections,
poured-in-place concrete, waterproofing, vent piping, removal of surplus excavated material
and restoration of surface to within three inches of finished grade.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for each special structure as actually installed.

Pavement Removal

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary to remove and dispose of existing concrete or asphalt as marked in the field by the
Engineer and as described herein. The Contractor shall SAWCUT the existing pavement to the
full depth to ensure clean and proper removal. Any additional sawcutting, removal, and
replacement necessitated by damage caused by the Contractor shall be incidental.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
as measured in the field.

Miscellaneous Items
Description: This item includes the complete labor, equipment, and materials for constructing
and/or placing in service a bid item not found elsewhere in this division.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price.

SANITARY
20.

20-29

A.

20.

Sewer Mains

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes clearing the work site of all trees,
brush, structures and other objects which interfere with the placement of the sewer under
construction, all excavation, the furnishing and placing of sewer pipe complete including wyes
or tees, bedding material, backfilling, removal of surplus excavated material, testing, concrete
work, protection and replacement or repair of existing utilities, and restoration of the surface to
within three inches of original grade or to bottom of pavement base course. All work shall be
done in accordance with the plans and specifications.

Sewer Mains

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: The length of sewers to be paid for at the Contract
Unit Price will be determined by measurement along the centerline of the various diameters,
classes and depths of pipe as actually furnished and installed. Diameters, classes and depths shall
be as shown on the proposal. Measurements shall be from center to center of adjacent manholes
with no deduction for manhole diameter. Depth shall be determined by measuring the distance
from sewer invert to existing grade at each manhole plus at a point midway between manholes;
the average of the three measurements shall be the average depth of the sewer.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-4 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)
7.02

20-29

SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
SANITARY (Cont'd.)

21.

A.

22,

A.

23.

30-39

A.

Manholes

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all excavation, the furnishing and
placing of precast sections and cast iron frame and cover, concrete work, drop pipes, connection
of existing and new pipes, backfilling, removal of surplus excavated material, and restoration of
surface to within three inches of original grade. All work shall be in accordance with the plans
and specifications.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
per manhole for the various depths as actually installed. The depth shall be determined by
measuring the distance from sewer invert to top of casting.

Sewer Services
Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all the work and materials (excepting
wyes and tees but including necessary bends) as described in sewer main above.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: The length of sewers to be paid for at the Contract
Unit Price will be determined by measurement along the centerline of the pipe including risers
as actually furnished and installed. Measurement shall be from end of tee or wye to end of
service.

Bypass Pumping
Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes everything necessary to provide
bypass pumping sufficient to complete the contract work.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price.

WATER

30.

A.

31.

A.

Ductile Iron Water Mains

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes clearing the work site of all trees,
brush, structures and other objects which interfere with the placement of the water main under
construction, all excavation, the furnishing and placing of water main testing, concrete work,
disinfecting, backfilling and the removal of surplus excavated material, protection and
replacement or repair of existing utilities, and restoration of the surface to within three inches
of original grade or to bottom of pavement base course. All work shall be done in accordance
with the plans and/or specifications.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: The length of water mains will be paid for on a
lineal foot basis for pipe measured along the centerline of the various diameters and classes of
pipe actually furnished and installed. There will be no deductions for fitting lengths. Unit price
includes all labor and materials and related work described above.

Water Main Fittings
Description: The contract unit price includes the furnishing and installation of the fittings
delineated in the proposal.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: Fittings will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for each piece successfully installed, complete with restraints, thrust block, and required
appurtenances.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-5 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

7.02

30-39

SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
WATER (Cont'd.)

32.

A.

33.

A.

34.

A.

35.

40-49

A.

Water Valves and Boxes

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes the furnishing and installation of
valves and valve boxes. All work shall be done in accordance with the Plans and/or
Specifications and result in an operating valve.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This work will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
per valve specified by size of valve on the proposal, which price includes all labor, materials, and
related work as described above.

Fire Hydrants

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item will consist of furnishing and installing fire
hydrants. It shall also include the furnishing and installation of the tee, auxiliary valve, valve box,
connecting piping, thrust block, drainage pit, and miscellaneous appurtenances. All work shall
be done in accordance with the plans and/or specifications and result in an operating hydrant.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: Fire hydrants will be paid for at the Contract Unit
Price per complete Fire Hydrant assembly, which payment includes the furnishing and placing
of all materials, the labor, and all related work necessary to complete the work as described
above.

Live Tap

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item will consist of furnishing and installing tapping
sleeves and valves on existing mains without loss of pressure in the existing main. It shall also
include the installation of a valve box and a thrust block. All work shall be done in accordance
with the plans and/or specifications.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This work will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
per live tap as specified on the proposal, which price includes all labor, materials, and related
work as described above.

Water Services

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes the furnishing and installation of
corporation stops, curb stops, curb boxes and service pipe in accordance with the plans and or
specifications. Work includes all excavation, backfill, furnishing and replacement of sand backfill,
tapping of main, and removal of surplus excavated material. Long side service leads includes
crossing of roads. Short side service leads are those which do not cross roads.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for each service lead completely installed.

PAVEMENT

40.

A.

Concrete Sidewalk

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes furnishing all labor, equipment, and
materials required in connection with forming, placing, and curing of the concrete sidewalk to
the lines and grade shown on the plans or as directed. All work shall be done in accordance with
the plans and specifications.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-6 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

7.02
40-49

SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
PAVEMENT

40.

B.

41.

42,

43.

44,

Concrete Sidewalk (Cont’'d.)

Method of Measurement: Concrete sidewalk will be measured and paid for in square feet,
determined by multiplying the actual length as measured along the centerline of the surface of
the pathway, by the actual width. The area of fillets and odd shaped sidewalk will be computed
separately. Deductions will be made for structures, crossroads, sidewalk ramps, and other
discontinuities in the sidewalk. Sidewalk ramps and other appurtenances included in the
contract as pay items will be paid for separately.

Sidewalk Ramps

Description: Sidewalk Ramps consist of several different pay items, the combination of which
include all labor, equipment, and material necessary to construct an ADA compliant curb ramp,
in accordance with MDOT Special Detail R-28. The ramp pay items are depicted below in 7.04
RAMP PAY ITEMS. All work shall be done in accordance with the plans and specifications.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: The ramp components will be measured and paid
for at each Contract Unit Price.

Bituminous Construction

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary for the construction of a bituminous surface, on a prepared foundation, at the
specified application rate. If the bituminous mixture is not specified, the type used shall meet the
approval of the Engineer. Construction methods shall conform to the latest edition of the MDOT
Standard Specifications for Construction (SSC). All work shall be done in accordance with the
plans and specifications.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
as verified at the site through load tickets from the supplier or by field measurements.

Embankment

Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all labor, equipment, and materials
required in connection with delivery and placement of granular embankment material.
Embankment includes areas requiring fill as called for on the plans and the 3" of base for
concrete sidewalk. All work shall be done in accordance with the plans and specifications.
Granular material as noted shall mean Class Il material per the MDOT 2020 SSC, Section 902.

Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: Embankment material shall be as measured in the
vehicle transporting the material to the site. Load tickets from the supplier are required to verify
the delivered amount.

Aggregate Base or Surface Course

Description: The Contract Unit Price for this item includes all labor, equipment, and materials
required in connection with the delivery and placement of the material. This work includes the
required shaping, grading, and compacting of the material for the foundation of the asphalt
ramps and driveway approaches.

The material shall be 21AA or 22A aggregate per the MDOT 2020 SSC, Section 902, unless
otherwise specified. All work shall be done in accordance with the plans and specifications.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-7 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: Aggregate Surface Course shall be as measured in
the vehicle transporting the material to the site. Load tickets from the supplier are required to
verify the delivered amount.

7.02  SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS
40-49 PAVEMENT (Cont'd.)
45. Curb and Gutter

A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes furnishing all labor, equipment, and
materials required for forming, placing, and curing of the concrete curb and gutter to the line
and grade as shown on the plans, including excavation, backfill, reinforcing steel, removal of
existing curb and gutter, and all joints and joint materials. All work shall be done in accordance
with the plans and specifications.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: The length of curb and gutter to be paid for at the
Contract Unit Price will be determined by measurement along the face of the curb as actually
installed, with no deductions in length for catch basins, inlet castings or gutters through concrete
driveway openings.

46. Subgrade Preparation

A. Description: The work of subgrade preparation includes furnishing all labor, equipment, and
material necessary for clearing and grubbing, including all tree and bush removal, tree trimming,
topsoil stripping, grading to shape the earth to develop the typical cross section shown on the
plans, and any additional excavation required to construct the pavement to the grade shown on
the plans.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid on a basis of lineal feet of
pathway for work completed according to the specifications.

50-59 LANDSCAPE
50. Retaining Wall

A. Description: The Contract Unit Price for this item includes all labor, equipment, and materials
required in connection with the construction of a retaining wall, as shown on the plans. All work
shall be done in accordance with the plans and specifications.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: Retaining walls will be measured by the square
foot of the exposed face, above the pathway/sidewalk.

51. Fence

A. Description: The Contract Unit Price for this item includes all labor, equipment, and materials
required in connection with the construction of a fence, as shown on the plans. All work shall be
done in accordance with the plans and specifications.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: The fence will be measured along the centerline of
the fence, from centerline to centerline of the end posts.

52. Ditching
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes all excavation, and grading to develop

the cross sections such that upon completion of site restoration the final grade shall be within
plus or minus 0.1 foot of the required lines and grade. This item will also include clearing the
work site of all trees, brush, structures and other objects which interfere with the performance
of the work. All work shall be done in accordance with the plans and specifications. Final
restoration will be paid for separately.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-8 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



PAY ITEMS (DIVISION 7)

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
when the required cross section has been obtained. Measurement will be made along the
centerline of the ditch. Payment for any final trimming of the subgrade required prior to site
restoration is included in this pay item.

7.02  SPECIFIC PAY ITEMS

50-59 LANDSCAPE (Cont'd.)

53. Erosion Control
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on these items includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary to install and maintain the specified erosion control device(s).

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for each erosion control item used.

54. Site Restoration

A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on this item includes restoration of the ground surface to
at least its preconstruction state. Specific examples are final grading of the top three inches of
ground surface, furnishing and installation of seed and mulch, driveway and parking area repair,
culvert replacement, sidewalk repair, replacement of signs, mailboxes, and fences, plus all other
miscellaneous work associated with the complete restoration of the project site. The slope
between new sidewalks and a lawn shall not exceed 1:3. All work shall be done in accordance
with the plans and specifications.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
when the complete project site has been restored to its original condition.

55. Drainage Pipe
A. Description: The Contract Unit Price on these items includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary to install drainage pipe of the type and size specified, as shown on the plans.

B. Method of Measurement & Basis of Payment: This item will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price
for the length installed, as measured along the ground surface.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 7-9 (Spec Date: Jan 2018)



GATE VALVE REPLACEMENT 2025

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

These Special Provisions are in addition to those in the General and Technical Specifications, and
supersede the General and Technical Specifications in the event of a conflict.

GENERAL

TESTING - The Contractor will be responsible for scheduling concrete and compaction testing. Testing will
be done by Soil and Materials Engineers, Inc. (SME), (517) 887-9181. The cost will be paid by
Meridian Township, except for any wait time. Compaction testing will be required for all backfill
within the road zone-of-influence.

PROPERTY IRONS - Alicensed surveyor shall reestablish property irons in the proper location, if disturbed.
Buried property irons shall be extended using %" diameter rods. The Contractor shall pay for
reestablishment.

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY - All work in the public right-of-way is done under permit and approval of the
Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), and Ingham County Road Department (ICRD).
Meridian Township will secure the necessary MDOT permit.

BACKFILL - Backfilling shall be in accordance with ICRD and MDOT specifications, including compacted
Class II granular material within the road zone of influence, and 12 inches of compacted 21AA
aggregate below the pavement surface. The contractor may use the Township’s materials, located at
the Service Center, 2100 Gaylord C. Smith Ct., Haslett, MI 48840. The contractor is responsible for
loading and transporting the material. Backfilling is incidental to this contract.

DEWATERING - All dewatering costs involved with this project will be incidental to the work. If dewatering
is required it shall be pre-approved by the township engineer.

SHORING - Any shoring necessary to protect existing utilities or structures is incidental.

SITE CLEANUP - At the end of each day the work site shall be rough graded. In the event that it is necessary
to leave a point of excavation open overnight, the area shall be safely barricaded. Atthe end of each
week, or as deemed necessary by the Township, the street surface shall be wetted and swept clean
of all construction debris.

JOINT RESTRAINT - All mechanical fittings shall be restrained using MEGALUG® style restraints or
approved equal.

WATER MAINS - The depths of existing water mains will typically be 5~7 feet between the ground surface
and crown of the pipes.

NOTES:

o Allwater main shutdowns shall be coordinated with Meridian Township personnel. All shutdowns shall
be timed to minimize the impact to water customers, including by utilizing overnight work.

o The pay items detailed in this contract are intended to provide for the complete scope of work as
depicted on the plans. Any and all work not covered under a specific pay item, but necessary to complete
the project, is considered incidental.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 SP-1



la&b.

9a&b.

w
—_
QO

|O8]
—

[o8)
—_
(e}

o8}
—_
o

|O8)
INS]
a5}

|O8)
N

W
N
(@}

|°8)
N

PAY ITEMS

TRAFFIC CONTROL - These pay items include all labor, equipment, and material necessary to
provide and maintain traffic control as described herein, in accordance with the Michigan Manual of
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, MDOT, and ICRD (if applicable) permit requirements.

All necessary traffic control devices are included. All barrels remaining in the road overnight must be
lighted. See Appendix A for general traffic control details.

PAVT, REM, - These pay items include all labor, equipment, and material necessary to
remove and dispose of existing concrete or asphalt pavement as marked in the field by the Engineer
and as described herein. The Contractor shall sawcut the existing pavement to ensure clean and
proper removal. The pavement shall be sawcut to the full thickness. Sawcutting is incidental to the
removal and replacement process. Any additional removal, necessitated by damage caused by the
Contractor, is incidental. Dust masks must be used during all sawcutting activity.

WATER MAIN, 16 INCH, LINE STOP - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary to install and maintain a device which is designed and constructed to stop the flow of water
through the main to allow the installation of three (3) new 16-inch gate valves. The construction area
shall be isolated and shut off using a temporary shut-off method such as a line stop or an alternative
Township approved method. Contractor shall coordinate with property owners to minimize
disruptions to water supply during constructions. Shutdowns are to be limited to 12 hours, or
temporary water services must be supplied. Note: Additional utilities may be present in the work
area and will be identified by Miss Dig prior to construction.

WATER, SLEEVE, 16 INCH- This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to
install the specified sleeve as shown on the plans and as described in Technical Specification 3.

WATER MAIN, 20 INCH, LINE STOP - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary to install and maintain a device which is designed and constructed to stop the flow of water
through the main to allow the installation of one (1) new 20-inch gate valve. The construction area
shall be isolated and shut off using a temporary shut-off method such as a line stop or an alternative
Township approved method. Contractor shall coordinate with property owners to minimize
disruptions to water supply during constructions. Shutdowns are to be limited to 12 hours, or
temporary water services must be supplied. Note: Additional utilities may be present in the work
area and will be identified by Miss Dig prior to construction.

WATER, SLEEVE, 20 INCH- This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to
install the specified sleeve as shown on the plans and as described in Technical Specification 3.

WATER, GATE VALVE, 16 INCH (Installation) - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and
material necessary to install an EJIW FlowMaster® series gate valve with an EJIW screw-type valve
box. This includes any and all watermain pipe necessary for installation of the valve. The Township
will supply the 16” gate valves, valve boxes, and MEGALUG fittings.

WATER, GATE VALVE, 20 INCH (Installation) - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and
material necessary to install an EJIW FlowMaster® series gate valve with an EJIW screw-type valve
box. This includes any and all watermain pipe necessary for installation of the valve. The Township
will supply the 20” gate valve, valve box, and MEGALUG fittings.

WATER, GATE VALVE, 8 INCH (EXPOSURE) - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and
material necessary to expose an existing 8” gate valve located within the driveway at 1830 Grand
River Avenue, Okemos, MI 48864. This item shall be completed after the installation of the in-line
16” valve to the west. Contractor shall ensure access to utilize the driveway at this location is
maintained throughout construction.

WATER, GATE VALVE, 8 INCH (REPAIR ALLOWANCE) - This pay item includes all labor,
equipment, and material necessary to repair an existing 8” gate valve located within the driveway at
1830 Grand River Avenue, Okemos, MI 48864. The repair scope will be determined after valve

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 SP-2



|O8)
DN
D

|O8)
N
—n

S
o
I

S
(]
o

‘-p
N

exposure as the valve type and exact repair parts are not known. An allowance of $3,000 will be
provided for this pay item. Payments for the repair exceeding the allowance amount will be paid for
in accordance with “GC.11: CHANGES IN WORK/PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS”.

WATER, INSERTION VALVE, 16 INCH (Installation) - This pay item includes all labor, equipment,
and material necessary to install a Hydro-Stop Insta-Valve or similar insertion valve approved by the
engineer.

WATER, INSERTION VALVE, 20 INCH (Installation) - This pay item includes all labor, equipment,
and material necessary to install a Hydro-Stop Insta-Valve or similar insertion valve approved by the
engineer.

CONCRETE, 4 INCH - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to install
concrete of the specified depth in accordance with Division 4 and the Pathway/Sidewalk Detail Sheet.
This work includes joining the proposed concrete to the existing concrete as shown in the Concrete
Pinning Detail on the Detail Sheet.

CONCRETE, 7 INCH - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to install
concrete of the specified depth in accordance with Division 4 and the Pathway/Sidewalk Detail Sheet.
This work includes joining the proposed concrete to the existing concrete as shown in the Concrete
Pinning Detail on the Detail Sheet.

HMA, 13A - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to replace asphalt
pavement necessitated by the gate valve installation. All pavements shall meet the existing material
depth or the following minimum depths, whichever is greater: asphalt roadway, five (5) inches;
commercial asphalt driveway, four (4) inches. The pavement on Park Lake Road is expected to be
seven to eight (7-8) inches thick.

45a&b. CURB & GUTTER, REMOVE/REPLACE - These pay items include all labor, equipment, and material

U1
(O8]
s8]

U1
(O8]

necessary to remove and replace curb and gutter. New curb and gutter shall be tied to the existing
with 18 inch, #4 epoxy coated dowels drilled 9 inches into the adjacent curb in accordance with ICRD
requirements.

HMA, 13A shall be used to repair any damage to the roadway caused by the contractor. Asphalt shall
be used to repair the road only; asphalt shall not extend onto adjacent curb, gutter, or ramps, unless
directed by the Engineer. Damaged asphalt shall be sawcut in order to provide a proper surface for
the asphalt repair. All such asphalt repair work shall be considered incidental.

EROSION CONTROL, SILT FENCE - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material
necessary to install and maintain silt fence in accordance with Section 208 of the MDOT 2020 SSC.
Final retainage will not be released until all SESC measures have been successfully removed.

EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECTION, FABRIC DROP - This pay item includes all labor,
equipment, and material necessary to install and maintain a device which is designed and
constructed for use in the specified structure. Catch basin sediment guards shall be installed prior to
construction, cleaned and maintained in a working state for the duration of the project, and removed
and disposed of upon final completion and restoration of the construction site. Grass shall be growing
before the sediment guards are removed, and retainage will not be released until the sediment guards
are fully removed.

SITE RESTORATION - This pay item includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to restore
disturbed grass areas in accordance with the MDOT 2020 Standard Specifications for Construction
(SSC), Section 816, and as described herein. The disturbed areas shall be restored to grade with three
(3) inches of screened topsoil. For slopes less than 1:4, hydroseeding may be utilized with fertilizer,
loose mulch, and a spray-applied tackifier. For slopes greater than 1:4, mulch blankets must be used.

All soil within the road zone of influence shall be restored and compacted to the specifications of both
MDOT and the Township.

Gate Valve Replacement 2025 SP-3


https://www.hydra-stop.com/product/14-16-ivp-250/#ais-compliance
https://www.hydra-stop.com/product/insta-valve-20-24/#valve-body

DISTANCE BETWEEN TRAFFIC SIGNS, "D"

o POSTED SPEED LIMIT, MPH (PRIOR TO WORK AREA)
DISTANCES 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75
D (FEET) 250 | 300 | 350 | 400 | 450 | 500 | 550 | 600 | 650 | 700 | 750
GUIDELINES FOR LENGTH OF LONGITUDINAL BUFFER SPACE, "B"
g SPEEDX MPH (PRIOR TO WORK AREA)
LENGTHS 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75
B (FEET) 33 50 83 132 | 181 | 230 | 279 | 329 | 411 | 476 | 542 | 625
% POSTED SPEED, OFF-PEAK 85TH PERCENTILE SPEED PRIOR TO WORK STARTING, OR THE ANTICIPATED
OPERATING SPEED
MINIMUM MERGING TAPER LENGTH, "L" (FEET)
orrcET POSTED SPEED LIMIT, MPH (PRIOR TO WORK AREA)
(FEET) 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75
1 11 15 21 27 45 50 55 60 65 70 75
2 21 30 41 54 30 100 | 110 | 120 | 130 | 140 | 150
3 32 45 62 80 135 | 150 | 165 | 180 | 195 | 210 | 225
4 42 60 82 107 | 180 | 200 | 220 | 240 | 260 | 280 | 300
5 53 75 | 103 | 134 | 225 | 250 | 275 | 300 | 325 | 350 | 375
6 63 90 | 123 | 160 | 270 | 300 | 330 | 360 | 390 | 420 | 450
7 73 105 | 143 | 187 | 315 | 350 | 385 | 420 | 455 | 490 | 525
8 84 120 | 164 | 214 | 360 | 400 | 440 | 480 | 520 | 560 | 600
9 94 135 | 184 | 240 | 405 | 450 | 495 | 540 | 585 | 630 | 675
10 105 | 150 | 205 | 267 | 450 | 500 | 550 | 600 | 650 | 700 | 750
11 115 | 165 | 225 | 294 | 495 | 550 | 605 | 660 | 715 | 770 | 825
12 125 | 180 | 245 | 320 | 540 | 600 | 660 | 720 | 780 | 840 | 900
13 136 | 195 | 266 | 347 | 585 | 650 | 715 | 780 | 845 | 910 | 975
14 146 | 210 | 286 | 374 | 630 | 700 | 770 | 840 | 910 | 980 | 1050
15 157 | 225 | 307 | 400 | 675 | 750 | 825 | 900 | 975 | 1050 | 1125
NOT TO SCALE
“ MAINTAINING TRAFFIC TYPICAL PATES Y s071
SMIDOT| v 01 —gen- i
FILE: 101-GEN-SPACING-CHARTS.dgn SPACING_CHARTS SIGN BORDER KEY, AND ROLL-AHEAD ‘SPACING 1 OF 3

APX - A-1




THE FORMULAS FOR THE MINIMUM LENGTH OF A

TYPES OF TAPERS TAPER LENGTH
MERGING TAPER IN DERIVING THE "L" VALUES
SHOWN IN THE ABOVE TABLES ARE AS FOLLOWS: UE%?NE(?MMTPAE%ERS . — MINIMUM
SHIFTING TAPER 1/2 L — MINIMUM
" = W X S®° WHERE POSTED SPEED PRIOR TO SHOULDER TAPER 173 L — MINIMOM
=W XS WHERE POSTED SPEED PRIOR TO DOWNSTREAM TAPERS
THE WORK AREA IS 45 MPH OR GREATER (USE 1S RECOMMENDED) 100" (PER LANE)
L = MINIMUM LENGTH OF MERGING TAPER
S = POSTED SPEED LIMIT IN MPH PRIOR TO WORK AREA
W = WIDTH OF OFFSET
MAXIMUM SPACING FOR CHANNELIZING DEVICES
WORK 7ONE DRUM AND 42" DEVICE SPACING (FT) NIGHTTIME 42" DEVICE SPACING (FT)
SPEED LIMIT TAPER TANGENT TAPER TANGENT
< 45 MPH 1 x SPEED LIMIT 2 x SPEED LIMIT 25 FEET 50 FEET
> 45 MPH 50 FEET 100 FEET 25 FEET 50 FEET
SIGN OUTLINE KEY
DASHED OUTLINES INDICATE A SIGN THAT SOLID OUTLINES INDICATE A SIGN THAT
EXISTS ON SITE, AND NEEDS TO BE COVERED. IS TO BE PLACED ON THE PROJECT
- - - - - = = A
| |
- EXIT EXIT
| |
| ” | ”
| |
e e e - =_ - .}
NOT TO SCALE
DATE:
4(—. MAINTAINING TRAFFIC TYPICAL MAY 2021
C | NOT TO SCALE o "B", "D" AND "L" TABLES SHEET:
Michigan Department of Transportation 1 O 1 —GEN— CHANNELIZING DEVICE SPACING
FILE: 101 GEN-SPACING- CHARTS agn SPACING—CHARTS  [SIGN BORDER KEY AND ROLL-AHEAD SPACING 2 OF 3

APX - A-2




THE FOLLOWING NOTES APPLY IF CALLED FOR ON THE TRAFFIC TYPICAL

GENERAL NOTES

TRAFFIC REGULATOR NOTES

Gl: SEE GEN-SPACING-CHARTS FOR COMMON VALUES INCLUDING:
D = DISTANCE BETWEEN TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
L = MINIMUM LENGTH OF TAPER
B = LENGTH OF LONGITUDINAL BUFFER
ROLL AHEAD DISTANCE

G2: DISTANCE BETWEEN SIGNS, "D", THE VALUES FOR WHICH ARE SHOWN IN TYPICAL
GEN-KEY ~ARE APPROXIMATE AND MAY NEED ADJUSTING AS DIRECTED BY
THE ENGINEER.

G3: ALL TEMPORARY SIGNS, TYPE III BARRICADES, THEIR SUPPORT SYSTEMS AND
LIGHTING MUST MEET NATIONAL COOPERATIVE HIGHWAY RESEARCH PROGRAM
REPORT 350 (NCHRP 350) TEST LEVEL 3, OR MANUAL FOR ASSESSING SAFETY
HARDWARE (MASH) TL-3 AS WELL AS THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE MICHIGAN
MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION, THE STANDARD PLANS AND
APPLICABLE SPECIAL PROVISIONS. ONLY DESIGNS AND MATERIALS APPROVED
BY MDOT WILL BE ALLOWED.

G4: DO NOT STORE EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS OR PERFORM WORK IN ESTABLISHED
BUFFER AREAS.

G5: ALL EXISTING PAVEMENT MARKINGS WHICH ARE IN CONFLICT WITH EITHER PROPOSED
CHANGES IN TRAFFIC PATTERNS OR PROPOSED TEMPORARY TRAFFIC MARKINGS SHALL
BE REMOVED BEFORE ANY CHANGE IS MADE IN THE TRAFFIC PATTERN. EXCEPTION
WILL BE MADE FOR TRAFFIC PATTERNS FOR WORK LESS THAN THREE DAYS THAT
ARE ADEQUATELY DELINEATED BY OTHER TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.

SIGN NOTES

S1: ALL NON-APPLICABLE SIGNING WITHIN THE CIA MUST BE MODIFIED TO FIT
CONDITIONS, COVERED, OR REMOVED. FOR GUIDANCE SEE THE WORK ZONE
SAFETY AND MOBILITY MANUAL, SECTIONS 6.01.09 AND 6.01.10.

S2: R5-18b SIGNS ARE ONLY REQUIRED ON FREEWAY PROJECTS WITH A DURATION OF
15 DAYS OR LONGER OR NON-FREEWAY PROJECTS WITH A DURATION OF 90 DAYS
OR LONGER. TO APPLY THIS TYPICAL WITHOUT R5-18b SIGNS, REMOVE THE SIGNS
AND CONSOLIDATE THE SEQUENCE AS APPROPRIATE.

S3: R5-18c [S ONLY REQUIRED IN THE INITIAL SIGNING SEQUENCE IN THE WORK ZONE.
OMIT THIS SIGN IN SUBSEQUENT SEQUENCES IN THE SAME WORK ZONE.

S4: ADDITIONAL SIGNING AND/OR ELONGATED SIGNING SEQUENCES SHOULD BE USED
WHEN TRAFFIC VOLUMES ARE SIGNIFICANT ENOUGH TO CREATE BACKUPS BEYOND
THE W20-5 SIGNS.

S5: PLACE ADDITIONAL SPEED LIMIT SIGNS REFLECTING THE WORK ZONE SPEED AFTER
EACH MAJOR CROSSROAD THAT INTERSECTS THE WORK ZONE, OR AFTER EACH
ENTRANCE RAMP THAT COMES ONTO THE FREEWAY WHERE THE REDUCED SPEED
IS IN EFFECT. PLACE ADDITIONAL SPEED LIMIT SIGNS AT INTERVALS ALONG THE
ROADWAY SUCH THAT NO SPEED LIMIT SIGNS ARE MORE THAN 2 MILES APART.
WHEN REDUCED SPEED LIMITS ARE UTILIZED IN THE WORK AREA, PLACE ADDITIONAL
SPEED LIMIT SIGNS RETURNING TRAFFIC TO [TS NORMAL SPEED BEYOND THE LIMITS
OF THE WORK AREA AS INDICATED. IF PERMANENT SIGNS DISPLAYING THE CORRECT
SPEED LIMIT ARE POSTED, OMIT ALL W3-5b AND R2-1 SIGNS AND REDUCE SPACING
ACCORDINGLY.

S6: FABRICATE SPECIAL SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT SIGNING DESIGN
STANDARDS.

S7: PLACE ADDITIONAL R8-3 SIGNS AT A MAXIMUM 500" SPACING THROUGHOUT
THE WORK ZONE.

S8: WHEN SPEED LIMIT SIGNS CANNOT BE PLACED SIDE BY SIDE AS SHOWN,

PLACE THEM "D" DISTANCE APART.

S9: STOP SIGNS NOT REQUIRED IF SIGNALS ARE ON 4-WAY FLASHING RED.
STOP AHEAD SIGNS ARE NOT REQUIRED [F THERE IS ADEQUATE VISIBILITY
OF THE STOP SIGN OR IF SIGNALS ARE BEING USED TO CONTROL TRAFFIC.

S10: PLACE REDUCED SPEED ZONE AHEAD SIGN (W3-5b) HERE WHEN USING
A SPEED REDUCTION IN THIS DIRECTION.

S11:THE NUMBER OF W1-6 SHIFT SIGNS TO PLACE FOR A SHIFT IS AS FOLLOWS:
SHIFTS 4FT OR LESS, PLACE ONE W1-6(R)(L)
SHIFTS 5FT TO 12FT, PLACE TWO WI1-6(R)(L)
SHIFTS MORE THAN 12FT, PLACE THREE OR MORE W1-6(R)(L) SIGNS DEPENDING UPON
LENGTH OF SHIFT AND AS PER THE ENGINEER.

S12:PLACE R2-1 SIGNS AS DETAILED IN NOTE S5 WHEN THERE IS A SPEED REDUCTION

IN THIS DIRECTION

TR1:

TR

N

TRAFFIC REGULATORS MUST FOLLOW ALL THE REQUIREMENTS IN THE STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS, THE STANDARD PLANS AND APPLICABLE SPECIAL PROVISIONS,
THE CURRENT VERSIONS OF THE TRAFFIC REGULATOR'S INSTRUCTION MANUAL
AND THE VIDEQ "HOW TO SAFELY REGULATE TRAFFIC IN MICHIGAN".

THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN THE TRAFFIC REGULATORS [S DETERMINED
BY THE ROADWAY ADT, GEOMETRICS, AND AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.

:PROVIDE APPROPRIATE BALLOON LIGHTING TO SUFFICIENTLY ILLUMINATE TRAFFIC

REGULATOR'S STATIONS WHEN TRAFFIC REGULATING IS ALLOWED DURING
THE HOURS OF DARKNESS.

TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE NOTES

TCD1

TCh2:

TCD3

TCD4

TCDS

TCDeé:

TCDT:

TCD8:

TCDS:

TCD1

© THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE IN FEET BETWEEN CHANNELIZING DEVICES IN A TAPER
SHOULD NOT EXCEED 1.0 TIMES THE WORK ZONE SPEED LIMIT IN MPH FOR
ROADWAYS WITH A POSTED WORK ZONE SPEED LIMIT LESS THAN 45 MPH AND
SHOULD NOT EXCEED 50 FEET ON ROADWAYS WITH A POSTED WORK ZONE SPEED
LIMIT OF 45 MPH OR GREATER. THE SPACING FOR 42 INCH CHANNELIZING DEVICE
TAPERS ARE NOT TO EXCEED 25 FEET AT NIGHT.

THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE IN FEET BETWEEN CHANNELIZING DEVICES IN A TANGENT
SHOULD NOT EXCEED TWICE THE WORK ZONE SPEED LIMIT IN MPH FOR ROADWAYS
WITH A POSTED WORK ZONE SPEED LIMIT LESS THAN 45 MPH AND SHOULD NOT
EXCEED 100 FEET ON ROADWAYS WITH A POSTED WORK ZONE SPEED LIMIT OF

45 MPH OR GREATER. THE SPACING FOR 42 INCH CHANNELIZING DEVICE TANGENTS
ARE NOT TO EXCEED 50 FEET AT NIGHT.

TYPE [II BARRICADES MUST BE LIGHTED FOR OVERNIGHT CLOSURES.

WHEN THE HAUL ROAD IS NOT IN USE, PLACE LIGHTED TYPE III BARRICADES WITH
"ROAD CLOSED" EXTENDING COMPLETELY ACROSS THE HAUL ROAD.

USE VERTICAL PANELS IN LIEU OF THE TYPE B HIGH INTENSITY LIGHT SHOWN
IN THE STANDARD PLAN FOR TEMPORARY CONCRETE BARRIER (R-53, AND R-126)
WHEN USED WITH A TEMPORARY SIGNAL SYSTEM.

PLACE LIGHTED ARROW PANELS AS CLOSE TO THE BEGINNING OF TAPERS AS
PRACTICAL, BUT NOT IN A MANNER THAT WILL OBSCURE OR CONFUSE APPROACHING
MOTORISTS WHEN PHYSICAL LIMITATIONS RESTRICT PLACEMENT. [N CURBED
SECTIONS, IF ARROW BOARD CANNOT BE PLACED BEHIND CURB, PLACE ARROW
BOARD IN THE CLOSED LANE AS CLOSE TO THE BEGINNING OF TAPER AS POSSIBLE.

ADDITIONAL TYPE III BARRICADES MAY BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETELY CLOSE
OFF ROAD FROM EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

WHERE THE SHIFTED SECTION [S SHORTER THAN 600 FEET, A DOUBLE
REVERSE CURVE SICN (W24-1) CAN BE USED INSTEAD OF THE FIRST
REVERSE CURVE SIGN, AND THE SECOND REVERSE CURVE SIGN CAN BE OMITTED.

RUMBLE STRIPS ARE TO BE PLACED AS SPECIFIED IN THE CONTRACT.
IF NOT SPECIFIED IN THE CONTRACT, PLACE RUMBLE STRIPS AS
SHOWN, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RUMBLE STRIP MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS. AN ARRAY OF RUMBLE STRIPS CONTAINS

THREE RUMBLE STRIPS. PLACE THE RUMBLE STRIPS IN THE ARRAY

AT A CONSISTENT DISTANCE, BETWEEN 10' AND 20' APART.

0: SEE THE WORK ZONE SAFETY AND MOBILITY MANUAL, PORTABLE
CHANGEABLE MESSAGE SIGN GUIDELINES FOR RECCOMENDED AND
CORRECT PCMS MESSAGING. STAGGER PCMS THAT ARE ON OPPOSING
SIDES OF THE ROAD 1000 FEET FROM EACH OTHER.

RAMP NOTES

RMP1

RMP2

© WHEN CONDITIONS ALLOW, E5-1 SIGNS MUST BE REMOVED OR COVERED AND
CHANELIZING DEVICES MUST BE POSITIONED TO ENABLE RAMP TRAFFIC TO
DIVERGE IN A FREE MANNER

© STOP AND YIELD CONDITIONS SHOULD BE AVOIDED WHENEVER PRACTICAL.
WHEN CONDITIONS WARRANT, R1-1 SIGNS MAY BE USED IN PLACE OF
R1-2 SICNS. WHEN R-1 SIGNS ARE USED, W3-1 SIGNS MUST BE USED
IN PLACE OF W3-2 SIGNS. CONSIDERATION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO CLOSING
THE RAMP TO COMPLETE WORK TO ALLOW AN ADEQUATE MERGE DISTANCE.
WORK SHOULD BE EXPEDITED TO AVOQID THE STOP AND/OR YIELD CONDITIONS.

©

Michigan Department of Transportation

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC TYPICAL

NOT TO SCALE N

FILE: 102-GEN-NOTES.dgn

102-GEN=-NOTES

DATE:
MAY 2021
TRAFFIC TYPICALS R
NOTE SHEET
1 OF 2

APX - A-3




KEY

oo  CHANNELIZING DEVICES
‘ ‘ 1 1 S22 LIGHTED ARROW PANEL
| <« TRAFFIC FLOW
REFLECTS EXISTING SPEED LIMIT
% ONLY REQUIRED FOR INTERMEDIATE-TERM
STATIONARY AND LONG-TERM STATIONARY
-
[amY
Work n ~ END STANDARD NOTES
o ROAD WORK (SEE 102-GEN-NOTES)
BEGINS T 620-2 GENERAL: 01, 62, G3, G4
— SIGNING: S1. S3
RS-18¢ o DEVICES: TCD1, TCD2, TCD6
p— o MAINT & SURV MS2, MS3, MS4
LIMIT
XX T
Re-1 o
100"
(%]
Lol
=
<T
=
<T
[}
[a s
<T
X
[a s
o
=
o
1
S
'Y |
o 1
‘ ™~
~ SPEED
o 1 - LiMIT
XX g%
| - R2-1
WORK
END R oy
ROAD WORK T ZONE
> BEGINS
- RS-18¢
A
1
[
1 v
o
| 1
= 5
SR 2R 20 B NE
O (@]
1 z
NOT TO SCALE
- MAINTENANGE DURATION: RIGHT LANE CLOSURE ON AN PATES Y s071
“ [ | MaINTAINING TRAFFIC LONG-TERM STATIONARY UNDIVIDED MULTI-LANE ROADWAY, I
Michigan Department of Transportation TYPICAL INTERMEDIATE-TERM STATIONARY NO SPEED REDUCTION M-NFW-1LC~-(R)
SHORT-TERM STATIONARY SHEET:
FILE: 4123A-M-NFW-1LC—(R).dgn Lor g

APX - A-4




Page 6H-48 2003 Edition

Notes for Figure 6H-22—Typical Application 22
Right Lane Closure on Far Side of Intersection

Guidance:

1. If the work space extends across a crosswalk, the crosswalk should be closed using the information and

devices shown in Figure 6H-29.
Option:

2. The normal procedure is to close on the near side of the intersection any lane that is not carried through
the intersection. However, when this results in the closure of a right lane having significant right turning
movements, then the right lane may be restricted to right turns only, as shown. This procedure increases
the through capacity by eliminating right turns from the open through lane.

3. For intersection approaches reduced to a single lane, left-turning movements may be prohibited to
maintain capacity for through vehicular traffic.

4. Flashing warning lights and/or flags may be used to call attention to the advance warning signs.

5. Where the turning radius is large, it may be possible to create a right-turn island using channelizing
devices or pavement markings.

APX-A-5


Nunn
Text Box
APX-A-5


2003 Edition Page 6H-49

Figure 6H-22. Right Lane Closure on Far Side of Intersection (TA-22)

(optional)

_l_/(optional)

RIGHT LANE

/’ MUST (optional)
& TURN RIGHT

R .

Typical Application 22

(optional)

Note: See Tables 6H-2 and 6H-3
for the meaning of the
symbols and/or letter
codes used in this figure.

B

APX-A-6


Nunn
Text Box
APX-A-6


Gate Valve Replacement 2025 Options - Line Stops

Page 1

Did not acknowledge
addendum and did not include
bid bond

Engineer's Estimate Aesir Group LLC Fonson Company, Inc. TL Contracting, Inc. E.T. MacKenzie Company Leavitt & Starck Excavating, Inc. Scarlett Excavating Cal's Excavating, Inc.
5151 Marsh Road 23688 Mabel Ct. 7644 Whitemore Lake Road 16803 Industrial Parkway 4248 W. Saginaw 16220 National Parkway 16486 Grove Road 2661 Norvell Rd
Okemos, MI 48864 Brownstown, MI, 48183 Brighton, M1 48116 Lansing, MI 48906 Grand Ledge, MI 48837 Lansing, MI 48906 Lansing, MI 48906 Grass Lake, M1 49240
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT
1a.|Traffic Control (Grand River Ave) 1|LSUM $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $23,329.00 $23,329.00] $ 30,000.00 | $ 30,000.00 $21,750.00 $21,750.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $3,500.00) $3,500.00
1b.|Traffic Control (Park Lake Ave) 1|{LSUM $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,256.00 $10,256.00] ¢ 26,200.00 | $ 26,200.00 $15,750.00 $15,750.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $3,500.00) $3,500.00
9a.|Pavt, Rem, Concrete 200|SF $5.00 $1,000.00 $20.00 $4,000.00 $5.06 $1,012.00 $13.31 $2,662.00] § 1275 | § 2,550.00 $8.00 $1,600.00 $40.00] $8,000.00 $5.00 $1,000.00
9b.|Pavt, Rem, Asphalt 500|SF $5.00 $2,500.00 $20.00 $10,000.00 $9.13 $4,565.00 $7.32 $3,660.00] $ 30.70 | $ 15,350.00 $12.00] $6,000.00| $20.00] $10,000.00 $5.00 $2,500.00
31a.|Water Main, 16 inch, Line Stop 6|EA $10,000.00 $60,000.00 $20,000.00 $120,000.00 $21,000.00 $126,000.00 $11,728.33 $70,369.98] $ 22,200.00 | $ 133,200.00 $24,853.00 $149,118.00 $36,000.00 $216,000.00 $14,000.00 $84,000.00
31b.|Water, Sleeve, 16 inch 3|EA $3,000.00 $9,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00) $3,000.00) $9,000.00 $2,068.67| $6,206.01] $ 4,100.00 | $ 12,300.00 $4,411.41 $13,234.23 $9,500.00) $28,500.00 $1,500.00| $4,500.00
31c.[Wate Main, 20 inch, Line Stop 2|EA $14,000.00 $28,000.00 $30,000.00 $60,000.00 $26,000.00 $52,000.00 $13,454.00 $26,908.00] $ 24,600.00 | $ 49,200.00 $27,462.50 $54,925.00 $48,500.00 $97,000.00 $20,000.00 $40,000.00
31d.|Water, Sleeve, 20 inch 1|EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00) $6,000.00| $6,000.00 $5,009.00) $5,009.00] $ 5,350.00 | $ 5,350.00 $5,131.40) $5,131.40) $13,500.00 $13,500.00 $2,200.00| $2,200.00
32a.|Water, Gate Valve, 16 inch (Installation) 3|EA $45,000.00 $135,000.00 $20,000.00 $60,000.00 $25,000.00 $75,000.00 $53,096.33 $159,288.99| $ 27,100.00 | $ 81,300.00 $34,242.00 $102,726.00 $15,000.00 $45,000.00 $50,000.00 $150,000.00
32b.|Water, Gate Valve, 20 inch (Installation) 1/EA $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $65,632.00 $65,632.00] $ 39,500.00 | $ 11,600.00 $36,140.00 $36,140.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00
32c.|Water, Gate Valve, 8 inch (Exposure) 1/EA $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,159.00) $1,159.00] $ 11,600.00 | $ 39,500.00 $12,430.00 $12,430.00 $8,500.00) $8,500.00) $10,000.00 $10,000.00
32d.|Water, Gate Valve, 8 inch (Repair Allowance) 1/EA $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00) $3,000.00) $3,000.00 $3,000.00) $3,000.00] $ 3,000.00 | $ 3,000.00 $3,000.00) $3,000.00) $3,000.00) $3,000.00) $3,000.00) $3,000.00
40a.|Concrete, 4 inch 200|SF $18.00 $3,600.00 $25.00 $5,000.00) $21.00 $4,200.00 $26.31 $5,262.00] $ 3280 | $ 6,560.00 $35.12 $7,024.00) $15.00 $3,000.00) $15.00 $3,000.00
40b.|Concrete, 7 inch 100|SF $22.00 $2,200.00 $50.00 $5,000.00) $23.00 $2,300.00 $38.62 $3,862.00] $ 67.80 | $ 6,780.00 $56.12 $5,612.00) $20.00 $2,000.00) $35.00 $3,500.00
42.\HMA, 13A 30|TN $400.00 $12,000.00 $100.00 $3,000.00| $700.00 $21,000.00 $659.07 $19,772.10] $ 555.00 | $ 16,650.00 $315.00 $9,450.00| $400.00 $12,000.00 $350.00 $10,500.00
45a.[Curb & Gutter, Inst 40(FT $30.00 $1,200.00 $100.00 $4,000.00) $18.00 $720.00 $49.55 $1,982.00] $ 3925 | $ 1,570.00 $25.00 $1,000.00) $25.00 $1,000.00) $10.00 $400.00
45b.|Curb & Gutter, Rem 40(FT $60.00 $2,400.00 $100.00 $4,000.00) $68.66 $2,746.40 $73.55 $2,942.00) $155.00 $6,200.00) $104.75 $4,190.00) $45.00 $1,800.00) $55.00 $2,200.00
53a. |[Erosion Control, Silt Fence 200(FT $3.00 $600.00 $40.00 $8,000.00) $6.00) $1,200.00 $8.31 $1,662.00) $11.90 $2,380.00) $5.25) $1,050.00) $10.00 $2,000.00) $10.00 $2,000.00
53b.|Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 5|EA $150.00 $750.00 $200.00 $1,000.00) $124.56, $622.80 $115.00 $575.00 $450.00 $2,250.00) $262.50 $1,312.50) $200.00) $1,000.00) $82.00 $410.00
54. |Site Restoration 1|LSUM $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $5,734.00) $5,734.00) $11,900.00 $11,900.00 $15,700.00 $15,700.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Total: $412,000.00 Total: $417,366.20 Total: $419,271.08 Total: $ 463,840.00 Total: $467,143.13 Total: $529,800.00 Total: $416,210.00

$381,250.00 Total:




TOWNSHIP‘Y

To: Board Members

9.G

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works and Engineering

Date: June 24, 2025

Re: Permit to Cross Drain - Schultz Pathway Project

As part of the Township’s approvals to construct the Schultz Pathway Project later this year, we
must execute a drain crossing permit with the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office to
cross the Hoskins Drain, an existing drain located within the Township’s project limits, and to
encroach within the drain easement.

The Township’s project involves constructing concrete pathway and a boardwalk to fill in this
existing gap in the Township’s pathway system:

LAFORET. SOPHIEA PKWY
BUS
GARAGE BENNETT WOODS ~
scHULTZ [, ¢y ELEMENTARY
VETERINARY || [ | A
CLINIC ]
'\/---_7-
:
BENNETT ROAD =
¢ | %
g %
~ HAZY
~ N

Before the Board this evening is the Permit to Cross a Drain and Encroach within the Drain
Easement for the Schultz Pathway Project.

We are happy to answer any questions the Board may have.

Lo . . . . — A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commumm

meridian.mi.us



Memo to Township Board
June 24, 2025
Re: Permit to Cross Drain - Schultz Pathway Project

The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration:

MOVE TO APPROVE THE LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH CONSUMERS ENERGY AND
DIRECT THE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR AND CLERK TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT.

Attachment:

1. Hoskins Drain - Permit to Cross a Drain and Encroach within the Drain Easement for the
Schultz Pathway Project

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



HOSKINS DRAIN

PERMIT TO CROSS A DRAIN AND
ENCROACH WITHIN DRAIN EASEMENT
SCHULTZ PATHWAY

25-

WHEREAS, the Hoskins Drain (“Drain”) is a county drain under the jurisdiction of the
Ingham County Drain Commissioner (“Drain Commissioner”) 707 Buhl Avenue, Mason, Ml
48854, and

WHEREAS, Meridian Charter Township (the “Township”) has proposed to construct a
public non-motorized pathway (commonly referred to as the “Schultz Pathway”) consisting of a
9-foot-wide boardwalk (“Boardwalk™).

WHEREAS, the Boardwalk is proposed to be constructed over and across Parcel
Identification Nos. 33-02-02-29-300-014 and 33-02-02-29-451-002 (the *“Properties”). The
Properties are described in Exhibit A and the Boardwalk is depicted in Exhibit B; and,

WHEREAS, the Township has obtained easements over the Properties for the construction
and maintenance of the Boardwalk. Copies of the Township easements over Properties are attached
as Exhibit C.

WHEREAS, the Drain Commissioner on behalf of the Drainage District maintains a drain
easement on, over and across the Properties for the operation, maintenance, repair and
improvement of the Drain (“Drain Easement”). The Drain Easement is attached hereto as Exhibit
D; and

WHEREAS, the Township’s proposed construction and public use of the Boardwalk
would cross the Drain and encroach upon the Drain Easement and would affect the ability of the
Drain Commissioner to fully operate, maintain, repair, re-locate, or otherwise improve the Drain
on the Properties, and further, acknowledges and agrees that the Drain Commissioner shall have
the unencumbered ability to maintain the Drain; and,

WHEREAS, the Township has been advised, understands and agrees that the Boardwalk
will require a crossing and encroachment permit for the construction and installation of the
Boardwalk (the “Permit”) within and on the Drain Easement; and



WHEREAS, the Township has been advised, understands and agrees to assume the total
costs necessary to construct and install the Boardwalk related to this Permit, including any fees
attendant to this Permit; and

WHEREAS, the Drain Commissioner has reviewed the Township’s proposed plans and
specifications for the construction of the Boardwalk, dated April 17, 2025, and attached hereto as
Exhibit E (“Plans”), and has agreed to authorize the Township to construct and install the
Boardwalk, subject to the terms and conditions of this Permit set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants of each, the Parties
agree as follows:

1. The Township is authorized to construct and install the Boardwalk across the Drain and
within the Drain Easement in accordance with Plans, attached hereto as Exhibit E, and
in accordance with generally accepted construction methods. The Township shall not
make any other crossings or encroachments or perform any other activities on the Drain
or within the Drain Easement except as provided in Exhibit E without prior written
permission of the Drainage District.

2. The Township has deposited $550.00 with the Drain Commissioner for permit
application fees.

3. The Township shall notify the Drain Commissioner’s office at least three (3) business
days prior to the construction and installation of the Boardwalk by calling Angelica
Cosman, ICDC Drain Engineer, at the Drain Commissioner’s office at (517) 719-5431.
The Township shall not commence or construct the Boardwalk authorized herein
without an Ingham County Drain Office inspector present, unless the inspector
determines it is not necessary. The Drain Commissioner may have an inspector present
at all times during the construction and installation of the Boardwalk.

4, The Township shall obtain any and all permits required by any federal, state or local
permitting agencies, including, but not limited to Parts 31, 91, 301 and 303 of the
Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Public Act 451 of
1994, as amended. In addition, the Township warrants that it has all of the necessary
property rights on, over and across the Properties to construct the Boardwalk and the
public use of the same. The Drain Commissioner shall be provided copies of all
correspondence and reports involving any governmental agency with respect to the
Boardwalk on the Drain.

5. The Township shall not obstruct the flow of water in the Drain as defined by Sections
421 of the Drain Code, MCL 280.421, unless specifically authorized in writing by the
Drain Commissioner acting on behalf of the Drainage District.

6. The Township shall maintain all Part 91 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control
measures to prevent sedimentation of the Drain and adjacent waters of the State at all



10.

11.

times during construction of the Boardwalk authorized herein.  The Drain
Commissioner may stop the construction and installation of the Boardwalk should
sedimentation of the Drain occur during the construction and installation of the
Boardwalk authorized herein.

Within thirty (30) days of completion of the Boardwalk as authorized herein, the
Township shall provide the Drain Commissioner with one (1) copy of as-built drawings
of the crossing of the Drain and the encroachment on the Drain Easement, sealed by a
Michigan licensed professional engineer. The as-built drawing shall show the Drain
Easement, location of the crossings and encroachments, and all other relevant
information for the authorized crossing of the Drain and the encroachment within the
Drain Easement. The as-built drawing shall be submitted as a digital (pdf) file. If the
Township fails to timely provide the as-built drawings, the Township agrees to be
responsible for all costs incurred by the Drainage District and/or Drain Commissioner,
including but not limited to the costs incurred to survey and prepare the required as-
built drawings, and any related attorney fees.

The Township shall be responsible for any increased costs for the future maintenance
or improvement of the Drain incurred by the Drain Commissioner or Drainage District
due to the existence of the Boardwalk within the Drain Easement. In the event that the
Drain Commissioner requires removal or damages the Boardwalk in connection with
the maintenance of the Drain, Township shall be responsible all restoration costs.
Neither the Drain Commissioner or Drainage District shall be responsible for any
damages, including, consequential or business disruption damages, in connection with
the operation and maintenance of the Drain.

Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Permit shall constitute a
violation and may result in the revocation of the Permit and removal of Boardwalk.

To the extent permitted by law, the Township agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
harmless the Drainage District and Drain Commissioner against any and all claims
or liability whatsoever for injuries or damages allegedly sustained by any person or
business as a result of, or in any way related to, the construction, occupation and
use of the Easement and operations conducted thereon by Township, including
payment of attorneys and engineering fees incurred by the Drainage District or
Drain Commissioner in defense of a claim. During construction of Boardwalk, the
Township also agrees to add or have its contractors add the Drainage District, Drain
Commissioner, its respective officers, employees and representatives as an
“additional insureds” on the Township’s or contractor’s liability policies applicable
to matters addressed in this Permit.

This instrument contains the entire agreement between the Parties relating to the rights
herein granted and the obligations herein assumed. Any oral representations or
modifications concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect. Any
modification of this Permit must be in writing and must be signed by the party to be
charged.



12.

13.

14.

15.

This Permit is made and entered into in the State of Michigan and shall in all respects
be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of Michigan. The
language of all parts of this Permit are intended to and, in all cases, shall be construed
as a whole according to its fair meaning, and not construed strictly for or against any
Party.

The Parties agree that the terms and conditions herein are contractual and are not a
mere recital and that there are no other agreements, understandings, contracts, or
representations between the Parties in any way related to the subject matter hereof,
except as expressly stated herein.

If any provision of this Permit or their application to any person or circumstance shall
to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Permit shall not be
affected and shall remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

This Permit shall become effective upon execution by the Township and the Drain
Commissioner on behalf of the Drainage District and shall become binding upon the
successors and assigns of each party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Permit to be executed by

their duly authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

[Signatures and Acknowledgments on following pages]



HOSKINS DRAIN DRAINAGE
DISTRICT

Patrick E. Lindemann
Ingham County Drain Commissioner
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss:
COUNTY OF INGHAM )

On this ___ day of , 2025, before me, a Notary Public in and for said
County, appeared Patrick E. Lindemann, on behalf of the Hoskins Drain Drainage District to me
personally known, and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be
his free act and deed.

, Notary Public
County, Michigan
Acting in: County

My Commission Expires:




MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP
A Michigan Township and municipal corporation

Dated:
By:  Scott Hendrickson
Its:  Township Supervisor
And,
Dated:
By:  Angela Demas
Its: Township Clerk
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss:
COUNTY OF INGHAM )
On this ___ day of , 2025, before me, a Notary Public in and for said

County, appeared Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor, and Angela Demas, Township Clerk
on behalf of the Meridian Township, to me personally known, and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged the same to be their free act and deed.

Drafted By/When Recorded Return to:
Patrick E. Lindemann

Ingham County Drain Commissioner
707 Buhl

Mason, M1 48854

Notary Public

State of Michigan, County of
My Commission Expires:
Acting in the County of




EXHIBIT A



Exhibit A

TAX1D: 29-300-014

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: M 29-15-3- BEG AT S 1/4 COR SD SEC 29 -W ON S SEC LN 200 FT -N
0 DEG 18'55"W, 60.77 FT -ON CURVE LEFT 174.36 FT HAVING A 333 FT RAD & A CHD OF
172.37 FT. BRG N 15 DEG 18'55"W, -N 30 DEG 18'55"W, 175.77 FT -N 49 DEG 08'47" E, 114
FT-N 79 DEG 14'28"E, 250 FTTO NS 1/4 LN -S 0 DEG 18'55"E, 500 FT ON 1/4 LINE TO POB.
SEC 29 T4ANR1W 2.73 AC M/L

TAXID: 29-451-002

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: COM @ THE S1/4 CORSEC 29-N 80 RODSTO N LN OFS1/2 OF SE
1/4-EONNLN1314.7FT-S426.5FT-E537.1 FTTO C/L HULETT RD - SW'LY ON C/L
1036.22 FTTOSSEC LN -W ON S SEC LN 1324.92 FT TO THE POB. EXC R/W FOR BENNETT
& HULETTRD DESCASCOM @ THE S 1/4 CORSEC 29-N33FTTOTHEPOB.-N17FT-N
89 DEG 29'35"E, 1211.32 FT-N 48 DEG 18'54" E, 103.79 FT - ALONG CURVE RT 170 FT
HAVING A 314.36 FT RADIUS & ACHD OF 167.94 FT BRG N 29 DEG 40'35" E - N 45 DEG 10'
08" E 125.64 FT - ON CURVE LEFT 140 FT HAVING A 534.53 FT RADIUS & A CHD OF 139.60
FTBRG N 37 DEG 39'56"E-N30DEG09'44"E, 484.33FT-N90DEG E30.76 FT-S 30 DEG
25' 06" W 984.28 FT - S 89 DEG 29' 35" W 1322.15 FT TO THE POB SEC 29 TANR1W 44.26
AC +/-



EXHIBIT B



Wl PROPERTIES
2.73 ACRES
33—02—-02-29-300-014

BENNETT ROAD

OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
44.26 ACRES
33—-02—-02—-29-451-002

\HOSKINS DRAIN

SCALE: 1" = 60’

30 60

NORTH

Meridian Charter Township
Ingham County, Michigan

DATE |BY:
03/03/24 | CH

COMMENTS:

SHEET

SCHULTZ PATHWAY 1
EXHIBIT B



AutoCAD SHX Text
UT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"P-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATT CABLE AND FIBER OPTIC CORRIDOR (PER "MISS DIG")

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WI PROPERTIES 2.73 ACRES 33-02-02-29-300-014

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS 44.26 ACRES 33-02-02-29-451-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOSKINS DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARDWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENNETT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHULTZ PATHWAY EXHIBIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Meridian Charter Township    Ingham County, Michigan

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'


EXHIBIT C



GRANT OF EASEMENT

WI Properties, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company, whose address is 2770 Bennett
Rd, Okemos, MI 48864 (“Grantor”), hereby grants to the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
MERIDIAN, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 5151 Marsh Road,
Okemos, Ingham County, Michigan (“Grantee”), a perpetual easement for the construction,
operation, maintenance, enlargement, reconstruction, repair and/or replacement and use of
a WATER MAIN and NON-MOTORIZED PATHWAY, and related wires, cables,
conductors, anchors, pipes, devices, appliances and facilities over, on, under, through and
across Grantor’s land located in the Township of Meridian, County of Ingham, and State of
Michigan, more particularly described as:

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 2770 Bennett Rd, Okemos, MI 48864

PARCEL NUMBER: 33-02-02-29-300-014

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: M 29-15-3- BEG AT S 1/4 COR SD SEC 29 -W ON S SEC LN 200
FT -N 0 DEG 18'55"W, 60.77 FT -ON CURVE LEFT 174.36 FT HAVING A 333 FT RAD &
A CHD OF 172.37 FT. BRG N 15 DEG 18'55"W, -N 30 DEG 18'55"W, 175.77 FT -N 49
DEG 08'47" E, 114 FT -N 79 DEG 14'28"E, 250 FT TO NS 1/4 LN -S 0 DEG 18'55"E, 500
FT ON 1/4 LINE TO POB. SEC 29 T4NR1W 2.73 AC M/L

The location or placement of the easement within Grantor’s above-described land shall be
as follows:

EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 4
NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN,
WHICH IS DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION
29; N 0°18'55" W 33.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH-SOUTH 1/4 LINE OF SECTION 29
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.) OF SAID TRACT; THENCE CONTINUING N
0°18'55" W 17.00 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH-SOUTH LINE; THENCE S 89°41'5" W
200.00 FEET; THENCE S 0°18'55" E 17.00 FEET; THENCE S N 89°41'5" E 200.00 FEET
TO THE P.O.B. WITH AN AREA OF ABOUT 3,340 SQUARE FEET.

This Easement shall run with the land, and burden the above-described property.

Pursuant to this Grant of Easement, Grantor hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee all
of the Grantor’s right, title and interest in the landscaping, buildings, and improvements
located in the easement described herein.

Grantor grants to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, the perpetual right to enter upon
the above-described real estate at any time as it may see fit to construct, operate, repair,
maintain, enlarge, reconstruct and replace the line, pipes and facilities on, over, under,
through and across the lands herein before described, together with the right to excavate
and refill ditches and/or trenches for the location of such lines, pipes and facilities in, over
and upon the above described property, and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said
easement for such purposes. This easement shall be irrevocable and exclusive, however,
Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns of the above described parcel may use and
enjoy the easement area for purposes not inconsistent with the easement rights herein
granted to Grantee, provided such use and enjoyment does not unreasonably interfere with
the Grantee’s use of the easement granted by this instrument. Grantor, its successors and
assigns, agree not to construct any buildings or permanent improvements within the
€asement area. Non-use or a limited use of this easement by Grantee shall not prevent
Grantee from later making use of the easement to the full extent conveyed.

Page 1 of 2



This easement is granted for the sum of $1.00, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged. This Grant of Easement is exempt from transfer tax under MCLA
207.505(a), and exempt from state transfer tax under MCLA 207.526(a).

This easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and
assigns of the Grantor and Grantee. Grantor covenants with Grantee that Grantor is lawfully
seized and possessed of the real estate above described, that Grantor has a good and
lawful right to convey the real estate, that the real estate is free of all encumbrances, and

that Grantor will forever warrant and defend title thereto against the lawful claims of all
persons whatsoever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals on the
dates appearing in their respective acknowledgements set forth below.

GRANTOR(S) ‘ / s

/. J j/;'// ; //7/1\) )
Sign: -~ 7/4';'1/14‘,—«&..- ?/ “”",';:::/,"I:T,:— Sign: ,/k/.‘{ /
print: Lhecrid> & Sclhbds print: vl pam if.z;‘, Schell
tltle - IINLgni P 2 t'tle /)’1‘ & h E~—
address:2770 Bennett Rd

Okemos, MI 48864
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss.
COUNTY OF INGHAM )
Acknowledged before me in Ingham County, Michigan, on /HLH o il , 2023,

by_L.N“-); Q,\AK‘\H\:,«_{-'T?;; ((;;’ BN T of WI Properties, LLC, a Michigan Limited

: /
Liability Company.

2 RV AV A
AN T
QL)
Notary Public, In‘g/ﬁ(’an%) County, Michigan N
My Commission Expires: ()3 /</ 04 f
Acting in Ingham County

Drafted by and return to:
Ryan Schaner

Meridian Township

Public Works & Engineering
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864

Page 2 of 2



_Bennett_pathway_ease.dwg

\\unas\da(a\ENGlNEERlNG\EASMENTS\MISCELLANEOUS\Z77O

EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29,
TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST,
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY,
MICHIGAN, WHICH IS DESCRIBED AS
COMMENCING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF
SAID SECTION 29; N 0°18'55" W 33.00 FEET

ALONG THE NORTH-SOUTH #LINE OF
SECTION 29 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING
(P.0.B.) OF SAID TRACT: THENCE
CONTINUING N 0°18'55" W 17.00

FEET ALONG SAID NORTH-SOUTH LINE;
THENCE S 89°41'5" W 200.00 FEET; THENCE
S 0°18'55" E 17.00 FEET; THENCE S N
89°41'5" E 200.00 FEET TO THE P.O.B. WITH
AN AREA OF ABOUT 3,340 SQUARE FEET.

N
\1
~
o
(o8]
m
=
=z
)
-

S 89°41'5" W 200.00'

N 0°18'55" W 17.00'

S 0°18'55" E 17.00 POB.

N 0°18'55" W 33.00'

N 89°41'5" E 200000 \ S

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 29
T4N, RIW

SCALE: 1" = 100 NORTH Meridian Charter Township ::2;; XXCUMMENTS' SHEET

03/10/23 FINAL

BY:
o s 100" 200 Ingham County, Michigan — 2 -~
$ 2770 BENNETT RD —— T £ 1
PATHWAY EASEMENT --




2025-014965
INGHAM COUNTY, MI
DERRICK QUINNEY
REGISTER OF DEEDS

OFFICIAL LAND RECORD

Instrument Number: 2025-014965

Number of Pages: 4

Arrival Date and Time: 6/4/2025 2:38:00 PM
Recording Date and Time: 06/05/2025 11:36 AM

Document Type: EASEMENT/RIGHT OF WAY

| hereby certify that this instrument was RECEIVED and
RECORDED on the date and times stamped above in the
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS of the REGISTER OF
DEEDS, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN.

DERRICK QUINNEY
REGISTER OF DEEDS
INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN

This cover page is PAGE 1 of your document and is part of the Official Public Record.

For Internal Use ONLY:
TxId: 4514482
Docld: 8738600

2025-014965 Ingham County MI Register of Deeds Page 1 of 4



A A %
37 20 UL

GRANT OF EASEMENT

OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOQLS, a Michigan general powers school district organized and
operating under the Revised School Code, MCL 380. 1 et seq., whose address is 4407 N Okemos
Road, Okemos, MI 48864, (“Grantor”), hereby grants to the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
MERIDIAN, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, %
Ingham County, Michigan, (“Grantee”), a perpetual easement for the construction, operation,
maintenance, enlargement, reconstruction, repair and/or replacement and use of a Non-Motorized
Pathway / Boardwalk and related wires, cables, conductors, anchors, pipes, devices, appliances and
facilities over, on, under, through and across Grantor’s land located in the Township of Meridian,
County of Ingham, and State of Michigan, more particularly described as:

Property Address: 4009 Hulett Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864

Parcel Number: 33-02-02-29-451-002

Legal Description: COM @ THE S 1/4 COR SEC29-N80RODSTONLNOFS 120FSE 1/4-E
ONNLN 1314.7 FT - S 426.5 FT - E 537.1 FT TO C/L HULETT RD - SW'LY ON C/L 103622 FT TO
S SEC LN - W ON S SEC LN 1324.92 FT TO THE POB. EXC R/W FOR BENNETT & HULETT RD
DESC AS COM @ THE S 1/4 COR SEC 29 - N 33 FT TO THE POB. - N 17 FT - N 89 DEG 29'35" E,
1211.32 FT- N 48 DEG 18'54" E, 103.79 FT - ALONG CURVE RT 170 FT HAVING A 314.36 FT
RADIUS & A CHD OF 167.94 FT BRG N 29 DEG 40'35" E - N 45 DEG 10' 08" E 125.64 FT - ON
CURVE LEFT 140 FT HAVING A 534.53 FT RADIUS & A CHD OF 139.60 FT BRG N 37 DEG 39'56"
E-N30DEG 09' 44" E, 484.33 FT -N 90 DEG E 30.76 FT - S 30 DEG 25' 06" W 984.28 FT - S 89 DEG
29'35" W 1322.15 FT TO THE POB SEC 29 T4NR1W 44.26 AC +/-. Located in the NW 1/4 of Section
20, T4N, R1W, Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan (the “Grantor’s Property™);

The location or placement of the easement within Grantor’s above-described land shall be as follows:

EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:

Non-Motorized Pathway #1 Easement Description as shown on Exhibit 1:

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 4
NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN,
WHICH IS DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID
SECTION 29; NO° 18' 54" W 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.0.B.) OF SAID
TRACT; THENCE N80° 12' 36"E 143.43 FEET; THENCE S86° 24' 36"E 133.97 FEET; THENCE
N90° 00' 00"E 53.92 FEET;, THENCE S78° 09' 02" E 65.99 FEET; THENCE S89° 38' 35"W 393.55"
TO THE P.O.B. WITH AN AREA OF ABOUT 5,402 SQUARE FEET.




Non-Motorized Pathway #2 Easement Description as shown on Exhibit 3:

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 4
NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN,
WHICH IS DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID
SECTION 29; NO° 18' 54" W 50.00 FEET, THENCE N89° 39' 53"E 601.42 FEET ALONG THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.) OF SAID TRACT; THENCE
CONTINUING Né69° 15' 19"E 57.83 FEET; THENCE N90° 00' 00"E 55.43 FEET; THENCE $82°
56' 14"E 162.52 FEET; THENCE S89° 39' 53" W 270.79 FEET TO THE P.0.B. WITH AN AREA
OF ABOUT 3,254 SQUARE FEET.

This Easement shall run with the land, and burden the above-described property.

Pursuant to this Grant of Easement, Grantor hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee all of the
Grantor’s right, title and interest in the landscaping, buildings, and improvements located in the
easement described herein.

Grantor grants to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, the perpetual right to enter upon the above-
described real estate at any time as it may see fit to construct, operate, repair, maintain, enlarge,
reconstruct and replace the line, pipes and facilities on, over, under, through and across the lands
herein before described, together with the right to excavate and refill ditches and/or trenches for the
location of such lines, pipes and facilities in, over and upon the above described property, and to enter
upon sufficient land adjacent to said easement for such purposes. This easement shall be irrevocable
and exclusive, however, Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns of the above described parcel
may use and enjoy the easement area for purposes not inconsistent with the easement rights herein
granted to Grantee, provided such use and enjoyment does not unreasonably interfere with the
Grantee’s use of the easement granted by this instrument. Grantor, its successors and assigns, agree
not to construct any buildings or permanent improvements within the easement area. Non-use or a
limited use of this easement by Grantee shall not prevent Grantee from later making use of the
easement to the full extent conveyed.

This easement is granted for the sum of $1.00, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged. This Grant of Easement is exempt from transfer tax under MCLA 207.505(a), and
exempt from state transfer tax under MCLA 207.526(a).

This easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns of
the Grantor and Grantee. Grantor covenants with Grantee that Grantor is Lawfully seized and
possessed of the real estate above described, that Grantor has a good and lawful right to convey the
real estate, that the real estate is free of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will forever warrant and
defend title thereto against the lawful claims of all persons whatsoever.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals on the dates
appearing in their respective acknowledgements set forth below.

GRANTORC(S): OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS

sign: _<Jobn<] /)an}L

print: John J. Hobd
title: Superintendent

/g L\) address:

L/L/ (Xp—4407N Okemos Road,
Okemos, MI 48864

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) ss.
COUNTY OF INGHAM )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 71 WA, day of ' 2025,
by John J. Hood, Superintendent of Okemos Public Schools.

Notary Public, Ingham County, Michigan
Acting in /14 County ,
My Commission Expires: ,QZC/ /A, R0

RHIANNA L. WALWORTH ’O ‘
Notary Public, State of Michigan o : G
Countyof Clinton 3

- e
My Commission Expires12-[12-2 26 e
Acting in the County of - |

Drafted by and return to: = // 7 B
Caycee Hart ap ;L
Meridian Township Engineering Py
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864

= 8




\\SIRIUS\Shared\Engineering & Public Works\Developments\Bennett 2770 - Schultz Clinic\Schultz Pathway\CAD\Plan\Exhibits\Okemos Schools Easement\Okemos Schools ESMT Exhibit.dwg

EXHIBIT 1

NON-MOTORIZED PATHWAY #1 EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:
A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1

WEST, MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, WHICH IS DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING

AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29; NO° 18' 54" W 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING (P.O.B.) OF SAID TRACT; THENCE N80° 12' 36"E 143.43 FEET; THENCE S86° 24' 36"E 133.97

FEET; THENCE N90° 00" 00"E 53.92 FEET; THENCE S78° 09' 02" E 65.99 FEET; THENCE S89° 38' 35"W
393.55' TO THE P.O.B. WITH AN AREA OF ABOUT 5,402 SQUARE FEET.

4009 HULETT ROAD N30° 00" 00"E 353.92’
OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
33-02-02-29-451-002

S86° 24’ 36°E 133977

N80° 12’ 36"E 143.43’

P.0.B

\_ ° ’ " ’
Noo 18/ 54”\1\/ 50.00’ 889 38 35 \A/ 393.55

S78°

0

al

02E  65.99’

% BENNETT ROAD o
1/4 CORNER

SECTION 29
T4N, R1W

SCALE: 17 = 40’ NORTH Meridian Charter Township

o 20" 40° 80’ Ingham County, Michigan
E;ﬁ 4009 HULETT RD
PATHWAY EASEMENT

DATE

BY:

COMMENTS!

04/04/25

ESMT EXHIBIT

SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENNETT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
4009 HULETT ROAD OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS 33-02-02-29-451-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 1/4 CORNER SECTION 29 T4N, R1W

AutoCAD SHX Te<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>